
Civic Offices 

Merrial Street 

Newcastle-under-Lyme 

Staffordshire 

ST5 2AG 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contacting the Council: 

Switchboard 01782 717717  .  Fax 01782 711032  .  DX 20959  .  Text 07800 140048  

E-mail webmaster@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk  .  www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk 

 

Britain in Bloom:  

National Winner 2005 

Silver Gilt Medal 2009  

Regional Winner 

2003, 2004, 2008,  

2009, 2010 

Gold Award Winner  

2002 - 2010 

 
 

 

Date of meeting 
 

Monday, 26th September, 2011  

Time 
 

7.00 pm  

Venue 
 

Committee Room 1. Civic Offices, Merrial Street, 
Newcastle-under-Lyme, Staffs ST5 2AG 

 

Contact Julia Cleary 
 

   
  

 
 
 

Audit and Risk Committee 

 

AGENDA 

 

PART 1– OPEN AGENDA 

 

1 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS   (Pages 1 - 6) 

 To consider the minutes of the previous meetings held on 5 and 28 July 2011. 
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    

 To receive Declarations of Interest from Members on items included in the agenda 
 

3 LEP PRESENTATION    

 To receive a presentation from the Council’s Executive Director for Regeneration and 
Development on LEP’s 
 

4 Statement of Accounts 2010/11 and External Auditor's 
Governance Report   

(Pages 7 - 136) 

5 Quarterly Report:  Adoption of Internal Audit Fundamental 
Recommendations and Summary of Assurance 1 April to 30 
June 2011   

(Pages 137 - 142) 

6 Internal Audit Progress Report - Quarter 1 2011/12   (Pages 143 - 152) 

7 Corporate Risk Management Report for the Period April to 
June 2011   

(Pages 153 - 160) 

8 URGENT BUSINESS    

 To consider any business which is urgent within the meaning of Section 100B(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972 
 

 
Members: Councillors D Richards (Chairman), S Blair (Vice-Chair), Boden, Loades, Waring 

Public Document Pack



and Snell 
 

 
‘Members of the Council: If you identify any personal training / development  requirements from the 
items included in this agenda or through issues raised during the meeting, please bring them to the 
attention of the Committee Clerk at the close of the meeting’ 



Audit & Risk – 05/07/11 

64 

*Printed for information 
 

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE 

 
5 July 2011 

 
Present:- Councillor Richards in the Chair 
 
Councillors Boden and Loades 
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Jones 
 
Also in attendance:-  Mr David Jenkins from the Audit Commission 
 
 

149. * APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies were received from Councillors Blair and Waring. 
 

150. * MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
Resolved:- That the minutes of the previous meeting of the Committee 
held on 18 April 2011 be approved as a correct record. 
 

151. * AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE – PLAN OF WORK 2011/12 
 
Consideration was given to the proposed plan of work for the Committee during 
2011/12 and it was indicated that the training for Members on the Statement of 
Accounts would be held on 28 July 2011. 
 
In addition, Members considered the issues of ‘horizon scanning’ and the Local 
Enterprise Programme (LEP) with a view to these being included in the Work 
Plan. 
 
Resolved:- (a) That the Work Plan as now amended to include 
‘horizon scanning’ as part of the risk management report be accepted. 
 
 (b) That a presentation be given to a future meeting of the 
Committee on the LEP. 
 
 (c) That a letter be sent to all members of the Committee 
advising them of the training on the Statement of Accounts to be held on 28 July 
2011. 
 

152. * HEALTH AND SAFETY REPORT 2010/11 
 
Members gave consideration to the annual report of the Corporate Health and 
Safety Officer which covered the period April 2010 to March 2011. 
 
There were no particular trends or themes emerging in comparison to previous 
years, but a total of 31 work related accidents had been recorded, 4 of which 
were reportable to the Health and Safety Executive. 
 
These had resulted in 150 working days being lost with an average of 0.23 days 
lost per employee. 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



Audit & Risk – 05/07/11 

65 

 
Details of inspections carried out to date were submitted and it was indicated that 
the demolition of the western block of the Council’s depot in Knutton Lane had 
been completed and the depot and Fire Service sites were now separated. 
 
Resolved:- That the report be noted and the Corporate Health and Safety 
Officer be thanked for her work in this matter. 
 

153. * CIPFA STATEMENT ON THE ROLE OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT 
 
A report was submitted on the above matter which provided a framework against 
which the effectiveness of the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) could be assessed in 
demonstrating that the Council had good governance arrangements in place. 
 
Resolved:- That the report and action plan be noted. 
 

154. * QUARTERLY REPORT – ADOPTION OF INTERNAL AUDIT FUNDAMENTAL 
RECOMMENDATIONS AND SUMMARY OF ASSURANCE (1 JANUARY TO 
31 MARCH 2011) 
 
Consideration was given to a report on outstanding fundamental 
recommendations and provided Members with assurance opinion on internal 
controls over Council Services. 
 
In the fourth quarter there were 18 fundamental recommendations due for review, 
all of which were at their first follow up date and therefore no action was required 
at this stage. 
 
It was also indicated that all Directorates were showing substantial assurance. 
 
Resolved:- That the action of the officers and levels of assurance be 
noted. 
 

155. * INTERNAL AUDIT SECTION ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 
 
The Committee received a report regarding the Annual Report of the Internal 
Audit Section for the 2010/11 financial year. 
 
The Audit Plan for the year had been approved on 8 February 2010 and had 
accounted for 629 audit days. 
 
A good level of productivity had been maintained at 76% whilst 93% of audits had 
been completed compared to the number planned and 93% of the Audit Plan. 
 
The percentage of Internal Audit recommendations implemented by the Officers 
had increased to 83% against a target of 95%.  There were no high or medium 
risk recommendations that were considered as not receiving adequate 
management attention. 
 
Resolved:- That the Internal Audit Section Annual Report for 2010/11 be 
received. 

Page 2



Audit & Risk – 05/07/11 

66 

 
156. * REVIEW THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

 
The Committee received a report summarising an assessment that had been 
carried out on the effectiveness of the system of Internal Audit for 2010/11. 
 
This was the fifth review that had taken place and involved updating the 2009/10 
self assessment and formulating a revised action plan for work to be completed 
during the forthcoming financial year. 
 
Resolved:- That the report outlining the findings from the review of the 
effectiveness of the system of Internal Audit for 2010/11 together with the action 
plan be agreed. 
 

157. * REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
The Committee received a report summarising an assessment that had been 
carried out on the effectiveness of the Audit Committee for 2010/11. 
 
The results of the self assessments showed that the Audit Committee was 
effective and could be relied upon when considering the Annual Governance 
Statement for 2010/11. 
 
Resolved:- That the report outlining the findings from the review of the 
effectiveness of the Audit Committee for 2010/11 be agreed. 
 

158. * ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
 
The Committee considered a report recommending that the Annual Governance 
Statement for 2010/11 be approved for inclusion in the financial statements 
presented at the meeting. 
 
The Council was responsible for ensuring that its business was conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards and that public money was 
safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and 
effectively. 
 
In order to achieve this, the Council was responsible for putting in place proper 
arrangements for risk management. 
 
The governance framework comprised the systems, processes, culture and value 
by which the authority was directed and controlled and activities through which it 
accounted to, engaged with and led the community.  It enabled the authority to 
monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those 
objectives would lead to the delivery of appropriate, cost effective services. 
 
The governance framework had been in place for the year ended 31 March 2010 
and up to the date of approval of the Statement of Accounts. 
 
The Annual Governance Statement had been produced combining findings from 
a Corporate Governance Review, Assurance Statements from Executive 
Directors informed by Corporate Service Managers, the work of Internal Audit 
and various corporate working parties and comments from external auditors and 
other review agencies. 
 

Page 3



Audit & Risk – 05/07/11 

67 

 
Resolved:- That the Annual Governance Statement for 2010/11 be 
referred to the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Co-ordinating Committee for 
comments prior to the next meeting of this Committee. 
 

159. * ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
AND ACTION PLAN 
 
Consideration was given to a revised Risk management Strategy, Policy 
Statement and Action Plan. 
 
The risk management process adopted by the Council assisted in the 
identification of those key risks that potentially threatened the delivery of the 
corporate priorities of the Council and also delivery of operational and service 
objectives. 
 
The Strategy had been changed and developed to reflect a new nationally driven 
regime in terms of inspection and other changes in the environment. 
 
Resolved:- (a) That the documents covering the revised Risk 
Management Strategy for 2011/12 together with the Risk Management Policy 
Statement be noted. 
 
 (b) That the revised Risk Management Strategy, Policy 
Statement and Action Plan be approved. 
 
 (c) That training on Risk Management issues be provided 
for Members. 
 

D J RICHARDS 
Chair 

Page 4



Audit & Risk – 28/07/11 

95 

*Printed for information 
 

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE 

 
28 July 2011 

 
Present:- Councillor Richards in the Chair 
 
Councillors Blair, Boden, Snell and Waring 
 
 

217. * DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11 
 
The Committee received a report regarding the submission of the draft Statement 
of Accounts 2010/11 for scrutiny and approval by the Audit and Risk Committee 
and the approval of the financing of capital expenditure. 
 
The report highlighted key issues that were contained in the accounts including a 
commentary on the General Fund outturn, the Collection Fund and the balance 
sheet and noted the position regarding the Council’s reserves. 
 
The Statement of Accounts was still in draft form and subject to external audit.  
As soon as this audit had been completed any comments would be incorporated 
and the Statement resubmitted to the Committee for approval. 
 
The budget for the General Fund for 2010/11 had originally been set in February 
2010 and amounted to a net total of £17,866,650.  The eventual out-turn for the 
year showed an adverse variance of £87,019, the sum of which had been 
transferred from the Budget Support Fund to cover the adverse variance.  The 
reasons for this position were considered. 
 
Members were also reminded that of the £2.5m plus £9192 interest accrued from 
the money invested with the Heritable Bank some £1,514,577 had been received 
from the Administrator to date. 
 
Resolved:- (a) That the draft Statement of Accounts for 2010/11 be 
noted. 
 
 (b) That the financing of capital expenditure incurred 
during 2010/11, as set out in Appendix B to the Executive Management Team’s 
report be approved. 
 

218. * ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
 
Consideration was again given to the Annual Governance Statement which had 
been considered at the previous meeting of the Committee. 
 
Resolved:- That the Annual Governance Statement for 2010/11 be 
approved. 
 
 

D J RICHARDS 
Chair 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11 AND EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S GOVERNANCE 
REPORT 
 
Submitted by: Head of Finance 
 
Portfolio Resources and Efficiency 
 
Ward(s) affected  All indirectly 
 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 

To approve the statement of accounts, receive the Audit Commission’s Governance Report for 
2010/11 and to agree the Letter of Representation to the Auditor. 
 

Recommendations 
 

(a) That the Statement of Accounts 2010/11 be approved and signed by the person 
presiding at the meeting. 

 
(b) That the Annual Governance Report for 2010/11 be received. 
 
(c) That the Letter of Representation be approved for signature by the Council’s 
Section 151 Officer. 
 

Reasons 
 

It is a statutory requirement, contained in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011, that the 
Council produces a Statement of Accounts detailing its financial transactions for the year and its 
position at the year end and that this is approved by a Committee no later than 30 September in 
the year following that to which the Statement relates. 
 
The External Auditor appointed by the Audit Commission (the District Auditor) is required, 
according to the International Standard on Auditing 260 (ISA 260), to report to you on matters 
affecting governance via a governance report.  
 
The Letter of Representation is a formal letter from the Council to the External Auditor stating 
various matters which the auditor needs to have confirmed in order to gain sufficient assurance to 
be able to certify the Council’s accounts. 

 
1. Background 

 
1.1  The Committee received a report on 28 July in relation to the draft Statement of 

Accounts and the Outturn position for 2010/11.  The report explained the changes 
arising from new Accounts and Audit Regulations, which meant that the 2010/11 
Statement of Accounts does not have to be formally approved by a Council Committee 
until 30 September 2011 (previously this was 30 June).  However, it was felt that 
members needed an earlier update on the position for 2010/11, which was the reason 
for this earlier report.  The report set out information in relation to the outturn position 
and the main features of the Statement of Accounts, such as the balance sheet position, 
reserves levels and income and expenditure for the year.  It also explained the changes 
which have been made to the format and contents of the Statement as a result of the 
implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards.  A copy of this report is 
attached at Appendix A.  
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



1.2 The Committee now needs to formally receive the Statement of Accounts for 2010/11 for 
scrutiny and approval.  Accordingly a copy of the Statement is appended at Appendix B 
for your consideration. 
 

1.3 The External Auditor appointed by the Audit Commission (the District Auditor) is 
required, according to the International Standard on Auditing 260 (ISA 260), to report to 
you on matters affecting governance via a governance report.  
 

1.4 The purpose of the report is primarily to allow the auditor to bring to the attention of the 
Committee any material mis-statements in the accounts for 2010/11, which your officers 
have declined to amend and any significant material mis-statements in the accounts 
submitted for audit which have been amended, together with any material weaknesses 
in internal control or areas of uncertainty.  The report also contains the auditor’s opinion 
on the Council’s arrangements for achieving Value for Money.  
 

2. Statement of Accounts 2010/11 
 

2.1 The Statement of Accounts now submitted to you has been audited by the Council’s 
external auditor, the Audit Commission.  As a result a small number of minor 
amendments have been agreed with the auditor and made to the Statement but it is 
substantially the same document as you considered in June.  The Annual Governance 
Report sets out the amendments which have been made.  
 

2.2   None of these agreed amendments change the amount of the negative variance on the 
General Fund Revenue Account (£87,019) reported to you in July.  
 

2.3 There are no changes which are significant enough to alter the content of the previous 
report, apart from a small amendment to the split between long and short term 
investments of £0.124m, where long term increases by this amount and short term is 
reduced correspondingly.  Accordingly, the previous report attached at Appendix A 
should continue to be referred to for an explanation of the main features of the 2010/11 
Statement. 
 

2.4 The Council’s Annual Governance Statement, which you approved at your July meeting, 
will be incorporated in the Statement of Accounts.  Whilst the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011 no longer require this to be included in the Statement of Accounts, 
they require it to be published, so it appears most appropriate to continue to include it in 
the published Statement of Accounts.  Please note that this has not been included in the 
Statement appended to this report, however, in order to save paper. 
 

2.5 The Audit Certificate to be included in the Statement will be provided after this meeting, 
following receipt by the auditor of the agreed and signed Letter of Representation, 
subject to his final satisfaction with the accounts. 
 

3. Annual Governance Report 
 

3.1   The Governance Report, which contains a copy of the proposed Letter of 
Representation, is attached at Appendix C.  The external auditor will present the report 
and attend your meeting, together with your officers, to answer any questions raised by 
the Committee.  
 

3.2    As stated earlier, the agreed amendments to the accounts referred to in the Governance 
Report do not change the amount of the negative variance (budget compared to 
outturn), i.e. the bottom line, in relation to the General Fund Revenue Account from that 
previously reported to members in July.  

Page 8



 
3.3 The Governance Report refers to two suggested amendments which it is not proposed 

to make to the Statement of Accounts.  The reasons for this stance are set out in the 
Letter of Representation contained in the Governance Report. 
 

4. General Fund Outturn 
 

4.1   When you considered the outturn position in July, you requested further information 
concerning significant areas where the negative variance reported to you in relation to 
income shortfalls had been offset, to arrive at the final negative variance of £87,019. 
Accordingly, the position is set out below. 
 

4.2 To recap, the major income shortfalls were as shown in the following table: 
 

 Variance 

 £000s 
Local Land Charges 210 

Cremation Fees 59 

Lancaster Buildings Rents 230 

Planning Applications Fees 44 

Car Parking Income 234 

Markets Stalls Income 50 

Total 827 

 
4.3 These were offset as follows: 

 

£000s £000s

Income Shortfalls, as previously reported 827

Allowance for Income Shortfall -200

Other Adverse Variances

  Loss of Grant - LABGI 50

  Concessionary Fares - Payments to operators 77

  Salaries not capitalised 65

  Recruitment costs for Chief Executive 25

217

Offsetting Positive Variances

  Employees (no pay rise/unfilled vacancies) -460

  Interest Payable -74

  Building Control contribution to Partnership -25

  Community Development - Contributions to external bodies -43

  Guildhall - Running costs -45
  Write-back of Provisions contributions -147

-794

Other Minor Variances 37

Out-Turn 87

Variance

 

Page 9



 
5. Letter of Representation 

 
5.1 The Letter of Representation is a formal letter from the Council to the External Auditor 

stating various matters which the auditor needs to have confirmed in order to gain 
sufficient assurance to be able to certify the Council’s accounts. It has to be approved by 
your Committee and then signed by the Council’s Section 151 Officer.  
 

5.2 The proposed Letter of Representation is set out at Appendix D. 
 

5.3 Members need to consider whether they agree that the 2 amendments suggested by the 
auditor are, in fact, not to be made for the reasons set out in the Letter before deciding to 
approve it.  
 

6. International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 
 

6.1 As Members of the Committee will be aware from previous reports, this is the first 
Statement of Accounts which has been compiled in accordance with IFRS principles. 
This entailed a considerable amount of preparation work, including the restatement of 
the balance sheet as at 1 April 2009, and the restatement of the entire 2009/10 accounts 
to present the accounts in the required format and with the content adhering to IFRS 
principles.  
 

6.2   Implementation of IFRS was one of the challenges/tasks included in the Financial 
Management Section service plan and was also a goal included in the Corporate Plan 
2010/11 to 2012/13, under the priority heading of “Transforming our Council to achieve 
excellence”.  Now that the Statement of Accounts has been audited, with few 
amendments, and bearing in mind the positive comments contained in the auditor’s 
Annual Governance Report, it can be seen that this implementation has been carried out 
successfully and the corporate and service plan goals have been achieved. 
 

6.3 The IFRS Working Group which was set up to oversee the implementation process has 
accordingly been stood down.  
 

7. Equality Impact Assessment 
 
There are no equality issues arising from the report. 
 

8. Financial and Resource Implications  
 

8.1 The adverse variance on the General Fund Revenue Account of £87,019 has been met 
by a transfer from the Budget Support Fund. 
 

9. Previous Reports  
 

9.1 Report to Audit and Risk Committee 28 July 2011 “Draft Statement of Accounts 
2010/11”; Reports to Audit and Risk Committee in relation to IFRS: 24 February 2009, 
8 February 2010, 15 November 2010, 18 April 2011. 
 

10. List of Appendices  
 
Appendix A - Report to Audit and Risk Committee 28 July 2011 
Appendix B - Statement of Accounts 2010/11 
Appendix C - Governance Report 2010/11  
Appendix D - Letter of Representation 

Page 10



 
11. Background Papers 

 
Report to Audit and Risk Committee 28 July 2011 “Draft Statement of Accounts 
2010/11”; Reports to Audit and Risk Committee in relation to IFRS: 24 February 2009, 8 
February 2010, 15 November 2010, 18 April 2011; Governance Report 2010/11 
produced by the External Auditor appointed by the Audit Commission; Letter of 
Representation 2010/11. 
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11 

 
Submitted by:  Head of Finance  
 
Portfolio:  Resources and Efficiency 
 
Ward(s) affected:  All 
 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 
To submit the draft Statement of Accounts 2010/11 for consideration by the Audit and 
Risk Committee and to gain approval for the financing of capital expenditure.  The report 
highlights the key issues which are contained in these accounts including a commentary 
on the General Fund outturn, the Collection Fund and the Balance Sheet and to note the 
position regarding the Council’s reserves.  
 
At this stage the Statement of Accounts is in a draft stage and is subject to external 
audit.  Once that audit is completed then the Statement will be submitted to this 
committee for formal scrutiny and approval. 
 
A copy of the draft Statement of Accounts is attached at Appendix A. 
 
Recommendations 
 
(a)  That the contents of the draft Statement of Accounts for 2010/11 be noted.  
 
b)  That the financing of capital expenditure incurred during 2010/11, as set 
out in Appendix A be approved. 
 
Reasons 
 
It is a statutory requirement, contained in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 that 
the Council produces a Statement of Accounts detailing its financial transactions for the 
year and its position at the year end.  It is also a requirement that the financing of capital 
expenditure incurred in 2010/11 is approved. 

 
1. Background 

 
1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 govern the way in which a local authority 

should present its financial affairs.  These require that a local authority must produce a 
Statement of Accounts for each financial year detailing its financial transactions for the 
year and its position at the year end and that this Statement be scrutinised and approved 
by an appropriate committee, in this case the Audit and Risk Committee.  The Statement 
is produced in a standardised form in line with CIPFA (the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy) guidelines. 
 

1.2 As reported to you at your meeting on 18 April, the 2011 Regulations no longer require 
the Statement of Accounts to be approved by 30 June (as was the case for previous 
statements up and including the one for 2009/10).  Instead the Regulations state that 
approval must be given by 30 September.  There were two practical reasons for making 
this change.  The first, specific to 2010/11, was that this would give more time to 
complete the accounts, having regard to the changes and complexity involved in 
converting to an International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) compliant format 

Page 13



APPENDIX A 

(see later paragraphs).  The second was that the government felt that it was better to 
gain approval of the Statement of Accounts once, following its audit by the external 
auditor.  Detailed scrutiny of the statement would take place at that stage. Members 
would, therefore, know that the Statement was not subject to changes required as a 
result of audit findings, and could focus their scrutiny on what the information in the 
Statement showed about the Council’s financial position and what this meant for the 
Council going forward.  
 

1.3 The Regulations require (as previously) the draft Statement of Accounts to be certified 
by the responsible financial officer, who is the Executive Director (Resources and 
Support Services), as presenting a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position 
by 30 June and this has been done.  On presentation to you for approval the final 
audited version of the Statement will be recertified by him. 
 

1.4 The annual statutory audit commenced on 4 July 2011 during which the external auditor 
is required to ascertain that the accounts present a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Borough Council and to ensure that they have been produced in 
accordance with all relevant codes of practice.  This should allow ample time for the 
audit to be concluded and any amendments required to be made and a final version of 
the Statement of Accounts produced for submission to your committee for scrutiny and 
approval at the meeting scheduled for 26 September 2011. 
 

1.5 Although it is no longer necessary to gain approval of the statement of accounts until 
September, it is felt that members will want to receive a report on the outturn position for 
2010/11 before then.  Accordingly, the draft Statement is being reported to you now, for 
information, together with a commentary on the main points of interest in the accounts.  
It should be noted that it is not intended that this meeting should be the forum for the 
formal scrutiny of the accounts, although if members wish to raise any queries these will, 
of course, be responded to.  The intention is rather to report on the 2010/11 outturn and 
year end financial position and any ongoing financial implications arising there from. 
 

1.6 From previous reports that you have received, you will be aware that the 2010/11 
Statement of Accounts will be the first to be prepared in an IFRS compliant format.  This 
means that there are numerous changes to the layout and contents compared to the 
previous Statement.  The primary statements are now the Statement of Movement in 
Reserves, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet 
and the Cash Flow Statement.  Because the adoption of IFRS has required many 
changes in accounting practices and to the format and contents of the Statement of 
Accounts, the comparative figures for the previous accounting period, 2009/10 and 
balances as at 31 March 2010, have been restated to conform to IFRS.  This means that 
some figures and the Statements and Notes which contain them are not directly 
comparable to those shown in the published 2009/10 Statement of Accounts.  
 

1.7 Training will be provided by the Audit Commission’s Audit Manager for Newcastle 
Borough Council for committee members prior to commencing the main business on 
your agenda.  This is aimed at giving an understanding of the background to the 
implementation of IFRS and the main changes to the Statement of Accounts. 
 

1.8 Elsewhere on your agenda the Annual Governance Statement is being re-submitted to 
you for approval.  Whilst the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 no longer require this 
to be included in the Statement of Accounts, they require it to be published, so it is 
intended to continue to include it in the published Statement of Accounts.  
 

Page 14



APPENDIX A 

1.9 It is also required that the financing of capital expenditure incurred in the year be 
approved.  Accordingly, Appendix B sets out the expenditure for 2010/11 and the ways 
in which it has been financed. 
 

2. The General Fund Budget 
 

2.1 The General Fund is the main account of the Council and relates to all of those services 
which are funded by the Council Tax, Business Rates and Formula Grant from the 
Government.  
 

2.2 The budget for the General Fund for 2010/11 was originally set in February 2010 and 
amounted to a net total of £17,866,650.  The eventual outturn for the year was an 
adverse variance against this figure, of £87,019. 
 

3. The General Fund Outturn 
 

3.1 As mentioned above, the out-turn in respect of the General Fund Revenue Account was 
£87,019 worse than the original estimate.  As a proportion of the budget the deficit 
represents a little under 0.5%. It was known in advance that 2010/11 would once again 
be a difficult year for the Council financially, owing to the continuation of the economic 
recession which would particularly have an impact on some of its income sources.  This 
was indeed the case.  A number of areas of income, largely ones that are sensitive to 
the state of the local and national economy, were particularly affected as shown in the 
following table: 

   Budget Outturn Variance 

 £000s £000s £000s 

Local Land Charges 388 178 210 

Cremation Fees           
663 

604   59 

Lancaster Buildings Rents 317   87 230 

Planning Applications Fees 421 377   44 

Car Parking Income        
1,195 

961 234 

Markets Stalls Income 259 209  50 

Total        
3,243 

       
2,416 

827 

 
Several of these areas were additionally affected by particular circumstances relating to 
2010/11.  Bereavement Services income was depressed owing to closure of the 
crematorium whilst replacement of cremators took place, Lancaster Buildings was 
disrupted by refurbishment works, now completed, and the extensive repair works at the 
Midway car park will have had an effect on income.  
 
Part of this shortfall has been covered by the provision included in the budget for income 
loss of £200,000 and otherwise largely by favourable variances on other budget heads. 

Page 15



APPENDIX A 

 
The outturn reflects the monitoring statements provided to members throughout the 
year, which from period 7 (October) onwards indicated a negative variance of between 
£30,000 and £51,000.  
 

3.2 An amount of £87,019 has been transferred from the Budget Support Fund to cover the 
negative variance.  
 

3.3 As can be seen in Note 22 to the Accounts, the balance on the Budget Support Fund 
now stands at £1.093m, a reduction of £0.535m from the 1 April 2010 balance.  This 
movement comprises: 
 

o £0.468m transferred from the Fund to support the 2010/11 budget, in accordance 
with the budget setting resolution of February 2010;  

o £0.087m transferred from the Fund to make good the negative variance;  
o net transfers of £0.020m into the Fund in respect of budget underspendings 

carried forward from one year to another.  
 

3.4 £368,000 is to be used from the Budget Support Fund to support the 2011/12 Budget 
which was approved on 23 February 2011.  
 

3.5 Experience to date in the current year is that income continues to be depressed and that 
the levels allowed for in the 2011/12 budget may not be achieved.  Until the country 
emerges from the recession this is likely to be an ongoing situation.  The regular budget 
monitoring reports provided by the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Resources and Efficiency 
will keep members updated as the year proceeds. 
 

3.6 The report you received in relation to the 2008/09 accounts referred to the Council’s 
frozen investment with Heritable Bank.  At that time the amount frozen was £2,509,192, 
comprising £2,500,000 capital and £9,192 interest accrued from the date of deposit to 
the date the bank went into administration.  CIPFA issued a recommendation to Councils 
with frozen investments in Heritable that they should make provision for the amount 
deemed to be at risk, based on a possible timetable (five payments between July 2009 
and July 2013) for repayment of 80 per cent of the frozen funds and non-payment of the 
remaining 20 per cent. CIPFA also supplied a model to be used to calculate the amount 
to be provided for, which includes notional interest payable on the frozen funds over the 
four year period (which is in fact unlikely to be paid).  Applying this calculation gave an 
amount of £795,202 in respect of the Council’s investment.  Provision was made for this 
amount in the 2008/09 accounts by way of an impairment charge.  The actual 
experience of repayments made by the Administrator during 2009/10 was better than 
anticipated by them and in the original CIPFA model. In fact almost 35 per cent of the 
frozen amount had been repaid as at 31 March 2010.  As a result CIPFA issued a 
revised model, allowing for a further 50 per cent to be repaid, to be used to calculate the 
amount of the impairment provision, taking account of the improved position.  The 
resultant recalculation allowed the impairment provision to be reduced by £155,085 in 
2009/10. CIPFA have issued a further revised impairment calculator to reflect the 
position at 31 March 2011.  This results in the amount of impairment required to be 
made remaining virtually unchanged (an increase of £1,837) and this adjustment has 
accordingly been made in the 2010/11 accounts.  As at 15 July 2011 £1,514,577 has 
been received from the Heritable Bank Administrator, which represents 60.4% of the 
amount frozen.  
 

3.7 The Statement of Accounts includes (at Note 42) the accounts of the North Staffordshire 
Building Control Partnership, the vehicle through which this Council delivers the Building 
Control service. Revised Building Control Regulations now permit the publication of 

Page 16



APPENDIX A 

jointly delivered services to be published in this way rather than separated out into the 
elements relating to each individual partner for publication in those partners’ Statements. 
Overall the Partnership made a small surplus of £2,305 in respect of fee earning 
activities, which complies with the Regulations which require that a break-even position 
should be achieved over a number of years.  
 

4. The General Fund as shown in the Statement of Accounts 
 

4.1 The transactions of the General Fund are shown in the Statement of Accounts in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CI&ES) and the Movement in 
Reserves Statement.  Further detail of the reserves movements is given in notes 7, 8 
and 22.  In effect, the CI&ES contains all of the expenditure and income of the General 
Fund whilst the Movement in Reserves Statement shows the transfers from reserves 
which have taken place to arrive at the final balance for the year.  The Movement in 
Reserves Statement also shows, at its foot, the final year-end balances on the different 
classes of reserve. As can be seen, the General Fund Balance has not changed from its 
opening balance of £1.750m.  This still represents the minimum balance required, 
calculated by means of a risk based assessment, to safeguard against foreseeable 
variations in relation to the General Fund Revenue Budget. 
 

4.2 The CI&ES shows a surplus of £17.608m for the year.  At first sight this may seem 
strange but it should be remembered that this is the balance before transfers to and from 
reserves are taken into account, via the Movement in Reserves Statement.  All of this 
balance has been reversed out by net transfers to reserves as shown in the Movement 
in Reserves Statement.  These transfers are either to meet the cost of expenditure 
contained in the Cost of Services, to meet the deficit of £0.087m or to reverse out 
various charges representing proper accounting practice which have been made, as 
required by the CIPFA Accounting Code of Practice, but which are to be removed from 
the final total as such charges are, by law, not to be met by Council Tax Payers. 
Examples of these are various capital charges (such as in relation to depreciation of 
assets or where an asset has been revalued downwards) and pensions fund 
transactions.  
 

4.3 In addition, the position as shown in the CI&ES differs from that shown in the old style 
Income and Expenditure Account in that it now includes the surplus or deficit on 
revaluation of fixed assets and actuarial gains or losses on pensions assets and 
liabilities, which were previously shown in a separate Statement, the Statement of Total 
Recognised Gains and Losses, which no longer exists under the IFRS regime. Both of 
these items are subject to significant volatility, as can be seen from the pensions amount 
changing from a positive value of £27.025m in 2009/10 to a negative sum of £9.610m in 
2010/11.  This is largely due to the Pensions Fund actuary adjusting his calculations to 
take account of changes to pension increases announced in the Chancellor’s budget 
statement, which result in a large negative amount being credited to the General Fund 
Revenue Account.  All of the balance of (£17,608m) has been reversed out by net 
transfers from reserves as shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 

4.4 Notes 9, 10 and 11 provide a breakdown of the Other Operating Expenditure, Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure and Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income, 
respectively, which appear in the bottom half of the CI&ES.  
 

5. The Collection Fund 
 

5.1 The Collection Fund is a separate account which contains the financial details which 
refer to the collection of Council Tax, Business Rates and the former Community 
Charge.  The purpose of this account is to illustrate how much of the above income has 

Page 17



APPENDIX A 

been collected and to see how this compares to the amounts of the levies that have 
been made for the Borough Council, the County Council, the Police Authority and the 
Fire Authority.  
 

5.2 This is a somewhat technical account but the key issue is to see if the account is in 
surplus or deficit and to what extent. In collecting income the Borough Council has to 
make an assessment of how much will ultimately be collected.  The Collection Fund had 
an accumulated surplus of £126,525 as at 31 March 2011 - this will be deducted from 
the amounts that will be collected in 2011/12 and will be used in calculating how much 
Council Tax will be levied in 2012/13.  
 

5.3 As can be seen the Fund achieved a surplus of £414,880 for the year.  This was mainly 
due to the precepting authorities reimbursing the Fund for past deficits, in proportion to 
the amount of their precept for the year, as they are required to do by the legislation 
governing the operation of the Collection Fund, the total amount of these payments 
being £106,105, of which the Borough Council’s share was £15,150.  This continues the 
trend towards a surplus situation which became apparent in 2009/10.  
 

6. The Balance Sheet 
 

6.1 The main features of the Balance Sheet are as follows: 
 

• There are Net Tangible Fixed Assets of £58.086m which consist of Plant, 
Property and Equipment, Investment Properties and Assets Held for Sale.  Notes 
12 and 13 to the Statement of Accounts show an analysis of the first two classes 
of asset, together with a summary of movements during 2010/11.  The main 
reasons for the increase in the fixed assets balance are: the construction of the 
Jubilee 2 project and to a lesser extent the fitting of an additional replacement 
cremator and the construction of burial facilities at Audley.  

 

• Investments (long and short term) amounted to £18.573m and have reduced by 
£6.154m compared to 31 March 2010. In particular, this reflects the use of capital 
receipts to finance projects in the capital programme (£7.129m).  Owing to the 
current situation in the financial markets, the emphasis is now on short term 
investments as a means of reducing the risk of exposure to default by 
organisations with whom money has been placed, so all of the Council’s current 
investments are short term (£18.361m).  The amount of £0.212m shown in the 
Balance Sheet as long term relates to an element of the Heritable Bank 
investment which, according to the CIPFA Accounting Code has to be classified 
as long term. 
 

• The amount owed to the Council by its short term debtors (after a deduction for 
the estimated amount which might be at risk of non-payment) is £9.423m. 
Further analysis of this amount is shown in Note 17 to the Statement of 
Accounts.  Short Term Debtors have decreased by £1.084m compared with 31 
March 2010.  The main reason for this decrease is the amount overpaid to the 
Department of Communities and Local Government in respect of the National 
Non Domestic Rates Pool, which was £4.337m at 31 March 2009 and is £3.104 
at 31 March 2011, a reduction of £1.233m.  This happens because payments are 
made based on an estimate made before the year commences with the final 
amount due determined after the year end from data in the accounts and the 
NNDR collection system.  The overpayment will be refunded in 2011/12.  
 

Page 18



APPENDIX A 

• The balance shown as a Long Term Debtor of £1.971m relates to the balance 
owing to the Council in respect of properties let on finance lease terms 
(£1.729m), the outstanding loan to Kidsgrove Town Council in respect of works 
to the Victoria Hall Kidsgrove (£0.232m) and a small balance relating to Housing 
Act mortgages.  The balance in relation to property leases arises as a result of 
the implementation of IFRS which has resulted in some of the council’s leases 
being reclassified as finance leases rather than operating leases.  This requires 
part of the amount remaining to be paid over the lease term to be shown in this 
way. 
 

• The amount the Council owes to its creditors is £10.918m. Further analysis of 
this amount is shown in Note 20 to the Statement of Accounts. Creditors have 
increased by £1.786m compared to 31 March 2009.  The main reason for this is 
Housing Benefit Grant from the government in respect of rent allowances, where 
£2.785m more has been overpaid to the Council, again as a result of payments 
being based on estimates made before the year commences.  This is 
counterbalanced by a decrease in the balance owing to sundry creditors for 
supplies of goods and services of £0.750m.  
 

• Cash at bank and held by collectors, cashiers and as petty cash floats has 
changed from an in hand position of £0.376m at 31 March 2010 to £0.774m at 
31 March 2011 . This is mainly as a result of a reduction in the actual year end 
bank balance shown on the bank statements of some £0.421m, reflecting 
differing cash flow positions at the respective year-ends. 
 

• The Liability relating to Defined Benefit Pension Schemes decreased from 
£68.703m to £46.698m.  This decrease is mirrored by an decrease in the 
Pensions Reserve balance.  The decrease arises from the changes in actuarial 
assumptions referred to earlier in paragraph 4.3. These amounts are required to 
be included in the Council’s accounts as a result of the application of 
International Accounting Standard 19 (IAS19) and the CIPFA Code of Accounting 
Practice. Neither directly relate to Borough Council transactions - they relate to 
those of the Staffordshire County Council Pension Fund of which the Council is a 
member and represent the Council’s share of net scheme liabilities (after 
deduction of the value of scheme assets).  Whilst the net liability indicates the 
Council’s long term commitment to pay retirement benefits, statutory 
arrangements for funding the deficit mean that its financial position remains 
healthy. Further details relating to the Pension Fund are contained in Note 38 to 
the Accounts. 
 

7. Reserves 
 

7.1 The Council has usable reserves totalling £16.342m. Note 22 to the Accounts shows a 
full analysis of all these reserves.  The main items, with their balances at 31 March 2011, 
are: 
 

• Capital Receipts Reserve (£5.985m) 

• LSVT (Large Scale Voluntary Transfer - Housing) Fund (£2.269m) 

• Special Projects (Economic Development) Fund (£0.883m) 

• Capital Grants Unapplied (£1.935m) 

• Budget Support Fund (£1.093m) 

• Contingency Reserve Fund (£0.114m) 

• Insurance Fund (£0.338m) 

• New Initiatives Fund (£0.201m) 

Page 19



APPENDIX A 

• ICT Development Fund (£0.800m) 

• Renewal and Repairs Fund (£0.096m) 

• RENEW Reserve (£0.142m)   

• Equipment Replacement Fund (£0.157m) 

• Standards Fund (£0.95m) 
 

7.2 Generally the level of reserves has reduced compared with their opening balances at the 
beginning of 2010/11.  
 

7.3 The first three of the above reserves are fully committed to financing the current capital 
programme, whilst the majority of the balance on the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve 
is either already committed to finance current schemes or is earmarked for future 
schemes.  The ICT Development Fund is also committed to finance new or replacement 
ICT software and hardware. 
 

7.4 The Organisational Development and Change Management Funds (with a combined 
opening balance £0.316m) have been fully used during 2010/11 and the Contingency 
Reserve balance has reduced from £0.540m to £0.114m.  This is largely due to funding 
redundancy and actuarial strain pensions fund payments in relation to staff leaving the 
Council’s employment as a result of restructurings following the budget service reviews.  
The balance of the Contingency Reserve remains above its agreed minimum level of 
£0.100m. 
 

7.5 The Budget Support Fund and General Fund Balance are discussed at paragraphs 3.2 
to 3.4 above and 4.1, respectively.  
 

7.6 The levels of reserves will be considered as part of the budget preparation process for 
2012/13.  Some may require “topping up”, either from the revenue budget or a transfer 
from another reserve.  In particular, the Renewals and Repairs Fund needs to be 
reviewed to ensure that it is adequate to maintain property assets in a fit state.  
 

7.7 Unusable Reserves total £13.290m.  These were established as a result of the need to 
enable various accounting transactions and are not available for use to meet 
expenditure, either revenue or capital. 
 

8. List of Appendices 
 
Appendix A - Statement of Accounts 2010/11 (Draft) NOT INCLUDED IN THIS 
APPENDIX 
Appendix B - Financing of Capital Expenditure 

 
 

Page 20



APPENDIX B 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
  

STATEMENT 

OF 

ACCOUNTS 

2010/11 
 

Page 21



Page 2 

Contents 
 

Page  

3 Foreword 

12 Statement of Responsibilities 

13 Movement in Reserves Statement 

15 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

16 Balance Sheet 

18 Cash Flow Statement 

19 Note 1 Accounting Policies 

31 Note 2 Accounting Standards Issued, Not Adopted 

31 Note 3 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 

32 Note 4 Assumptions Made about the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty 

32 Note 5 Material Items of Income and Expense 

32 Note 6 Events After the Balance Sheet Date 

33 Note 7 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations 

37 Note 8 Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 

37 Note 9 Other Operating Expenditure 

38 Note 10 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 

38 Note 11 Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 

39 Note 12 Property, Plant and Equipment 

42 Note 13 Investment Properties 

42 Note 14 Intangible Assets 

43 Note 15 Financial Instruments 

45 Note 16 Inventories 

45 Note 17 Debtors 

45 Note 18 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

46 Note 19 Assets Held for Sale 

46 Note 20 Creditors 

47 Note 21 Provisions 

48 Note 22 Usable Reserves 

50 Note 23 Unusable Reserves 

51 Note 24 Operating Activities 

51 Note 25 Investing Activities 

51 Note 26 Financing Activities 

52 Note 27 Amounts Reported for Resource Allocation Decisions 

55 Note 28 Trading Operations 

55 Note 29 Members’ Allowances 

56 Note 30 Officers’ Remuneration 

57 Note 31 External Audit Costs 

58 Note 32 Grant Income 

59 Note 33 Related Parties 

60 Note 34 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 

60 Note 35 Leases 

63 Note 36 Impairment Losses 

63 Note 37 Termination Benefits 

63 Note 38 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes 

68 Note 39 Contingent Liabilities 

68 Note 40 Contingent Assets 

69 Note 41 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments 

72 Note 42 Building Control Account 

73 Note 43 Material Differences between amounts presented under the 2009 Code of 
Accounting Practice and the IFRS based 2010 Code of Accounting Practice 

77 Note 44 Trusts and Other Similar Funds 

78 Collection Fund and Notes 

81 Audit Certificate 

82 Glossary of Terms 

Page 22



Page 3 

Foreword 
 

by the Executive Director - Resources and Support Services 

 
(a) Introduction 
 
Welcome to Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough Council’s Statement of Accounts for the financial year 
2010/11.  It sets out a summary of the money that the Council received and what it has been spent on 
and highlights specific issues regarding its financial position at 31 March 2011.  
 
(b) Regulations Governing the Production of the Statement of Accounts and changes arising 

from the adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 
 
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 and the 
requirements of the 2010/11 “Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting” published by the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). 
 
The format of the Statement of Accounts has changed fundamentally from that of recent years.  This is 
because International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) became applicable to the compilation and 
publication of local authority accounts with effect from the financial year 2010/11 and the 2010/11 Code 
has been re-written to reflect the consequent changes, which are considerable.  The purpose of adopting 
IFRS is that financial statements produced anywhere in the world, based on IFRS principles, will be 
directly comparable. IFRS is also the standard already used in the compilation of the government’s own 
accounts and by public bodies such as the National Health Service and those of most commercial 
organisations in this country.  
 
One immediately noticeable effect arising from the change is that the length of the Statement has 
increased significantly, particularly since IFRS requires more extensive notes to the accounts.  The 
primary statements are now the Statement of Movement in Reserves, the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet and the Cash Flow Statement. 
 
Because the adoption of IFRS has required many changes in accounting practices and to the format and 
contents of the Statement of Accounts, the comparative figures for the previous accounting period, 
2009/10 and balances as at 31 March 2010, have been restated to conform to IFRS.  This means that 
some figures and the Statements and Notes which contain them are not directly comparable to those 
shown in the published 2009/10 Statement of Accounts. Note 43 sets out the main areas where 
restatements have been made, summarising the nature of the changes and the ways in which the 
financial data has been amended. 
 
Under the provisions of Section 15/16 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011, the accounts were made available for inspection between 4 July and 29 July 2011, as 
advertised in the local press. 
 
The accounts were approved by the Audit and Risk Committee on 26 September 2011 in accordance 
with paragraphs 8 (3) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011.  The signature of the Committee 
Chair (who presided over the meeting) is included at the conclusion of this foreword in line with the above 
regulations as evidence of approval of the 2010/11 Statement of Accounts. 
 
(c) General Accounting Policies 
 
The accounting policies adopted by the Council comply with the relevant recommended accounting 
practices unless indicated otherwise and are explained in Note 1 to the Accounts.  The Council's 
expenditure has been analysed in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
according to the standard classification recommended by CIPFA. In addition, the analysis of capital 
expenditure follows CIPFA’s recommendations showing non-current and intangible assets 
separately.  These recommended practices, classifications and recommendations have been 
re-issued by the relevant bodies to conform to IFRS requirements.  There have been no changes in 
accounting policies other than those arising from the adoption of IFRS. 
 
There has been no change in the Council's statutory functions during the year. 

Page 23



Page 4 

 
(d) Statement of Accounts 
 
The information contained within these accounts is presented as simply and clearly as possible. 
However, the accounts of a local authority are both technical and complex.  This foreword explains the 
statements and sections in this document, and provides a summary of the Council’s financial 
performance for 2010/11 and its financial prospects for future years. 
 
The Borough Council's Accounts for the year 2010/11 are set out in the following pages and consist of 
the following: - 
 
Page   

 Statement of 
Responsibilities 

− Setting out the Council and Executive Director – 
Resources and Support Services responsibilities in 
relation to financial administration and accounting. 

 Movement in Reserves 
Statement 

− Showing movements in reserves split between usable 
and unusable reserves. The Statement also reconciles 
the outturn on the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement to the General Fund Balance 
established by the relevant statutory provisions that 
specify the net expenditure the Council needs to take 
into account when setting local taxes.  

 Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

− Showing the net cost for the year of all the functions for 
which the Council is responsible and demonstrates 
how that cost has been financed from general 
government grants and income from local taxpayers. 

 Balance Sheet − Which sets out the financial position of the Council on 
the 31 March 2011. It provides details of the Council’s 
balances and reserves and current assets employed in 
Council operations together with summarised 
information on the fixed assets held. 

 Cash Flow Statement − Summarising the total cash movement of the Council's 
transactions. 

 Notes to the Accounts − To provide explanation and analysis of items contained 
in the above accounting statements. 

− Note 1 sets out the accounting policies which have 
been employed in compiling the Council’s accounts. 

 Collection Fund − Reflecting the statutory requirement for the authority to 
maintain a separate account providing details of 
receipts of Council Tax and Business Rates and the 
associated payments to precepting authorities and to 
the National Non-Domestic Rate (NNDR) Pool.  

 Audit Opinion − The External Auditor’s opinion on the Accounts. 
 
(e) Accountability/Financial Reporting 
 
Local authorities are governed by a rigorous structure of controls to provide stakeholders with the 
confidence that public money has been properly accounted for.  As part of the process of accountability, 
the Borough Council is required to produce a Statement of Accounts, in order to inform stakeholders that 
it has properly accounted for all the public money received and spent, and that the financial standing of 
the Council is on a secure basis. 
 
The Statement of Accounts concentrates on clear and accurate reporting of the financial position of the 
Council in relation to a particular year. It does not, however, aim to fulfil the role of an annual report of a 
company.  This would duplicate much of the work published in other documents produced by the Council, 
in particular, the Corporate Plan and the Annual Report.  

Page 24



Page 5 

 
(f) Economic Downturn and Public Expenditure Reductions 
The current recession affecting the British economy has continued to have an adverse effect upon the 
Council’s finances, in common with other local authorities.  In particular this has impacted upon the 
amount of income received from land charges and planning fees together with reduced rental income 
from commercial properties and income from car parks. Income in relation to the last two of these was 
also affected by improvement and repair work being carried out to two major properties, Lancaster 
Buildings and the Midway multi-storey car park.  Interest rates continue to be at extremely low levels with 
a consequent effect on investment income, which is much reduced compared to that of a few years ago. 
The scale, length and depth of the recession are difficult to accurately predict.  The impact is being 
closely monitored and evaluated in order to assess the financial risk to the Council’s finances. 
 
The continuing poor state of the nation’s finances, resulting in the need to achieve significant reductions 
in public expenditure, led the government to cease payment of a number of specific revenue grants. 
These were in relation to the Local Authority Business Growth Incentive (LABGI), part of the Area Based 
Grant and Planning Delivery Grant. Altogether the value of the grants lost amounted to some £295,000. 
 
(g) General Fund Revenue Budget Outturn 
 
The outturn position in relation to the General Fund Revenue Budget was an adverse variance of 
£87,019, i.e the net budget was £17.867m and the outturn was £17.954m.  
 
This was in line with budget monitoring predictions of a final outturn close to the original budget for the 
year.  The difficult operational conditions arising from the factors outlined in the previous paragraph 
meant that 2010/11 would be a challenging year financially for the Council. Members and officers have 
continued, therefore, to operate within an environment of tight budget management to, wherever 
possible, mitigate any adverse impact.  
 
As a proportion of the budget the deficit represents a little under 0.5%.  
 
The deficit was met by a transfer from the Budget Support Fund. 
 
(h) Financial Summary 2010/11 
 
The financial activities of the Council can be categorised as either Revenue or Capital: 
 

- Revenue spending represents the costs of consuming supplies and providing services delivered 
by the Council in its day to day business during the year 

- Capital spending relates to items which will provide benefit to the Borough over a number of 
years 

 
Revenue Expenditure 
 
Where does the money come from? 
 
Local authorities receive income from the Government in the form of grants, from households in the form 
of Council Tax and from consumers in respect of fees and charges.  
 
Each year the Government works out the amount of local government spending it is prepared to support 
through grant. Each local authority is allocated what is known as Formula Grant, which comprises 
revenue support grant and redistributed business rates income.  In determining formula grant allocation, 
the Government takes into account the relative needs of different authorities, including population, 
deprivation levels, number of commuters, visitors to an area etc. In 2010/11, the Borough Council 
received a formula grant allocation of £11.079m. 
 
Local residents pay Council Tax. This is a property based charge and the amount payable depends on 
the value band that the property is placed into by the Valuation Office. 
 
Owners of businesses and properties pay the National Non-Domestic Rate (NNDR) set by Central 
Government, again based on values set by the Valuation Office.  These “business rates” are collected by 

Page 25



Page 6 

the Borough Council and paid over to the Government, who then redistribute the national pool to each 
local authority as part of their total formula grant income. 
 
The gross income to pay for its services which was included in the Borough Council’s Revenue Budget 
for 2010/11 was £56.25m, made up as follows:- 
 

Income Budget - Total £56.25m

Government Formula 

Grant

£11.08m

20%

Housing Benefits 

Grant

£17.86m

31%

Other Grants

£9.63m

17%

Council Tax

£6.80m

12%

Interes t Income

£0.61m

1%

Rents

£1.67m

3%
Other Income

£0.94m

2%

Fees & Charges

£7.66m

14%

 
 
What we planned to spend 
 
The Council set an original Net Revenue Budget for 2010/11 of £17.867m on 24 February 2010. 
 
What we actually spent  
 
Actual net expenditure was £17.954m. As mentioned earlier, this represents an adverse variance 
compared to the original budget of some £87,000.  
 
This amount has been transferred from the Budget Support Fund.  The balance on the Fund, as at 
31 March 2010 is £1.093m, as against its balance at 1 April 2010, which was £1.628m.  In addition to the 
transfer from the Fund of £87,000 some £0.020m was transferred to it to meet 2010/11 commitments 
carried forward.  £0.468m of the Fund was also used, to provide general support for the budget in 
accordance with the approved budget for 2010/11. 
 
How the money was spent 
 
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (page   ) summarises the resources that have 
been generated and consumed in providing services and managing the Council during 2010/11. It shows 
that Gross Expenditure for the year was £71.65m across defined service areas prescribed by CIPFA to 
facilitate comparison between councils. 
 

Page 26



Page 7 

Gross Expenditure - Total £71.65m

Housing Services

£30.89m

42%

Central Services to the 

Public

£11. 17m

16%

H ighways Roads & 

Transport Services

£4.29m

6%

Cultural, Environmental 

& Planning Services

£22.78m

32%

Non-Distr ibuted Costs

-£0.01m

0%

Corporate &  Democrat ic 

Core

£2.53m

4%

 
 
Actual Gross Expenditure is higher than the budgeted income for a number of reasons, chiefly additional 
charges to the revenue account required by capital accounting rules and additional expenditure relating to 
rent allowances (which are compensated for by additional transfers from reserves or additional housing 
benefits grant income).  It is also not possible to make a strict comparison between the two figures as the 
income total shown in the earlier chart is after allowing for transfers to or from reserves whilst the Gross 
Expenditure total includes expenditure which is to be met from reserves. 
 
Capital Expenditure 
 
Capital expenditure includes expenditure such as the acquisition, construction, repair and maintenance of 
fixed assets.  
 
Notes 12, 13, 14 and 34 to the accounts show the Council’s capital spending for 2010/11 together with 
the means by which it has been financed. 
 
As capital spending contributes to the Council’s aims and objectives over more than one year, the 
Council plans and budgets for expenditure by means of a “rolling” programme. This programme was last 
updated in February 2011. 
 
There are a number of sources of funds which may be available to finance the Council’s capital 
expenditure. 
 
In 2010/11 and previous years the major source of finance has been unapplied capital receipts.  These 
have arisen from sales of land, property and the sale of its housing stock a number of years ago.  
 
Another significant source of funding is contributions from external parties towards the cost of capital 
projects.  Such contributions may be made by developers as part of planning agreements, by various 
statutory and non-statutory bodies towards projects which promote the aims with which those bodies are 
concerned, by grant-aiding bodies, such as the National Lottery Fund, and by government departments 
where national policy dictates that local authorities should be assisted, by the payment of grant, to carry 
out desirable projects.  
 

Page 27



Page 8 

Some of the funds which the Council holds in reserves may be used to finance capital expenditure. 
Significant specific reserves which can be used for this purpose are the New Initiatives, Special Projects 
(Economic Development) and ICT Development Funds. In addition the Contingency Reserve may be 
used to meet capital costs. The balances on the Council’s reserves are shown in Note 22 (page   ) to the 
accounts. 
 
A small amount of capital expenditure may be financed directly from the General Fund Revenue Account.  
 
Borrowing is another means that can be used to finance capital expenditure.  This is not presently 
employed by the Council and it currently has no long term debt.  Whether it is employed in the future will 
depend upon its cost relative to other means of capital financing and the availability (or lack of it) of other 
sources of capital financing.  
 
Short term loans, of less than 365 days, are however, an important means of stabilising the Council’s 
bank balance and such loans are taken, at commercial rates via the money market, as and when 
necessary, according to the cash flow situation pertaining at any particular time. In addition, the Council 
has an overdraft facility arranged with its bankers which can be used to cover any unexpected shortfalls 
of income. 
 
(i) Financial Prospects 
 
Revenue 
 
The Council is committed to achieving excellence in its service delivery, as evidenced by its service 
reviews and transformation programmes.  Integral to this ambition is the need to effectively target its 
financial resources in line with its stated aims and objectives against the background of an 
unprecedented economic situation referred to earlier. 
 
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) - which forecasts future years’ budgets taking 
into account the national and local financial situation together with the Council’s priorities - identified 
shortfalls for each year from 2011/12 to 2015/16. 
 
The original forecast shortfall for 2011/12 was £2.7m. On 23 February 2011 the Council set a balanced 
budget without any increase in council tax.  This was mainly due to efficiency savings of £2.1m.  The 
majority of these were identified through a review of the Council’s services focussing on particular areas 
where it was felt savings could be achieved.  
 
The government’s desire to achieve significant reductions in public expenditure will inevitably impact upon 
the Council’s own finances. 2011/12 saw a significant reduction in central government support by way of 
the formula grant which will be repeated in 2012/13 (a reduction of just under £1.0m from the 2011/12 
level).  Indications for the following two years are for further reductions to be made in the amount of 
formula grant to be paid to the Council.  Whilst these may not be to the same extent as those suffered in 
2011/12 and 2012/13, the result is likely to be that grant will be reduced by at least some £0.35m in both 
2013/14 and 2014/15.  
 
Work has taken place to meet the challenge posed by the consequential need for budget reductions, in 
particular the completion of a comprehensive review of all services to identify savings, to take effect in the 
2011/12 and 2012/13 budgets. The Council has also instituted a Transformation Programme to effect 
improvements to working practices and to make optimum use of new technology, which should have a 
beneficial effect on its budgets through reducing overall costs. 
 
Capital 
 
The capital programme approved on 23 February 2011 provided for total capital spending of £21.639m 
over two financial years.  
 
The Council will have sufficient available resources to finance this programme in the form of unapplied 
capital receipts, reserves, contributions and grants.  However, following completion of the existing 
programme sources of capital funding held by the Council itself will be at low levels, the Special Projects 
(Economic Development) Fund being exhausted whilst the remaining balance on the ICT Development 

Page 28



Page 9 

Fund is earmarked for funding ICT system replacement and enhancement rather than general capital 
investment.  Resources will, therefore, be insufficient to support a future programme of capital investment 
of any significant size. 
 
There will, however, be a continuing need for some capital investment to maintain service continuity, 
particularly in replacement plant and equipment and to maintain operational buildings in a fit state. If this 
need is to be satisfied, it will be necessary to look to generate capital receipts from sales of assets or to 
make use of Prudential (affordable) borrowing.  For some projects it may be possible to obtain some 
grant income or contributions from partner organisations but in the current economic climate such 
opportunities may be limited. 
 
The Council has recognised the need to continually monitor and review its capital programme and 
resources.  The “Capital Programme Review Group” which meets every month sets the overall Capital 
Strategy and Asset Management Plan within the context of the Medium Term Financial Strategy; to 
ensure that projects are delivered against priorities and support service improvements; to monitor the 
programme on a month by month basis and to ensure value for money is achieved i.e. outcomes are fit 
for purpose and investment is targeted to maximise the needs and outcomes for local people.  
 
Reserves 
 
The Council holds a number of reserves which have been established either to meet specific categories 
of expenditure or are of a general nature. These reserves are listed in Note 22 (page  ) to the accounts. 
Some of the reserves may be used to finance both capital and revenue expenditure. The levels of 
reserves are kept under review to determine their adequacy to meet the Council’s spending commitments 
and future plans. 
 
The results of past surpluses on the Revenue Account are held as a Fund Balance which can be used to 
contribute when required to a particular year’s revenue account. The required level is determined by 
reference to a risk assessment of factors which might adversely impact upon a year’s revenue budget on 
a “worst case” basis. The current level, as at 31 March 2011 is £1.75m. In addition the Budget Support 
Fund has been built up over recent years from such surpluses and is available for supporting future 
years’ revenue budgets. 
 
It can be seen from the details shown in Note 22 that the Organisational Development and Change 
Management Funds have been exhausted and the balance on the Contingency Reserve has reduced 
from £0.540m to £0.114m. This is due to meeting the costs of redundancy payments and actuarial strain 
payments to the Pension Fund in respect of staff affected by service restructuring and the abolition of 
some posts, following the implementation of the service review programme. The balance of the 
Contingency Reserve remains above the minimum level of £100,000 required by the Council’s Balances 
and Reserves Strategy. 
 
Partnerships 
 
The Council participates in a number of partnerships. Its contributions towards the partnerships with 
which it is involved may be “in kind”, for example the provision of staff and services, or consist of meeting 
expenses or making contributions towards costs incurred by other partners or their associates. 
 
(j) Asset Impairment 
 
The Council had to impair the value of the assets held in relation to its deposit in the Heritable Bank at the 
end of the 2008/09 financial year. An impairment is a reduction in the value of an asset below its carrying 
amount in the balance sheet.  In doing this the Council followed the guidelines issued by CIPFA’s Local 
Authority Accounting Panel on how to account for the deposit that is considered to be at risk, i.e. to 
assume that 85% of the deposit, plus interest accrued to the date the bank went into liquidation, would be 
repaid.  As at 31 March 2011 just over 50% of the amount deposited has been repaid and a further 
£156,863 (representing a little over 6%) has since been received in 2011/12. 

Page 29



Page 10 

 
(k) Assets and Liabilities Acquired 
 
Land has been acquired for burial facilities at Audley.  Apart from this there have been no significant 
assets or liabilities acquired. 
 
(l) Pensions Scheme Liability 
 
The Liability relating to Defined Benefit Pension Schemes decreased from £68.703m to £46.698m.  This 
decrease is mirrored by a decrease in the Pensions Reserve balance.  These amounts are required to be 
included in the Borough Council’s accounts as a result of the application of International Accounting 
Standard19 (IAS19) and the CIPFA Code of Accounting Practice.  Neither directly relate to Borough 
Council transactions - they relate to those of the Staffordshire County Council Pension Fund of which the 
Council is a member and represent the Council’s share of net scheme liabilities (after deduction of the 
value of scheme assets).  Whilst the net liability indicates the Council’s long term commitment to pay 
retirement benefits, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that its financial position remains 
healthy. 
 
(m) Audit of the Accounts 
 
The Borough Council’s appointed auditors, the Audit Commission, currently undertake the annual audit of 
the accounts.  Their contact details are:- 
 
Tony Corcoran 
District Auditor, Audit Commission 
Opus House 
Priestley Court 
Stafford Technology Park 
Beaconside 
Stafford 
ST18 0LQ 
 
(n) Further Information 
 
Further information about the Accounts is available from: 
 
Kelvin Turner 
Executive Director - Resources and Support Services 
Civic Offices 
Merrial Street 
Newcastle,  
Staffs ST5 2AG 
 
A Summary Financial Statement for 2010/11 is also available, being included in the Council’s Annual 
Report which can be accessed via the Council’s website: www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk. 
 
(o) Comments 
 
If you have any comments about the way that the information is presented in this Statement of Accounts, 
or about possible alternative ways of making the information available, we would be pleased to receive 
them, at the above address. 
 
 
Kelvin Turner 
 
Executive Director - Resources and Support Services 

Page 30



Page 11 

 
(p) Approval of Statement of Accounts 
 
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 require the Statement of Accounts to be considered by 
and approved by a Council Committee or the Full Council and for the Statement to be signed at the 
meeting by the person presiding.  This statement has been approved by the Audit and Risk 
Committee and this is evidenced by the signature of that Committee’s Chair, who presided over the 
meeting, which is shown below. 
 
The Statement of Accounts was approved at a meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee on 
26 September 2011    
  
Signed: (Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee)  Dated: 26 September 2011 

Page 31



Page 12 

Statement of Responsibilities 
The Authority’s Responsibilities 

 
The Authority is required: 

 
to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that 
one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this 
authority, that officer is the Executive Director - Resources and Support Services. 
to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and 
safeguard its assets. 
to approve the Statement of Accounts. 

 
The Executive Director - Resources and Support Services’ Responsibilities 
 
The Executive Director (Resources and Support Services) is responsible for the preparation of the 
authority's statement of accounts which, in terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in Great Britain is required to present a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the authority at the accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 
31 March 2011. 
 
In preparing this statement of accounts, the Executive Director (Resources and Support Services) 
has: 
 
 selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 
 
 made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; 
 
 complied with the Code. 
 
The Executive Director - Resources and Support Services has also: 
 
 kept proper accounting records which were up-to-date; 
 
 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
The Executive Director - Resources and Support Services Certificate 
 
I certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Borough Council as at 31 March 2011 and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2011. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Kelvin Turner 
 
Executive Director - Resources and Support Services   
 
 
Date:   

Page 32



Page 13 

Movement in Reserves Statement 
 
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed 
into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and 
other reserves.  The Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of 
providing the Council’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement.  These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the 
General Fund Balance for council tax setting purposes.  The Net Increase /Decrease before Transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to 
or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Council. 
 
 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
G

ra
n
ts

 U
n
a
p
p
lie

d
 

T
o
ta

l 
U

s
a
b
le

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

U
n
u
s
a
b
le

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

T
o
ta

l 
C

o
u
n
c
il
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March 2009 

Carried Forward
(1,750) (12,873) (17,810) (1,456) (33,889) (11,597) (45,486)

Movement in Reserves during 

2009/10
- - 

Surplus or (Deficit) on Provision 

of Services
7,298 7,298 7,298

Other Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure
- 26,164 26,164

Total Comprehensive Income 

& Expenditure
7,298 - - - 7,298 26,164 33,462

Adjustments between accounting 

basis and funding basis (Note 7)
(5,540) 6,298 (254) 504 (504) - 

Net Increase/Decrease before 

transfers to Earmarked 

Reserves

1,758 - 6,298 (254) 7,802 25,660 33,462

Transfers to/from Earmarked 

Reserves (Note 8)
(1,758) 3,688 1,930 (1,930) - 

Increase/Decrease in Year - 3,688 6,298 (254) 9,732 23,730 33,462

Balance at 31 March 2010 

Carried Forward
(1,750) (9,185) (11,512) (1,710) (24,157) 12,133 (12,024)

 
 

Page 33



Page 14 

 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
G

ra
n
ts

 U
n
a
p
p
lie

d
 

T
o
ta

l 
U

s
a
b
le

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

U
n
u
s
a
b
le

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

T
o
ta

l 
C

o
u
n
c
il
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March 2010 

Carried Forward
(1,750) (9,185) (11,512) (1,710) (24,157) 12,133 (12,024)

Movement in Reserves during 

2010/11
- - 

Surplus or (Deficit) on Provision 

of Services
(5,446) (5,446) (5,446)

Other Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure
- (12,162) (12,162)

Total Comprehensive Income 

& Expenditure
(5,446) - - - (5,446) (12,162) (17,608)

Adjustments between accounting 

basis and funding basis (Note 7)
7,530 5,526 (224) 12,832 (12,832) - 

Net Increase/Decrease before 

transfers to Earmarked 

Reserves

2,084 - 5,526 (224) 7,386 (24,994) (17,608)

Transfers to/from Earmarked 

Reserves (Note 8)
(2,084) 2,513 429 (429) - 

Increase/Decrease in Year - 2,513 5,526 (224) 7,815 (25,423) (17,608)

Balance at 31 March 2011 

Carried Forward
(1,750) (6,672) (5,986) (1,934) (16,342) (13,290) (29,632)

Page 34



Page 15 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise 
taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting 
cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 

G
ro

s
s
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

G
ro

s
s
 I

n
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

G
ro

s
s
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

G
ro

s
s
 I

n
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

10,950 9,562   1,388    Central Services to the Public 11,174  9,674   1,500    

22,972 5,299   17,673  
Cultural, Environmental, Regulatory & 

Planning Services
22,769  5,439   17,330  

2,864   1,575   1,289    Highways & Transport Services 4,295   1,565   2,730    

28,239 26,553 1,686    Housing Services 30,895  28,058 2,837    

2,530   56       2,474    Corporate & Democratic Core 2,531   14       2,517    

676      -          676      Non-Distributed Costs 58        -          58        

-          -          -           
Past Service Gains - change from RPI 

to CPI for pensions increases (Note 5)
(13,420) -          (13,420) 

68,231 43,045 25,186  Cost of Services 58,302  44,750 13,552  

459 652 (193)     Other Operating Expenditure (Note 9) 1,479   1,638   (160)      

5,183 2,376 2,807    
Financing & Investment Income & 

Expenditure (Note 10)
7,827   7,268   559       

-          20,502 (20,502) 
Taxation and non-specific Grant 

Income (Note 11)
19,397 (19,397) 

7,298    
(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of 

Services
(5,446)   

(861)     
Surplus) or Deficit on Revaluation of 

Property, Plant & Equipment Assets
(2,552)   

27,025  
Actuarial Gains/Losses on Pensions 

Assets/Liabilities
(9,610)   

26,164  
Other Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure
(12,162) 

33,462  
Total Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure
(17,608) 

2009/10 2010/11

 
 

Page 35



Page 16 

 
Balance Sheet 
 
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised 
by the Council.  The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by 
the Council.  Reserves are reported in two categories.  The first category of reserves are usable 
reserves, ie those reserves that the Council may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain 
a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts 
Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt).  The second category of 
reserves is those that the Council is not able to use to provide services.  This category of reserves 
includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where 
amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold 
timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting 
basis and funding basis under regulations’. 

 

Page 36



Page 17 

01/04/2009 31/03/2010

£000 £000 £000 £000

Property, Plant & Equipment 12

22,036 23,800 Land & Buildings 26,227

1,111 1,082 Infrastructure 1,053

4,040 6,594 Vehicles, Plant, & Equipment 6,568

5,237 5,701 Community Assets 7,085 40,933

32,424 37,177

12,934 13,534 Investment Property 13 13,053

80 79 Intangible Assets 14 187

4,000 4,000 Assets Held for Sale 19 4,100

5,164 676 Long Term Investments 15 336

2,269 2,120 Long Term Debtors 1,971

56,871 57,586 Long Term Assets 60,580

31,107 24,051 Short Term Investments 15 18,237

41 45 Inventories 16 36

7,925 10,507 Short Term Debtors (Net of Bad Debt Provis ions) 17 9,423

878 356 Cash and Cash Equivalents 18 774

39,951 34,959 Current Assets 28,470

(8,481) (9,132) Short Term Creditors 20 (10,918)

(92) (54) Short Term Borrowing 15 (65)

(1,101) (376) Deposits (237)

- - Bank Overdrafts - 

(9,674) (9,562) Current Liabilities (11,220)

(563) (514) Provisions 21 (317)

Other Long Term Liabilities

(40,157) (68,703)   Net Pensions Liability (46,698)

(560) (1,023)   Deferred Liabilities (1,009) (47,707)

(40,717) (69,726)

(382) (719) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 32 (174)

(41,662) (70,959) Long Term Liabilities (48,198)

45,486 12,024 Net Assets 29,632

Usable Reserves 22

1,750 1,750 General Fund Balance 1,750

12,873 9,185 Other Usable Reserves 6,672

17,810 11,512 Capital Receipts Reserve 5,986

1,456 1,710 Capital Grants Unapplied Account 1,934

33,889 24,157 Total Usable Reserves 16,342

Unusable Reserves 23

6,442 6,918 Revaluation Reserve 9,470

43,608 47,993 Capital Adjustment Account 48,908

1,991 1,871 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 1,753

(40,157) (68,703) Pensions Reserve (46,698)

31/03/2011
Notes

Balance Sheet

(25) (3) Collection Fund Adjus tment Account 49

(262) (209) Accumulated Absences  Account (192)

11,597 (12,133) Total Unusable Reserves 13,290

45,486 12,024 Total Reserves 29,632
 

Page 37



Page 18 

Cash Flow Statement 
 
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the 
reporting period.  The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents 
by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities.  The amount of net cash flows 
arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council are 
funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. 
Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are 
intended to contribute to the Council’s future service delivery.  Cash flows arising from financing activities 
are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council. 
 

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000 Note

7,298 Net (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services (5,446)

(7,715)
Adjustments to Net Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 

Services for non-cash movements
(527) 19

1,048

Adjustments for items included in the Net Surplus or Deficit on 

the Provision of Services that are Investing and Financing 

Activities

1,920 19

631 Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (4,053) 24

(6,246) Investing Activities (597) 25

6,138 Financing Activities 4,232 26

523 Net Increase or Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (418)

(879)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the Reporting 

Period
(356)

(356)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Reporting 

Period
(774) 18

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



Page 19 

Notes to the Accounts 
 

1.  Accounting Policies 
 
 
(i) General Principles 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2010/11 financial year and its 
position at the year-end of 31 March 2011.  The Council is required to prepare an annual Statement of 
Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003, which those Regulations require to be prepared in 
accordance with proper accounting practices.  These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2010/11 and the Best Value Accounting Code of 
Practice 2010/11, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).     
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by 
the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.    
 
(ii) Accruals of Income and Expenditure  
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 
received. In particular:  
 

• Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant risks 
and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.  

• Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure reliably the 
percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.   

• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between 
the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the 
Balance Sheet.  

• Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are 
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.  

• Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as 
income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial 
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.   

• Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, 
a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.  Where debts may 
not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the 
income that might not be collected.  

 
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with the Council’s own bank which are repayable 
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.  
 
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management.  
 
(iv) Exceptional Items 
 
When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, either 
on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts, 
depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Council’s financial performance. 
See Note 5 for details of any exceptional items. 
 

Page 39



Page 20 

(v) Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors   
 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material 
error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future 
years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.  
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the 
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and 
conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance.  Where a change is made, it is 
applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative 
amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.  
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.  
 
(vi) Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets  
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost 
of holding fixed assets during the year:  
 

• depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service  

• revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off  

• amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.  
 
The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or 
amortisations. These are therefore reversed out by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital 
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement,  
 
(vii) Employee Benefits   
 
Benefits Payable During Employment  
 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They include 
such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave and non-monetary benefits 
for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees 
render service to the Council.  An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements or other form of 
leave, e.g. time off in lieu earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can 
carry forward into the next financial year.  The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in 
the following accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit.  The accrual is 
charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in 
Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the 
holiday absence occurs.  
 
Termination Benefits  
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate an officer’s 
employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy 
and are charged on an accruals basis to the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement when the Council is demonstrably committed to the termination of the 
employment of an officer or group of officers or making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.  
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the 
General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or 
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the 
Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to 
remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them 
with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but 
unpaid at the year-end.  
 

Page 40



Page 21 

Post Employment Benefits 
 
Employees of the Council (unless they chose to opt out) are members of the Local Government Pensions 
Scheme, administered by Staffordshire County Council.  The scheme provides defined benefits to 
members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees working for the Council.  
 
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:  
 

• The liabilities of the Staffordshire pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the 
Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – ie an assessment of the 
future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, 
based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projections of 
projected earnings for current employees.  

• Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 5.5% (based on 
the indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds, specifically the iBoxx Sterling 
Corporates AA over 15 years index with recently re-rated bonds removed).  

• The assets of Staffordshire pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance 
Sheet at their fair value:  

– quoted securities – current bid price 
– unquoted securities – professional estimate  
– unitised securities – current bid price  
– property – market value.  

• The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components: 
– current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this 

year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the 
services for which the employees worked 

– past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose 
effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit 
on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
as part of Non Distributed Costs 

– interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as 
they move one year closer to being paid – debited to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

– expected return on assets – the annual investment return on the fund assets attributable 
to the Council, based on an average of the expected long-term return – credited to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement 

– gains or losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to relieve the 
Council of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of 
benefits of employees – debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non 
Distributed Costs 

– actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because 
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or 
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – debited to the Pensions 
Reserve   

– contributions paid to the Staffordshire pension fund – cash paid as employer’s 
contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an 
expense. 

 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged 
with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the 
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  In the Movement in Reserves 
Statement, this means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the 
notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the 
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative 
balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund 
of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are 
earned by employees.  
 

Page 41



Page 22 

Discretionary Benefits  
 
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of 
early retirements.  Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are 
accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are 
applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.  
 
(viii) Events After the Balance Sheet Date  
 
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur 
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for 
issue. Two types of events can be identified:  
 

• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the 
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events  

• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement of 
Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a 
material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated 
financial effect.  

 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of 
Accounts.  
 
(ix) Financial Instruments  
 
Financial Instruments are defined as: any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another.  Typical financial instruments are: Liabilities - trade 
payables, borrowings, financial guarantees; Assets - bank deposits, trade receivables, investments; 
derivatives, such as forward investment deals.  
 
Financial Liabilities  
 
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried at 
their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying 
amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the 
amount at which it was originally recognised.  
 
For the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is 
the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement.  
 
Financial Assets  
 
Financial assets are classified into two types:  
 

• loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in 
an active market  

• available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or 
determinable payments.  

 
Loans and Receivables  
 
Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value.  They are 
subsequently measured at their amortised cost.  Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are 
based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. 

Page 42



Page 23 

For most of the loans that the Council has made, this means that the amount presented in the Balance 
Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan 
agreement.  
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments 
due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the relevant 
service (for receivables specific to that service) or the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The impairment loss is measured as the 
difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted 
at the asset’s original effective interest rate.  
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Short Term Investments 
 
Short term investments include: 
 

• deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours 
(except for such deposits held in the Council’s own bank accounts)  

• Investments that mature in less than twelve months from the date of acquisition. 
 
Available-for-Sale Assets  
 
The only available-for-sale assets are a small amount of government stock. Interest payments are fixed in 
amount, therefore, annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the amortised 
cost of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.  
 
Available for sale assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the 
market price  
 
Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Reserve and the gain/ loss is 
recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available-for-Sale Financial Assets.  The exception 
is where impairment losses have been incurred – these are debited to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, along with any 
net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the Available-for-Sale Reserve.  
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments 
due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair value falls below cost, 
the asset is written down and a charge made to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  If the asset has fixed or determinable 
payments, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the 
present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. 
Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against the acquisition cost of 
the instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation).  
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
along with any accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in the Available-for-Sale Reserve.  
 
Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any impairment 
losses). 
 
Instruments Entered Into Before 1 April 2006  
 
The Council has entered into a financial guarantee that is not required to be accounted for as a financial 
instrument. This guarantee is reflected in the Statement of Accounts to the extent that a contingent 

Page 43



Page 24 

liability note is needed under the policies set out in the section on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets. 
 
(x) Foreign Currency Translation   
 
Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the transaction is 
converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the transaction was effective.  Where 
amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year-end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange 
rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses are recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
(xi) Government Grants and Contributions   
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions 
and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance that:  
 

• the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and  

• the grants or contributions will be received.  
 
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. 
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in 
the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as 
specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.  
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in 
the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the 
relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant 
Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are 
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has 
yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where 
it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants 
Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund 
capital expenditure.  
 
Area Based Grant and Formula Grant (Revenue Support Grant and Redistributed Business Rates) are 
general grants allocated by central government directly to local authorities as additional revenue funding 
and are non-ringfenced. They are credited to Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
(xii) Intangible Assets   
 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the 
Council as a result of past events (eg software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future 
economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Council.  
  
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the 
assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no intangible 
asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The 
depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever 
there is an indication that the asset might be impaired – any losses recognised are posted to the relevant 
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the 
disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 

Page 44



Page 25 

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the 
General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale 
proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.  
 
(xiii) Inventories 
 
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  
 
(xiv) Investment Property  
 
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.  The 
definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of 
goods or is held for sale.  
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount 
at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s-length.  Properties are 
not depreciated, however their values are considered each year according to market conditions at the 
year-end (i.e. if any properties or classes of properties, following consideration are thought likely to be 
subject to a valuation change, they are revalued). In any case every property is re-valued once every five 
years according to a rolling programme of revaluations. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.  The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.  
 
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income 
line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and 
losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The 
gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than 
£10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.  
 
(xv) Leases   
 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All 
other leases are classified as operating leases.  
 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately 
for classification.  
 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for 
payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use 
of specific assets.  
 
The Council as Lessee  
 
Finance Leases  
 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the 
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the 
minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay 
the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the carrying amount of the asset.  
 
Lease payments are apportioned between:  
 

• a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to write 
down the lease liability, and 

• a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).  

Page 45



Page 26 

 
Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies 
applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is 
shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the 
Council at the end of the lease period).  
 
The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses 
arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the 
deemed capital investment. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted 
by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the 
Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.  
 
Operating Leases  
 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. 
Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the 
pattern of payments (eg there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).  
 
The Council as Lessor  
 
Finance Leases  
 
Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the relevant 
asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, the carrying 
amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for 
Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the Council’s net investment in the 
lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part 
of the gain or loss on disposal (ie netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of 
disposal), matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet. 
 
Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:  
 

• a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write down the lease debtor 
(together with any premiums received), and  

• finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

 
The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not permitted 
by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a capital receipt. Where 
a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts 
Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is 
to be settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund 
Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the 
future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write 
down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts 
Reserve.  
 
Regulations were issued when IFRS was implemented that permit amounts receivable under leases (if 
they were in existence on or before 31 March 2010) that changed from operating leases to finance leases 
as a result of changes to proper practices to be treated as if the status of the lease had not changed. This 
means that amounts receivable under operating leases that became finance leases on transition to IFRS 
can continue to be credited to the General Fund balance as revenue income. Such leases will be 
accounted for in accordance with the current provisions of the Code, with any adjustments to the General 
Fund balance being made by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the 
Movement of Reserves Statement. 
 

Page 46



Page 27 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully 
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore appropriated to 
the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
 
Operating Leases  
 
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset 
is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the 
life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (eg there is a premium paid at the 
commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are 
added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on 
the same basis as rental income.  
 
(xvi) Overheads and Support Services   
 
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or service 
in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Best Value Accounting Code of Practice 2010/11 

(BVACOP). The total absorption costing principle is used – the full cost of overheads and support 
services are shared between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of:  
 

• Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Council’s status as a multifunctional, 
democratic organisation.  

• Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early 
and costs relating to long-term unused assets arising from reduced activity, the loss of a function 
or area of work.  

 
These two cost categories are defined in BVACOP and accounted for as separate headings in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of Net Expenditure on Continuing Services.  
 
(xvii) Property, Plant and Equipment   
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more 
than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.  
 
Recognition  
 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised 
on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. No de 
minimis level, below which expenditure is not capitalised, applies. Expenditure that maintains but does 
not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (ie repairs and 
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.  
 
Measurement  
 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:  
 

• the purchase  

• any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended by management  

• the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on 
which it is located.  

 
The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.  
 
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition 
does not have commercial substance (ie it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Council). In 

Page 47



Page 28 

the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying 
amount of the asset given up by the Council.  
 
Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any 
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made conditionally. Until conditions 
are satisfied, the gain is held in a Donated Assets Account. Where gains are credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance 
to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
 
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:  
 

• infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated historical cost  

• all other assets – fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its 
existing use (existing use value – EUV).  

 
Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset, 
depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value.  
 
Where non-property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost 
basis is used as a proxy for fair value.  
 
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their 
carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but as a minimum every 
five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise 
unrealised gains.  
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by:  
 

• where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains)  

• where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement.  

 
Revaluation gains or losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the 
General Fund Balance. They are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account 
 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its 
formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment 
Account.  
 
Impairment  
 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the 
asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.  
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:  
 

• where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains)  

• where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement.  

 

Page 48



Page 29 

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted 
for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.  
 
Impairment losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund 
Balance. The losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account 
 
Depreciation  
 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of 
their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable 
finite useful life (ie freehold land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for 
use (ie assets under construction).  
 
Deprecation is calculated on the following bases:  
 

• dwellings and other buildings - straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as 
estimated by the valuer  

• vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – a percentage of the value of each class of assets in the 
Balance Sheet, as advised by a suitably qualified officer  

• infrastructure - straight-line allocation over estimated life of asset.  
 
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. 
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value 
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their 
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment 
Account.  
 
Depreciation is not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. 
It is therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and 
posted to the Capital Adjustment Account 
 
Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale   
 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The 
asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair 
value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is 
posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in 
the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.  
 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to 
non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for 
sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they 
not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.  
 
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.  
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet 
(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on 
disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (ie netted off against the carrying value 
of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation 
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.  
 

Page 49



Page 30 

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. These are 
required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital 
investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing 
requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement 
in Reserves Statement.  
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully 
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital 
Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
 
(xviii) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets   
 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive 
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For instance, the Council may be involved 
in a court case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.  
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured 
at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking 
into account relevant risks and uncertainties.  
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. 
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than 
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated 
is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service.  
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another 
party (eg from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is 
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council settles the obligation.  
 
Contingent Liabilities   
 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible obligation 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a 
provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.  
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.  
 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible asset whose 
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the Council.  
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where 
it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.  
 
(xix) Reserves  
 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. 

Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement.  When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the 
appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  The reserve is then appropriated back into the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against 
council tax for the expenditure.  
 

Page 50



Page 31 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets and retirement and 
employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council – these reserves are explained 
in the relevant policies.  
 
 
(xx) Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute  
 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does not 
result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Council has determined to 
meet the cost of this expenditure (less any grant or contribution received towards it) from existing capital 
resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund 
Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is no 
impact on the level of council tax.  
 
(xxi) VAT 
 
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s 
Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.  
 
 

2. Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been 
Adopted 

 
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2011/12 (the Code) has 
introduced a change in accounting policy in relation to the treatment of heritage assets held by the 
Authority, which will need to be adopted fully by the authority in the 2011/12 financial statements.  
 
The Council is required to disclose information relating to the impact of the accounting change on the 
financial statements as a result of the adoption by the Code of a new standard that has been issued, but 
is not yet required to be adopted by the Authority, in this case, heritage assets.  As is set out above, full 
adoption of the standard will be required for the 2011/12 financial statements.  However, the Council is 
required to make disclosure of the estimated effect of the new standard in these (2010/11) financial 
statements. The new standard will require that a new class of asset, heritage assets, is disclosed 
separately on the face of the Balance Sheet in the 2011/12 financial statements.  
 
Heritage assets are assets that are held principally for their contribution to knowledge or culture.  The 
heritage assets held by the authority are the collections of assets and artefacts either exhibited or stored 
in the museum.  
 
These assets are currently valued at insurance value, as at 31 March 2007, with the valuation being 
deemed a proxy for historical cost and classified as community assets within Property, Plant and 
Equipment in the Balance Sheet.  
 
The Code will require that heritage assets are measured at valuation in the 2011/12 financial statements 
(2010/11 comparative information).  It is, therefore, intended in future to use the up to date insurance 
valuation each year to represent the value at which these assets are to be included in the balance sheet. 
It is not anticipated that this will result in a significantly different value to that already included in the 
balance sheet.   
 
 

3.  Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 
 
In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Council has had to make certain judgements 
about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical judgements 
made in the Statement of Accounts are: 
 

• identifying whether leases of assets are operating or finance leases 

• whether contractual arrangements have the substance of a lease 

Page 51



Page 32 

• whether land and buildings owned by the Council are investment properties 

• whether the Council’s exposure to possible losses is to be accounted for as a provision or a 
contingent liability 

 
 

4.  Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of 
Estimation Uncertainty  

 
The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the 
Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain.  Estimates are made taking into account 
historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors.  However, because balances cannot be 
determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and 
estimates. 
 
The significant items in the Council’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2011 for which there is a risk of material 
adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 
 

• the recoverable amounts in relation to debtors 

• principal actuarial assumptions used at the balance sheet date in respect of the defined benefit 
pension scheme 

• fair values for property plant and equipment that are not based on recently observed market 
prices 

• fair values for financial assets that are not based on recently observed market prices 
 
 

5.  Material Items of Income and Expense 
 
Where items are not disclosed on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the 
Accounting Code of Practice requires the nature and amount of material items to be set out in a note.  
The following material transactions occurred in 2010/11: 
 
Investment properties disposed of gave rise to £1.254m in capital receipts, whilst the carrying value of 
these assets was £1.123m.  These transactions are contained within the line “other operating 
expenditure” in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  The amounts concerned were 
reversed out via the Movement in Reserves Statement so they have no overall effect. 
 
The Defined Benefit Pension Scheme includes past service gains amounting to £13.420m in respect of 
the changes to pension increases introduced in the Chancellor’s budget statement. 
 
 

6.  Events after the Balance Sheet Date 
 

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Executive Director - Resources and Support 
Services on 30 June 2011.  Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial 
statements or notes.  Where events taking place before this date provided information about conditions 
existing at 31 March 2011, the figures in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all 
material respects to reflect the impact of this information.  
 
 

7.  Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under 
Regulations 
 
This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure 
recognised by the Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that 
are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Council to meet future capital and revenue 
expenditure. 
 

Page 52



Page 33 

2010/11

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
G

ra
n
ts

 U
n
a
p
p
lie

d
 

U
n
u
s
a
b
le

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

£000 £000 £000 £000

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment 

Account:

Reversal of Items debited or credited to the Comprehensive 

Income & Expenditure Statement:

Charges for the Depreciation and Impairment of Non-Current 

Assets
(5,313) 5,313

Revaluation Losses on Property, Plant & Equipment (198) 198

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties 721 (721)

Amortisation of Intangible Assets (63) 63

Capital Grants and Contributions applied 687 (687)

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (1,634) 1,634

Amounts of Non-Current Assets written-off on disposal or sale as 

part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure Statement

(1,123) 1,123

Value of Donated Assets 100 (100)

Capital element of Finance Leases where Council is the lessor (117) 117

Non Depreciated element of asset disposals (39) 39

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment 125 (125)

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants 

Unapplied Account:

Capital Grants and Contributions Unapplied credited to the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
484 (484)

Application of Grants to capital financing transferred to the 

Capital Adjustment Account
121 (121)

Grant brought forward transferred to Revenue (re REFCUS) (139) 139

Usable Reserves

 
 
(continued on next page) 
 
 

Page 53



Page 34 

2010/11

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
G

ra
n
ts

 U
n
a
p
p
lie

d
 

U
n
u
s
a
b
le

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

£000 £000 £000 £000

Usable Reserves

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts 

Reserve:

Transfer of cash sales proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss 

on disposal to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 

Statement

1,575 (1,575)

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure
7,129 (7,129)

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance the 

payments to the government capital receipts pool
(1) 1

Principal Repayments re Long Term Debtor (Loan) (29) 29

Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 

credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
12,395 (12,395)

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund 

Adjustment Account:

Amount by which council tax income credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different 

from council tax income calculated for the year in accordance 

with statutory requirements

53 (53)

Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated Absences 

Account:

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement on an accruals 

basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in 

accordance with statutory requirements

17 (17)

Total Adjustments 7,530 5,526 (224) (12,832)

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



Page 35 

2009/10

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
G

ra
n
ts

 U
n
a
p
p
li
e
d
 

U
n
u
s
a
b
le

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

£000 £000 £000 £000

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment 

Account:

Reversal of Items debited or credited to the Comprehensive 

Income & Expenditure Statement:

Charges for the Depreciation and Impairment of Non-Current 

Assets
(5,391) 5,391

Revaluation Losses on Property, Plant & Equipment (105) 105

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties (214) 214

Amortisation of Intangible Assets (80) 80

Capital Grants and Contributions applied 1,185 (1,185)

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (734) 734

Amounts of Non-Current Assets written-off on disposal or sale as 

part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure Statement

(162) 162

Capital element of Finance Leases where Council is the lessor (117) 117

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants 

Unapplied Account:

Capital Grants and Contributions Unapplied credited to the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
396 (396)

Application of Grants to capital financing transferred to the 

Capital Adjustment Account
142 (142)

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts 

Reserve:

Transfer of cash sales proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss 

on disposal to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 

Statement

652 (652)

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure
6,978 (6,978)

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance the 

payments to the government capital receipts pool
(1) 1

Transfer from Deferred Capital receipts Reserve upon receipt of 

cash

Usable Reserves

Transfer from Deferred Capital receipts Reserve upon receipt of 

cash

Principal Repayments re Long Term Debtor (Loan) (29) 29
 

(continued on next page) 
 
 
 

Page 55



Page 36 

2009/10

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
G

ra
n
ts

 U
n
a
p
p
lie

d
 

U
n
u
s
a
b
le

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

£000 £000 £000 £000

Usable Reserves

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement:

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment 477 (477)

Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 

credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
(1,521) 1,521

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund 

Adjustment Account:

Amount by which council tax income credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different 

from council tax income calculated for the year in accordance 

with statutory requirements

22 (22)

Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated Absences 

Account:

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement on an accruals 

basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in 

accordance with statutory requirements

53 (53)

Total Adjustments (5,540) 6,298 (254) (504)

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



Page 37 

8.  Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 
 
Amounts are set aside from the General Fund balances in earmarked reserves to provide financing for 
future expenditure plans and amounts are posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund 
expenditure. The table below shows these transfers.  
 

Transfers 

Out 

2010/11

Transfers 

In 

2010/11

Net 

Movement 

2010/11

£000 £000 £000

Contingency Reserve Fund (415) - (415)

Budget Support Fund (599) 64 (535)

Conservation and Heritage Fund (30) 39 9

ICT Development Fund (77) - (77)

Equipment Replacement Fund (54) 107 53

Insurance Fund (446) 155 (291)

Museum Purchases Fund (5) 2 (3)

Maintenance Contributions (55) - (55)

Mayors Charities Reserve (32) 27 (5)

New Initiatives Fund (120) - (120)

Organisational Development Fund (153) - (153)

RENEW Reserve (28) - (28)

Renewals & Repairs Fund (649) 445 (204)

Change Management Fund (163) - (163)

Standards Fund (2) - (2)

LABGI Reserve - - - 

Deposit Guarantee Scheme 

Reserve
(2) 4 2

Planning Delivery Grant Reserve (235) - (235)

LSVT Capital Fund
- 138 138

Total - (3,065) 981 (2,084)  
 
Details of all transfers to/from reserves, both usable and unusable, are shown in notes 22 and 23, 
together with a note of the nature and purpose of each reserve. 
 
 

9.  Other Operating Expenditure 
 

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

296 Parish Precepts 351

- Levies - 

1 Payments to the government Housing Capital Receipts Pool 1

165 Gains/Losses on the disposal of Non-Current Assets (89)

(655) Capital income not arising from asset sales (423)

(193) Total (160)
 

 

Page 57



Page 38 

 
10.  Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
 

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

63 Interest Payable and similar charges 66

2,949 Pensions Interest Cost and Expected Return on Pensions Assets 1,834

(1,373) Interest Receivable and similar income (607)

1,168
Income and Expenditure in relation to Investment Properties and 

changes in their fair value
(734)

- Other Investment Income - 

2,807 Total 559
 

 
 

11. Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income 
 

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

(7,001) Council Tax income (7,191)

(8,840) Non Domestic Rates (9,674)

(2,832) Non-Ringfenced Government Grants (1,499)

(1,829) Capital Grants and Contributions (1,033)

(20,502) Total (19,397)
 

 

Page 58



Page 39 

 
12.  Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Movements on Balances 
 

Movements in 2010/11

L
a
n
d
 &
 B
u
ild
in
g
s

In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

a
s
s
e
ts

V
e
h
ic
le
s
, 
P
la
n
t,
 

F
u
rn
it
u
re
 &
 

E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

A
s
s
e
ts

T
o
ta
l 
P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 ,
 

P
la
n
t 
&
 

E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2010 25,308 1,339 12,290 5,950 44,887

Additions 4,802 34 1,345 559 6,740

Deletions - 

Revaluation Increases/(Decreases) 

recognised in the Revaluation Reserve
1,142 1,135 2,277

Revaluation Increases/(Decreases) 

recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on 

the Provision of Services

(3,289) (33) (238) (152) (3,712)

Derecognition - Disposals (1,692) (1,692)

Derecognition - Other - 

Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for 

Sale
- 

Other Movements in Cost or Valuation (42) (42)

At 31 March 2011 27,963 1,340 11,705 7,450 48,458

Accumulated Depreciation & 

Impairment

At 1 April 2010 (1,508) (258) (5,695) (249) (7,710)

Depreciation Charge (470) (29) (1,094) (116) (1,709)

Depreciation written-out to the 

Revaluation reserve
- 

Depreciation written-out to the 

surplus/deficit on the Provision of 

Services

- 

Impairment losses/reversals 

recognised in the Revaluation Reserve
- 

Impairment losses/reversals 

recognised in the surplus/deficit on the 

Provision of Services

- 

Derecognition - Disposals 1,653 1,653

Derecognition - Other 241 241

Other movements in 

Depreciation/Impairment
- 

At 31 March 2011 (1,737) (287) (5,136) (365) (7,525)
 

 
Net Book Value

As at 31 March 2010 23,800 1,081 6,595 5,701 37,177

As at 31 March 2011 26,226 1,053 6,569 7,085 40,933  
 

Page 59



Page 40 

 
 

Movements in 2009/10

L
a
n
d
 &
 B
u
ild
in
g
s

In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

a
s
s
e
ts

V
e
h
ic
le
s
, 
P
la
n
t,
 

F
u
rn
it
u
re
 &
 

E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

A
s
s
e
ts

T
o
ta
l 
P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 ,
 

P
la
n
t 
&
 

E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2009 23,013 1,339 8,612 5,391 38,355

Additions 3,605 17 4,151 608 8,381

Deletions - 

Revaluation Increases/(Decreases) 

recognised in the Revaluation Reserve
314 6 320

Revaluation Increases/(Decreases) 

recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on 

the Provision of Services

(1,593) (17) (202) (55) (1,867)

Derecognition - Disposals (31) (327) (358)

Derecognition - Other - 

Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for 

Sale
- 

Other Movements in Cost or Valuation 56 56

At 31 March 2010 25,308 1,339 12,290 5,950 44,887

Accumulated Depreciation & 

Impairment

At 1 April 2009 (977) (229) (4,571) (154) (5,931)

Depreciation Charge (599) (29) (1,325) (95) (2,048)

Depreciation written-out to the 

Revaluation reserve
- 

Depreciation written-out to the 

surplus/deficit on the Provision of 

Services

- 

Impairment losses/reversals 

recognised in the Revaluation Reserve
- 

Impairment losses/reversals 

recognised in the surplus/deficit on the 

Provision of Services

- 

Derecognition - Disposals 9 201 210

Derecognition - Other 59 59

Other movements in 

Depreciation/Impairment
- 

At 31 March 2010 (1,508) (258) (5,695) (249) (7,710)

Net Book Value

As at 31 March 2009 22,036 1,110 4,041 5,237 32,424

As at 31 March 2010 23,800 1,081 6,595 5,701 37,177  
As at 31 March 2010 23,800 1,081 6,595 5,701 37,177  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



Page 41 

 
Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is applied on a straight line basis. No depreciation is applied to land. Where an asset 
includes land, the value of this element is excluded before applying depreciation. A 10% residual value is 
assumed in most cases which is deducted from the depreciable amount before applying depreciation. 
 
The following useful lives have been used in the calculation of depreciation: 
 

• Other Land and Buildings - 60 years, unless the valuation basis is depreciated replacement cost, 
where individual lives apply to each asset concerned. 

• Vehicles, Plant, Furniture & Equipment - 5 years for most items, 15 years for wheeled bins.  

• Infrastructure - no specific life. Depreciation is based on a historical composite calculation. 

• Community Assets - 20 years 
 
Capital Commitments 
 
At 31 March 2011, the Council has entered into a number of contracts for the construction or 
enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment in 2011/12 and future years budgeted to cost £5.596m. 
Similar commitments at 31 March 2010 were £0.501m. The major commitments are: 
 

• Jubilee 2 project - £5.213m 

• Ecohomes Phase 2/Solar Panels - £0.120m 

• Midway Multi-storey car park repairs - £0.544m 

• Audley Burial facilities - £0.032m 
 
Revaluations 
 
The Council carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required 
to be measured at fair value is revalued at least every five years. All valuations were carried out 
internally.  Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the methodologies and 
bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. 
Valuations of vehicles, plant, and equipment are based on historic cost. 
 
The significant assumptions applied in estimating the fair values are: 
 

• Whether a property asset is a specialised asset, which governs its valuation treatment 

• Whether an asset is still being used for operational purposes 

• Whether there is any impairment applicable to the asset 
 

Valuations over the five year rolling period were as follows: 
 

Land & 

Buildings

Vehicles, 

plant, 

Furniture & 

Equipment

Community 

Assets

Infrastructure 

Assets

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Carried at Historical Cost 9 9,626 6,316 1,340 17,291

Valued at Fair Value as at: - 

  31 March 2007 5,520 486 6,006

  31 March 2008 664 664

  31 March 2009 10,094 10,094

  31 March 2010 3,439 3,439

  31 March 2011 8,237 1,593 1,134 10,964

Total Cost or Valuation 27,963 11,705 7,450 1,340 48,458
 

 

Page 61



Page 42 

 
13.  Investment Properties 
 
The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: 
 

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

1,285 Rental Income from Investment Property 906

(486) Direct Operating Expenses arising from Investment Property (606)

799 Net Gain/(Loss) 300
 

 
There are no restrictions on the Council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or 
on the Council’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal.  The Council has no 
contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or repairs, maintenance or 
enhancement. 
 
The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year: 
 
2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

12,934      Balance at start of the Year 13,534      

Additions:

-                 Purchases

-                 Construction

2,078          Subsequent Expenditure 208

(15)           Disposals (1,123)

(1,463)       Net Gains/(Losses) from Fair Value Adjustments 513

Transfers:

-                 To/(From) Inventories

-                 To/(From) Property, Plant & Equipment
-               
-               Other Changes (79)

13,534 Balance at end of the Year 13,053
 

 
 

14.  Intangible Assets 
 
The Council accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is not an 
integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item of Property, Plant 
and Equipment.  Internally generated software is not included in intangible assets.  There are no other 
types of asset classified as Intangible Assets. 
 
All software is assigned a finite useful life of 5 years, based on an assessment of the period that the 
software is expected to be of use to the Council.  
 
The carrying amount of intangible assets is amortised on a straight-line basis.  The amortisation of £x 
charged to revenue in 2010/11 was charged to the ICT Services cost centres and then absorbed as an 
overhead across all the service headings in the Net Expenditure of Services.  It is not possible to quantify 
exactly how much of the amortisation is attributable to each service heading. 
 
The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows: 

Page 62



Page 43 

 
2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

Balance at start of Year:

1,197   Gross Carrying Amounts 1,276

1,117   Accumulated Amortisation 1,197

80 Net Carrying Amount at start of Year 79

79 Additions 170

- Disposals

(80) Amortisation for the period (63)

- Other Changes

79 Net Carrying Amount at end of the Year 186

Comprising:

1,276          Gross Carrying Amounts 1,446

(1,197)         Accumulated Amortisation (1,260)

79 186
 

 
 
15.  Financial Instruments 
 
Categories of Financial Instruments 
 
The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet: 
 

Long Term Current Long Term Current Long Term Current

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Investments

5,160 31,107 672 24,051 Loans and Receivables 336 18,237

4 - 4 - Available for Sale Financial Assets - - 

5,164 31,107 676 24,051 Total Investments 336 18,237

8,230 10,781 Debtors * - 9,665

92 54 Borrowings - 65

8,481 9,132 Creditors - 10,918

878 356 Cash and Cash Equivalents 774

31 March 2010 31 March 201101 April 2009

 
 
* Debtors includes Long Term Debtors of £242k (31/03/11), £274k (31/03/10), £305k (01/04/09) 

Page 63



Page 44 

 
Income, Expense, Gains and Losses: 
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
L
ia

b
il
it
ie

s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

t 

A
m

o
rt

is
e
d
 C

o
s
t

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
s
s
e
ts

: 

L
o
a
n
s
 &

 R
e
c
e
iv

a
b
le

s

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
A

s
s
e
ts

: 

A
v
a
il
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

S
a
le

T
o
ta

l

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
L
ia

b
il
it
ie

s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

t 

A
m

o
rt

is
e
d
 C

o
s
t

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
s
s
e
ts

: 

L
o
a
n
s
 &

 R
e
c
e
iv

a
b
le

s

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
A

s
s
e
ts

: 

A
v
a
il
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

S
a
le

T
o
ta

l

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

7 - - 7

Interest Expense included in 

Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services

1 1

7 - - 7 Total expense in Surplus or 

deficit on the Provision of 

Services

1 - - 1

- (812) - (812) Interest Income - (262) (262)

- (90) - 
(90) Interest Income Accrued on 

Impaired Financial Assets
- (62)

(62)

- (902) - (902) Total income in Surplus or 

deficit on the Provision of 

Services

- (324) - (324)

7 (902) - (895) Net Gain (Loss) for the Year 1 (324) - (323)
 

 
Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities, financial assets represented by loans and receivables and long-term debtors and 
creditors are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by 
calculating the present value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of the 
instruments, using the following assumptions: 
 

• where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months, carrying amount is assumed to 
approximate to fair value 

• The impairment relating to the deposit with Heritable Bank is recognised 

• no early repayment is recognised 

• the fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount. 
 

The fair values calculated are as follows: 
 

Carrying 

Amount
Fair Value

Carrying 

Amount
Fair Value

Carrying 

Amount
Fair Value

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Liabilities

92 92 54 54 Financial Liabilities 65 65

8,481 8,481 9,132 9,132 Creditors 10,918 10,918

Assets

36,271 36,271 24,727 24,727 Loans and Receivables 18,573 18,573

8,230 8,230 10,781 10,781 Debtors * 9,665 9,665

878 878 356 356 Cash and Cash Equivalents 774 774

31 March 2010 31 March 201101 April 2009

 
 
* Debtors includes Long Term Debtors of £242k (31/03/11), £274k (31/03/10), £305k (01/04/09) 

 

Page 64



Page 45 

16.  Inventories 
 

F
u
e
l

IC
T

 

C
o
n
s
u
m

a
b
le

s

T
o
ta

l

F
u
e
l

IC
T

 

C
o
n
s
u
m

a
b
le

s

T
o
ta

l

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

23 18 41 Balance Outstanding at start of Year 27 18 45

339 66 405 Purchases 397 34 431

(332) (58) (390) Recognised as an expense in the Year (379) (36) (415)

(3)      (8)      (11)     Written-off Balances (13) (12) (25)

27 18 45 Balance Outstanding at Year end 32 4 36

2009/10 2010/11

 
 
 

17.  Debtors 
 
1 April 

2009

31 March 

2010

31 March 

2011

£000 £000 £000

870        5,102        Central Government Bodies 3,527        

2,352     1,588        Other Local Authorities 1,230        

6            4              NHS Bodies 3              

-            -               Public Corporations and Trading Funds -               

4,697     3,813        Other Entities and Individuals 4,662        

7,925     10,507      Total 9,423        
 

 
 

18.  Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements: 
 
01 April 

2009

31 March 

2010

31 March 

2011

£000 £000 £000

120 100         Cash held by the Council 97

758 256         Bank Current Accounts 677

878 356 Total 774
 

 

Page 65



Page 46 

 

19.  Cash Flow Statement - Analysis of Adjustments 
 

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

635 Increase/(Decrease) In Creditors (2,748)

725 Decrease in Deposits 140

(2,878) Decrease in Debtors (5,157)

4 Increase/(Decrease) in Stocks (9)

49 Decrease in Provisions 197

(5,391)
Charges for the Depreciation and Impairment of Non-Current 

Assets
(5,313)

(105) Revaluation Losses on Property, Plant & Equipment (198)

(214) Movements in the market value of Investment Properties 721

(80) Amortisation of Intangible Assets (63)

- Value of Donated Assets 100

1,185 Capital Grants and Contributions applied 687

(117) Capital element of Finance Leases where Council is the lessor (117)

- Non Depreciated element of asset disposals (39)

(1,521)
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited 

to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
12,395

(162)

Amounts of Non-Current Assets written-off on disposal or sale as 

part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income & 

Expenditure Statement

(1,123)

155 Impairment of Investment - 

(7,715) (527)

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

396
Capital Grants and Contributions Unapplied credited to the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
484

- Grant brought forward transferred to Revenue (re REFCUS) (139)

652
Transfer of cash sales proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
1,575

1,048 1,920

Adjustments to Net Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services for non-cash 

movements

Adjustments for items included in the Net Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 

Services that are Investing and Financing Activities

 
 

Page 66



Page 47 

 

20.  Creditors 
 

1 April 

2009

31 March 

2010

31 March 

2011

£000 £000 £000

2,978     774           Central Government Bodies 3,504        

1,332     1,294        Other Local Authorities 884           

4            5              NHS Bodies 1              

-            1,320        Public Corporations and Trading Funds 1,320        

4,167     5,739        Other Entities and Individuals 5,209        

8,481     9,132        Tota l 10,918      
 

 
 

21.  Provisions 
 

Insurance 

Claims 

Provision

Planning 

Appeals 

Provision

Employee 

Benefits
Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2009 276 25 262 563

Additional provisions made in 2009/10 20 - 209 229

Amounts used in 2009/10 (16) - (262) (278)

Unused amounts reversed in 2009/10 - - - - 

Balance at 1 April 2010 280 25 209 514         

Additional provisions made in 2010/11 - - 192 192

Amounts used in 2010/11 (33) - (209) (242)

Unused amounts reversed in 2010/11 (127) (20) - (147)

Balance at 31 March 2011 120 5 192 317
 

 
The Insurance Claims Provision has been created to meet the costs of claims which are likely to be 
settled but where the actual settlement date is uncertain. 
 
The Planning Appeals Provision has been created to meet the costs of planning appeals where it is likely 
that a payment will have to be made but where the timing of the payment is uncertain. 
 
The Employee Benefits Provision contains an amount equivalent to the accruals made in the Cost of 
Services within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in respect of outstanding 
employee benefits (untaken leave, etc) at the year end. 
 
 

22.  Usable Reserves 
 
Movements in the Council’s usable reserves, showing the split between capital and revenue reserves, 
are set out below:  
 

Page 67



Page 48 

Balance 

at 1 April 

2009

Transfers 

Out 

2009/10

Transfers 

In 

2009/10

Balance 

at 31 

March 

2010

Transfers 

Out 

2010/11

Transfers 

In 

2010/11

Balance 

at 31 

March 

2011

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Capital:

Capital Receipts Reserve 17,810 (6,982) 684 11,512 (7,133) 1,606 5,985

LSVT Capital Fund 2,131 - - 2,131 - 138 2,269

Special Projects (Economic 

Development) Fund
883 - - 883 - - 883

Capital Grants Unapplied 1,456 (390) 644 1,710 (405) 630 1,935

Both Revenue and Capital:

Equipment Replacement Fund 511 (490) 123 144 (94) 107 157

Renewals & Repairs Fund 269 (814) 845 300 (649) 445 96

ICT Development Fund 1,492 (237) - 1,255 (455) - 800

New Initiatives Fund 767 (446) - 321 (120) - 201

LABGI Reserve 1,130 (1,130) - - - - - 

Planning Delivery Grant Reserve - (252) 682 430 (235) - 195

Revenue:

General Fund Balance 1,750 - - 1,750 - - 1,750

Insurance Fund 966 (419) 82 629 (446) 155 338

Contingency Reserve Fund 1,074 (534) - 540 (426) - 114

Organisational Development Fund 336 (183) - 153 (153) - - 

Budget Support Fund 2,407 (785) 6 1,628 (599) 64 1,093

Conservation and Heritage Fund 66 (22) - 44 (30) 39 53

Museum Purchases Fund 87 (6) 1 82 (5) 2 79

Maintenance Contributions 205 (125) 100 180 (55) - 125

Mayors Charities Reserve 18 (21) 19 16 (32) 27 11

RENEW Reserve 250 (80) - 170 (28) - 142

Change Management Fund 163 - - 163 (163) - - 

Standards Fund 100 (3) - 97 (2) - 95

Deposit Guarantee Scheme 

Reserve
18 (3) 4 19 (2) 4 21

Total 33,889 (12,922) 3,190 24,157 (11,032) 3,217 16,342
 

 
Note 8 sets out the movements on Usable Reserves involving transactions with the General Fund 
Revenue Account. 
 
The nature and purpose of these reserves is as set out below: 
 
Usable Capital Receipts contains the balance of unapplied capital receipts arising from the disposal of 
fixed assets. 
 
The LSVT Capital Fund was originally established to receive the principal element of the internal leasing 
charges made by the ICT Leasing Fund to service revenue accounts.  The Fund is available to finance 
capital expenditure. 
 
The Special Projects (Economic Development) Fund comprised monies originally provided from 
Revenue. Its intended purpose is to finance capital expenditure.  
 
The Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve contains the balance of unused grants and contributions which 
are available for use, i.e. they either have no conditions attached to them or any conditions have been 
met. 
 
The Equipment Replacement Fund is maintained to provide for the replacement of certain items of 
equipment, such as the crematorium cremators and printing equipment. 

Page 68



Page 49 

 
The ICT Development Fund is to be used to meet the costs of new IT requirements.  
 
The New Initiatives Fund has been established to fund new initiatives, both capital and revenue, not 
currently provided for in the Council’s budgets.  
 
The Housing and Planning Delivery Grant Reserve receives the grant paid to the Council. It is to be used 
to finance planning related activities of both a revenue and capital nature. 
 
The Insurance Fund is used to meet the cost of the insurance cover required by the Council and any 
excesses for which the Council is liable.  
 
The Contingency Reserve Fund is used to finance expenditure in respect of contingencies that may arise 
in the future, for example redundancy payments consequent upon service reviews.  
 
The Renewals and Repairs Fund is maintained for the repair and maintenance of Council-owned 
buildings, structures and fixed plant.  It is funded through a contribution from the General Fund revenue 
account, based on the estimated frequency and amount of future expenditure on repairs and 
maintenance for each building or structure, or item of fixed plant.  
 
The Organisational Development Fund was used to meet costs arising from the implementation of the 
Single Status arrangements for employees and other organisational developments 
 
The Budget Support Fund has been created by crediting to it surpluses arising on the General Fund 
Revenue Account.  It is to be used to support the revenue budget.  It is also used to enable budget 
provision to be carried forward to future years by appropriating to it unspent balances where a 
commitment exists. 
 
The Conservation and Heritage Fund exists to provide grants to the owners of buildings of historical 
significance to enable them to be maintained in a state of good repair. 
 
The Museum Purchases Fund was established by a small bequest which has been added to by 
contributions from revenue account and proceeds from the sale of exhibits surplus to requirements.  It is 
to be used to purchase exhibits for the museum and to conserve and enhance the display of existing 
exhibits. 
 
Maintenance Contributions are received from developers of housing and other schemes and are to be 
used to fund the maintenance of open spaces taken over from those developers. 
 
The Mayors Charities Reserve represents the balance on the Mayors Charities activity. 
 
The RENEW Reserve is to be used to meet revenue costs arising from the Council’s participation in the 
Housing Market Renewal Pathfinder for North Staffordshire (RENEW).  
 
The Change Management Fund was used to support the Council’s change management programme.  
 
The Standards Fund is used to ensure that the Council meets its responsibilities under the Ethical and 
other standards frameworks 
 
The Deposit Guarantee Reserve has been created to hold the unspent balances relating to the 
Guarantee Scheme for landlord deposits in respect of homeless persons. 
 
 

23.  Unusable Reserves 
 
Movements in the Council’s unusable reserves are shown below: 
 

Page 69



Page 50 

Balance 

at 1 April 

2009

Transfers 

Out 

2009/10

Transfers 

In 

2009/10

Balance 

at 31 

March 

2010

Transfers 

Out 

2010/11

Transfers 

In 

2010/11

Balance 

at 31 

March 

2011

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Capital:

Revaluation Reserve 6,442 (389) 865 6,918 - 2,552 9,470

Capital Adjustment Account 43,608 (7,148) 11,533 47,993 (9,330) 10,245 48,908

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 1,990 (119) - 1,871 (118) - 1,753

Revenue:

Pensions Reserve (40,157) (28,546) - (68,703) - 22,005 (46,698)

Collection Fund Adjustment 

Account
(25) - 22 (3) - 52 49

Accumulated Absences Account (262) (209) 262 (209) (192) 209 (192)

Total 11,596 (36,411) 12,682 (12,133) (9,640) 35,063 13,290
 

 
The nature and purpose of these reserves is as set out below: 
 
The Revaluation Reserve records the accumulated gains on the fixed assets held by the Council arising 
from increases in value, as a result of inflation or other factors (to the extent that these gains have not 
been consumed by subsequent downward movements in value). It is also debited with amounts equal to 
the part of depreciation charges on assets that has been incurred only because the asset has been 
revalued.  On disposal, the Revaluation Reserve balance for the asset disposed of is written out to the 
Capital Adjustment Account.  The overall balance on the Reserve thus represents the amount by which 
the current value of fixed assets carried in the balance sheet is greater because they are carried at 
revalued amounts rather than depreciated historical cost. It was established with a nil balance on 1 April 
2007. 
 
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements 
for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or 
enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.  The Account is debited with the cost of 
acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the 
Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis).  The Account is credited with 
the amounts set aside by the Council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and 
enhancement. The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and 
revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that the 
Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.  Note 7 provides details of the source of all the 
transactions posted to the Account, apart from those involving the Revaluation Reserve. 
 
The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of noncurrent assets 
but for which cash settlement has yet to take place.  Under statutory arrangements, the Council does not 
treat these gains as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. 
When the deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital 
Receipts Reserve. 
 
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for 
accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. 
The Council accounts for post employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities 
recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside 
to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council 
makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly 
responsible.  The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the 
benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Council has set aside to meet 
them.  The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the 
benefits come to be paid. 
 

Page 70



Page 51 

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of council 
tax income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from council tax 
payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from 
the Collection Fund. 
 
The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General 
Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, eg annual 
leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March.  Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the 
General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account. 
 
 

24.  Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities 
 
The cash flows for operating activities include the following items: 

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

(805) Interest Received (282)

59 Interest Paid 64  
 
 

25.  Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities 
 
The cash flows for investing activities include the following items: 

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

8,213
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment 

property and intangible assets
7,694

101,182 Purchase of short and long term investments 46,900

(784)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 

investment property and intangible assets
(1,522)

(113,039) Proceeds from short and long term investments (53,084)

(1,818) Other receipts from investing activities (585)

(6,246) Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (597)

 
 
 

26.  Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities 
 
The cash flows for financing activities include the following items: 
 

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

(6,000) Cash receipts of short and long term borrowing (10)

477
Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities 

relating to finance leases
125

6,037 Repayments of short- and long-term borrowing - 

5,624 Other payments for financing activities 4,117

6,138 Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 4,232

 

Page 71



Page 52 

 
27.  Amounts Reported for Resource Allocation Decisions 
 

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is that specified by the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice.  However, 
decisions about resource allocation are based on the reports made to the Council’s Executive 
Management Team in the form of budget reports analysed across directorates.  These reports are 
prepared on a different basis from the accounting policies used in the financial statements.  In particular: 
 

• no charges are made in relation to capital expenditure (whereas depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses in excess of the balance on the Revaluation Reserve and amortisations are 
charged to services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement) 

• the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer’s pensions 
contributions) rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the year 

• expenditure on some support services is budgeted for centrally and not charged to directorates. 
 
The income and expenditure of the Council’s directorates recorded in the budget reports for the year is as 
follows: 
 

Page 72



Page 53 

Directorate Income and 

Expenditure 2010/11

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 *

**

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 &

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

It
e
m

s

T
o
ta

l

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fees, Charges and other service 

income
(1,041) (3,921) (4,127) (908) (9,997)

Government Grants (12) (30) (1,519) (35,294) (36,855)

Total Income (1,053) - (3,951) (5,646) (36,202) (46,852)

Employee Expenses 565 3,218 931 27 4,741

Other Service Expenses 1,250 8,123 1,806 36,728 47,907

Support Service Recharges 2,114 2,857 5,502 3,335 13,808

Total Expenditure 3,929 - 14,198 8,239 40,090 66,456

Net Expenditure 2,876 - 10,247 2,593 3,888 19,604

Directorate Income and 

Expenditure 2009/10 Comparative 

Figures

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 &

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 I

te
m

s

T
o
ta

l

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fees, Charges and other service 

income
(618) (3,561) (4,169) (846) (9,194)

Government Grants - (167) (1,359) (33,828) (35,354)

Total Income (618) - (3,728) (5,528) (34,674) (44,548)

Employee Expenses 156 3,062 928 1 4,147

Other Service Expenses 776 8,245 2,260 35,269 46,550

Support Service Recharges 1,678 2,091 5,714 3,065 12,548

Total Expenditure 2,610 - 13,398 8,902 38,335 63,245

Net Expenditure 1,992 - 9,670 3,374 3,661 18,697
 

*** All services under this Directorate are recharged out to other services. 
 
The reconciliation below shows how the figures in the analysis of directorate income and expenditure 
relate to the amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

Page 73



Page 54 

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

18,697      Net Expenditure in the Directorate Analysis 19,604      

-               
Net Expenditure of Services and Support Services not included in 

the Analysis

5,690        
Amounts in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 

not reported to management in the Analysis
(6,352)

799           
Amounts included in the Analysis not included in Cost of Services 

in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
300           

25,186
Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 

Statement
13,552

 
 
 
The following reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of directorate income and expenditure 
relate to a subjective analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services included in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Page 74



Page 55 

2010/11

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 A
n
a
ly
s
is

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 &
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 n
o
t 
in
 A
n
a
ly
s
is

A
m
o
u
n
ts
 n
o
t 
re
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g

A
m
o
u
n
ts
 n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 

C
o
m
p
 I
n
c
 &
 E
x
p
 A
c
c
t

A
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s

C
o
s
t 
o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 A
m
o
u
n
ts

T
o
ta
l

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fees, Charges and other Service 

Income
(9,997) (198) 942 (9,253) (9,253)

Interest and Investment Income - - (608) (608)

Income from council tax - - (7,191) (7,191)

Government Grants and 

Contributions
(36,855) (302) (37,157) (11,173) (48,330)

Capital Income (1,456) (1,456)

Tota l Income (46,852) (500) - 942 - (46,410) (20,428) (66,838)

Employee Expenses 4,741 10,359 (3) 15,097 15,097

Other Service Expenses 47,907 2,742 (274) 50,375 50,375

Support Service Recharges 13,808 (365) (13,536) (93) (93)

Depreciation, Amortisation and 

Impairment
935 7,010 7,945 7,945

Non-Distributed Costs (13,361) (13,361) (13,361)

Interest payments - 66 66
- 

Precepts and Levies - 351 351

Payments to Housing Capital 

Receipts Pool
- 1 1

Gain or Loss on disposal of fixed 

assets
- (89) (89)

Investment Properties (net) - (734) (734)

Pensions Interest Cost/Return on 

Assets
- 1,834 1,834

Tota l Expenditure 66,456 14,036 (6,351) (642) (13,536) 59,963 1,429 61,392

Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services
19,604 13,536 (6,351) 300 (13,536) 13,553 (18,999) (5,446)

 
 

Page 75



Page 56 

2009/10 Comparative Figures

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 A
n
a
ly
s
is

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 &
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 A
n
a
ly
s
is

A
m
o
u
n
ts
 n
o
t 
re
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g

A
m
o
u
n
ts
 n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 

C
o
m
p
 I
n
c
 &
 E
x
p
 A
c
c
t

A
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s

C
o
s
t 
o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 A
m
o
u
n
ts

T
o
ta
l

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fees, Charges and other Service 

Income

   (9,194)  (322)    1,332    (8,184) (8,184)   

Interest and Investment Income    (1,373) (1,373)   

Income from council tax            -    (7,001) (7,001)   

Government Grants and 

Contributions

 (35,354)      (238)  (35,592)  (11,673) (47,265) 

Capital Income - (2,483) (2,483)

Total Income (44,548) (560) - 1,332 - (43,776) (22,530) (66,306)

Employee Expenses 4,147 10,220 (3) 14,364 14,364

Other Service Expenses 46,550 2,976 (241) 49,285 49,285

Support Service Recharges 12,548 (289) (13,184) (925) (925)

Depreciation, Amortisation and 

Impairment
548 5,261 5,809 5,809

Non-Distributed Costs 429 429 429

Interest payments - 63 63

Precepts and Levies - 296 296

Payments to Housing Capital 

Receipts Pool
- 1 1

Gain or Loss on disposal of fixed 

assets
- 165 165

Investment Properties (Net) - 1,168 1,168

Pensions Interest Cost/Return on 

Assets
- 2,949 2,949

Total Expenditure 63,245 13,744 5,690 (533) (13,184) 68,962 4,642 73,604

Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services
18,697 13,184 5,690 799 (13,184) 25,186 (17,888) 7,298

 
 
 
28.  Trading Operations 
 
The Council operates the following Trading Operations: 
 

Markets 
 

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

(197,371) Turnover (210,142)

286,616 Expenditure 291,952

89,245 (Surplus)/Deficit 81,810
 

 

The expenditure and income of trading operations is incorporated into the Cost of Services included in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

Page 76



Page 57 

 

29.  Members’ Allowances 
 
In 2010/11 a total of £313,834 was paid to members in respect of allowances and expenses 
(£289,664 in 2009/10).  
 

Page 77



Page 58 

 

30.  Officers’ Remuneration 
 

The remuneration paid to the Council’s senior employees is as follows: 
 
 

2010/11 Senior Officers - salary between £50,000 and £150,000 per year

Post Holder 

Information 

Salary Benefits  

in Kind

Total 

Remuneration 

excluding 

employer’s  

pension 

contributions 

2009/10

Employer 

Pension 

Contributions

Total 

Remuneration 

including 

employer’s  

pension 

contributions 

2009/10

(£) (£) (£) (£) (£)

Chief Executive * 84,743 1,779 86,522 18,389 104,911 

Executive 

Directors:

Regeneration & 

Development
83,993 2,392 86,385 19,799 106,184 

Resources & 

Support Services
83,993 0 83,993 18,226 102,219 

Operational 

Services
80,491 2,457 82,948 17,466 100,414 

Heads of Service:

Central Services 52,314 2,457 54,771 11,352 66,123 

Leisure and 

Cultural Services
52,314 2,457 54,771 11,352 66,123 

Assets & 

Regeneration
52,314 2,320 54,634 11,352 65,986 

Operations 50,935 2,457 53,392 11,053 64,445 

2009/10 Senior Officers - salary between £50,000 and £150,000 per year

Post Holder 

Information 

Salary Benefits  

in Kind

Total 

Remuneration 

excluding 

employer’s  

pension 

contributions 

2009/10

Employer 

Pension 

Contributions

Total 

Remuneration 

including 

employer’s  

pension 

contributions 

2009/10

(£) (£) (£) (£) (£)

Chief Executive ** 112,426 3,245 115,671 23,047 138,718 

Executive 

Directors:

Regeneration & 

Development
82,242 2,320 84,562 18,135 102,697 

Resources & 

Support Services
83,993 0 83,993 17,219 101,212 

Operational 

Services
80,490 1,229 81,719 16,500 98,219 

Heads of Service:

Central Services 50,935 2,457 53,392 10,442 63,834 

Assets and 

Regeneration
50,993 2,320 53,313 10,454 63,767 

Operations 50,245 2,457 52,702 10,300 63,002  
Leisure and 

Cultural Services
50,935 0 50,935 10,442 61,377 

 
 

Page 78



Page 59 

* 2010/11-This includes salary of £73,140 and Returning Officers fees for the General and Borough 
Council Elections in respect of the previous Chief Executive for the period 01/04/10-24/09/10 and the 
current Chief Executive for the period 01/01/11-31/03/11. 
** 2009/10 – This includes salary of £99,736 and Returning Officer fees for the European and County 
Council elections and Borough Council by-elections. 
 
The Council’s other employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year (excluding 
employer’s pension contributions) were paid the following amounts: 
 

2009/10 2010/11

Number of 

Employees

Number of 

Employees

1 £50,000 - £54,999 3  
 
 

31.  External Audit Costs 
 
The Council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, 
certification of grant claims and statutory inspections and to non-audit services provided by the Council’s 
external auditors: 
 

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

Services in accordance with Section 5 of the Audit

Commission Act 1998

Statutory Inspection Fees under Section 10 of the Local

Government Act 1999

29
Fees for Grant Certification under Section 28 of the Audit 

Commission Act 1998
28

- Fees for any other services

182 153

125 125

28 - 

 
 

 
32.  Grant Income 
 
The Council credited the following grants and contributions to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in 2010/11 
 

Page 79



Page 60 

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

630           Regional Housing Grant 400

290           Waste and Resources Action Programme Grant - 

63            Contribution from Renew North Staffordshire - 

385           Advantage West Midlands (AWM) contribution 117

25            North Staffordshire Primary Care Trust contribution 500

10            Aspire Housing contribution - 

117           Planning Obligations Contributions (Section 106 contributions) 100

140           Staffordshire County Council contribution - 

162           Newcastle-under-Lyme College contribution 45

-               REFCUS grants transfer adjustment (139)

7              Other Contributions 10

1,829 Total 1,033

Credited to Services

24,231      Housing Subsidy - Rent Allowance 25,631

961           Housing Subsidy - Housing Benefit Administration Grant 849

160           Housing Subsidy - Housing Benefit Verification Framework Grant 106

8,273        Council Tax Benefit Grant 8,500

2,040        Revenue Support Grant 1,405

8,840        National Non-Domestic Rates Grant 9,674

480           Disabled Facilities Grant 508

682           Planning Delivery Grant - 

512           Regional Housing Grant 864

362           Concessionary Travel Initial Grant 365

135           Regional Choice Fund Grant 36

71            Area Based Grant 94

38            Local Authorities Business Growth Initiative Grant (LABGI) - 

56            Free Swimming Grant 24

71            Homelessness Directorate Grant 71

125           Safer Communities Grant - 

-               Contaminated Land Grant 26

110           Waste and Resources Action Programme Grant 37

45            Local Public Service Agreement Grants (via Staffs County Council) 52

-               Waste Infrastructure Grant (via Staffs County Council) 40

136           Other Grants 48

100           Contribution - Newcastle-Under-Lyme College - Pitch Maintenance - 

74            
Contributions towards Community Safety Service (e.g from Police, 

Fire Service, Staffs County Council)
90

187           Other Contributions 80

47,689 Total 48,500  
 
 
The Council has received a number of grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be recognised 
as income as they have conditions attached to them that will require the monies or property to be 
returned to the giver.  The balances at the year-end are as follows: 
 

Page 80



Page 61 

01 April 

2009

31 March 

2010

31 March 

2011

£000 £000 £000

Capita l Grants Receipts in Advance

38          38            Free Swimming Grant 38             

24          24            Safer Communities Grant 24             

-            5              Other Grants 5              

-            500           Primary Care Trust contribution re Jubilee 2 Project -               

313        145           Planning Obligations Contributions (Section 106 contributions) 100           

7            7              Other Contributions 7              

382 719 Total 174
 

 
 

33.  Related Parties 
 
The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or individuals that 
have the potential to control or influence the council or to be controlled or influenced by the council. 
Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council might have 
been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another 
party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council. 
 
Central Government 
 
Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Council - it is responsible for 
providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides the majority of its funding 
in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other 
parties (eg council tax bills, housing benefits). Grants received from government departments are set out 
in the subjective analysis in Note 27 on reporting for resources allocation decisions.  Grant receipts 
outstanding at 31 March 2011 are shown in Note 32. 

 
Members 
 
Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies.  The total 
of members’ allowances and expenses paid in 2010/11 is shown in Note 29.  During 2010/11, 
transactions with Aspire Housing totalled £16,389,779 (net). 3 members sit on the board of this 
organisation.  Contracts were entered into in full compliance with the council’s standing orders. In 
addition, the Council paid grants totalling £240,152 to voluntary organisations in which 17 members had 
positions on the governing body. In addition transactions with the Victoria Theatre totalled £114,991 (net) 
where 1 member sits on its Board and transactions with the Staffordshire Fire Authority totalled £131,603 
(net) where 1 member sits on its Board. Details of such transactions are recorded in the Register of 
Members’ Interest, open to public inspection at the Council’s Civic Offices during office hours. 
 
Officers 
 
During 2010/11 no related party transactions occurred involving officers of the Council.  
 
 

34.  Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 
 

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including the 
value of assets acquired under finance leases), together with the resources that have been used to 
finance it.  Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets 
are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that has yet to be 
financed.  The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note. 
 

Page 81



Page 62 

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

(334) Opening Capital Financing Requirement 129           

Capital Investment

8,282     Property, Plant and equipment 6,464

2,078     Investment Properties 209

79          Intangible Assets 170

1,840     Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 3,081

Sources of Finance

(7,113) Capital Receipts (7,129)

(2,432) Government Grants and Other Contributions (2,255)

(1,794) Sums set aside from revenue (429)

(477) Minimum Revenue Provision (125)

129 Closing Capital Financing Requirement 115

Explanation of Movements in Year

940 Assets acquired under Finance Leases 111

(477) Minimum Revenue Provision (125)

463 Increase/(Decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement (14)
 

 
 

35.  Leases 
 
Council as Lessee 
 
Finance Leases 
 
The Council has acquired a number of items of vehicles and equipment under finance leases. 
 
The assets acquired under these leases are carried as Property, Plant and Equipment in the Balance 
Sheet at the following net amounts: 
 

01 April 

2009

31 March 

2010

31 March 

2011

£000 £000 £000

- - Other Land and Buildings - 

447 998 Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment 616

447 998 616
 

 
The Council is committed to making minimum payments under these leases comprising settlement of the 
long-term liability for the interest in the property acquired by the Council and finance costs that will be 
payable by the Council in future years while the liability remains outstanding. The minimum lease 
payments are made up of the following amounts: 
 

Page 82



Page 63 

01 April 

2009

31 March 

2010

31 March 

2011

£000 £000 £000

Finance Lease Liabilities (net present value of minimum lease 

payments):

340 113   Current 144

14 673   Non-current 596

4 231 Finance Costs payable in future years 177

358 1,017 Minimum Lease Payments 917
 

 
 
The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods: 
 

Minimum 

Lease 

Payments

Finance 

Lease 

Liabilities

Minimum 

Lease 

Payments

Finance 

Lease 

Liabilities

Minimum 

Lease 

Payments

Finance 

Lease 

Liabilities

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

340 3 113 62 Not later than one year 144 58

14 1 673 169 Later than one year and not later than five years 596 119

- - - - Later than five years - - 

354 4 786 231 740 177

01 April 2009 31 March 201131 March 2010

 
 
 
Operating Leases 
 
The Council has acquired a number of items of vehicles and equipment by entering into operating leases, 
with typical lives of 4 years. 
 
The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are: 
 

31 March 

2010

31 March 

2011

£000 £000

37 Not later than one year 37

72 Later than one year and not later than five years 35

- Later than five years - 

109 72
 

 

 
The expenditure charged in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the year in 
relation to these leases was: 
 

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

36 Minimum Lease Payments 44

36 44
 

 
 
Council as Lessor 
 
Finance Leases 

Page 83



Page 64 

 
The Council has leased out 13 properties on a finance lease basis, with terms remaining from 12 to 125 
years. 
 
The Council has a total gross investment in these leases, made up of the minimum lease payments 
expected to be received over the remaining term and the residual value anticipated for the properties 
when the leases come to an end. The minimum lease payments comprise settlement of the long-term 
debtor for the interest in the properties acquired by the lessee and finance income that will be earned by 
the Council in future years whilst the debtor remains outstanding. The gross investment is made up of the 
following amounts: 
 

01 April 

2009

31 March 

2010

31 March 

2011

£000 £000 £000

Finance Lease Debtor (net present value of minimum lease payments):

329 329   Current 329

15,659 15,353   Non-current 15,024

12,839 12,663 Unearned Finance Income 12,473

28,827 28,345 Gross Investment in the Lease 27,826
 

 
The gross investment in the lease and the minimum lease payments will be received over the following 
periods: 
 

Minimum 

Lease 

Payments

Finance 

Lease 

Liabilities

Minimum 

Lease 

Payments

Finance 

Lease 

Liabilities

Minimum 

Lease 

Payments

Finance 

Lease 

Liabilities

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

519 189 519 189 Not later than one year 519 189

2,447 894 2,447 894 Later than one year and not later than five years 2,410 881

25,861 11,756 25,379 11,580 Later than five years 24,897 11,403

28,827 12,839 28,345 12,663 27,826 12,473

01 April 2009 31 March 201131 March 2010

 
 
Operating Leases 
 
The Council leases out property and equipment under operating leases for the following purposes: 
 

• for the provision of community services, such as sports facilities and community centres 

• to gain income from its investment properties 

• for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for local 
businesses. 

 
The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are: 
 

 

 

31 March 

2010

31 March 

2011

£000 £000

654 Not later than one year 531

1,592 Later than one year and not later than five years 1,231

2,310 Later than five years 2,140

4,556 3,902

Page 84



Page 65 

 
 

36.  Impairment Losses 
 
During 2010/11 the Council has recognised the following impairment losses in relation to capital 
expenditure incurred on the enhancement of non current assets where such expenditure does not 
increase the value of the asset concerned. An amount equal to this is charged as an impairment loss to 
the service which uses the asset in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The total 
amount of such impairment losses for 2010/11 was £3.603m (2009/10 £3.342m).  
 
 

37.  Termination Benefits 
 
The Council terminated the contracts of a number of employees in 2010/11, incurring liabilities of 
£651,061 (£188,421 in 2009/10). The termination benefits consisted of £391,899 redundancy costs 
together with £246,623 actuarial strain payments and £12,539 long service awards. 
 
 

38.  Defined Benefit Pension Schemes 
 

Participation in Pension Schemes 
 
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Council makes contributions 
towards the cost of post employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until 
employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments that needs to be disclosed at the 
time that employees earn their future entitlement.  
 
The Council participates in: 
 

• The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by Staffordshire County Council - 
this is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Council and employees 
pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities 
with investment assets. 

• Arrangements for the award of discretionary post retirement benefits upon early retirement - this 
is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards 
are made. However, there are no investment assets built up to meet these pensions liabilities, 
and cash has to be generated to meet actual pensions payments as they eventually fall due. 

 
Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits 
 
The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the reported cost of services when they are earned by 
employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge that is 
required to be made against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post 
employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year: 
 

Page 85



Page 66 

L
o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

P
e
n
s
io

n
 s

c
h
e
m

e

D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

L
o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

P
e
n
s
io

n
 s

c
h
e
m

e

D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

£000 £000 £000 £000

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

Cost of Services:

1,458   Current Service Cost 2,492

232   Past Service Costs / (Gains) (13,348)

16   Settlements and Curtailments 21

(443)   Unfunded Benefit Contributions (437)

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

6,640   Interest cost 7,552

(3,691)   Expected Return on Scheme Assets (5,718)

4,655 (443)
Total Post Employment Benefit charged to the Surplus 

or Deficit on the Provision of Services
(9,001) (437)

Other Post Employment Benefit charged to the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

(27,025)   Actuarial Gains and (Losses) 9,610

(27,025) - 
Total Post Employment Benefit charged to the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
9,610 - 

Movement in Reserves Statement

25,504

Reversal of Net Charges made to the Surplus or Deficit 

on the Provision of Services for Post Employment 

Benefits in accordance with the Code

2,785

Actual amount charged against the General Fund 

Balance for pensions in the year:

3,134 Employers' Contributions payable to Scheme 3,394

(443) Retirement Benefits payable to pensioners (437)

2009/10 2010/11

 
The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement to the 31 March 2011 is a gain/(loss) of £(31.627m). 
 

Page 86



Page 67 

 
Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post-employment Benefits 
 
Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation): 
 

F
u
n
d
e
d
 L

ia
b
ili

ti
e
s
: 

L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

P
e
n
s
io

n
 s

c
h
e
m

e

U
n
fu

n
d
e
d
 L

ia
b
ili

ti
e
s
: 

D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

F
u
n
d
e
d
 L

ia
b
ili

ti
e
s
: 

L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

P
e
n
s
io

n
 s

c
h
e
m

e

U
n
fu

n
d
e
d
 L

ia
b
ili

ti
e
s
: 

D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

£000 £000 £000 £000

97,997 (424) Opening Balance at 1 April 149,817 (867)

1,458 Current Service Cost 2,492

6,640 Interest Cost 7,552

804 Contributions by Scheme Participants 771

47,450 Actuarial (Gains) and Losses (11,889)

(4,780) (443) Benefits Paid (5,286) (437)

232 Past Service Costs / (Gains) (13,348)

16 Curtailments 21

- Settlements - 

149,817 (867) Closing Balance at 31 March 130,130 (1,304)

2009/10 2010/11

 
Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets: 
 

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

57,416 Opening Balance at 1 April 80,247

3,691 Expected Rate of Return 5,718

20,425 Actuarial Gains and (Losses) (2,279)

2,691 Employer Contributions 2,957

804 Contributions by Scheme Participants 771

(4,780) Benefits Paid (5,286)

- Settlements - 

80,247 Closing Balance at 31 March 82,128

Local Government Pension Scheme

 
 
The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on 
the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are 
based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date. 
 
Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in 
the respective markets. 
 
The actual return on scheme assets in the year was £6.736m (2009/10: £24.117m). 
 

Page 87



Page 68 

 
Scheme History 
 

2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Present Value of Liabilities:

Local Government Pension Scheme (104,356) (94,260) (91,548) (141,527) (122,343)

Discretionary Benefits (6,709) (6,380) (6,025) (7,423) (6,483)

Fair Value of Assets in the Local 

Government Pension Scheme
82,777 76,068 57,416 80,247 82,128

Surplus/(Deficit) in the Sheme: (28,288) (24,572) (40,157) (68,703) (46,698)

Local Government Pension Scheme (21,579) (18,192) (34,132) (61,280) (40,215)

Discretionary Benefits (6,709) (6,380) (6,025) (7,423) (6,483)

Total (28,288) (24,572) (40,157) (68,703) (46,698)
 

 
The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long run to pay post 
employment (retirement) benefits.  The total liability of £46.698m has a substantial impact on the net 
worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet, resulting in an overall balance of £29.632m. 
However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Council 
remains healthy: 
 

• the deficit on the local government scheme will be made good by increased contributions over 
the remaining working life of employees (ie before payments fall due), as assessed by the 
scheme actuary 

• finance is only required to be raised to cover discretionary benefits when the pensions are 
actually paid. 

 
The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the Council in 
the year to 31 March 2012 is £2.618m. Expected contributions for the Discretionary Benefits scheme in 
the year to 31 March 2012 are £437k.   
 
Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities 
 
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate 
of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, 
salary levels, etc. Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and Discretionary Benefits liabilities have 
been assessed by Hymans Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the County 
Council Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 1 April 2011. 
 
The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been: 
 

Page 88



Page 69 

L
o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

P
e
n
s
io

n
 s

c
h
e
m

e

D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

L
o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

P
e
n
s
io

n
 s

c
h
e
m

e

D
is

c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

Long Term expected rate of return on assets in the 

Scheme:

7.8%   Equity Investments 7.5%

5.0%   Bonds 4.9%

10.6%   Other 10.1%

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:

20.8   Men 21.2

24.1   Women 23.4

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

22.3   Men 23.3

25.7   Women 25.6

3.8% 3.8% Rate of Inflation 2.8% 2.8%

5.3% Rate of Increase in Salaries 5.1%

3.8% 3.8% Rate of Increase in pensions 2.8% 2.8%

5.5% 5.5% Rate for Discounting Scheme Liabilities 5.5% 5.5%

50%
Take-up option to convert annual pension into retirement 

lump sum
50%

2009/10 2010/11

 
The Discretionary Benefits arrangements have no assets to cover its liabilities. The Local Government 
Pension Scheme’s assets consist of the following categories, by proportion of the total assets held: 
 

31 March 

2010

31 March 

2011

% %

79 Equity Investments 78

11 Debt Instruments 11

10 Other Assets 11

100 Closing Balance at 31 March 100
 

 
History of Experience Gains and Losses 
 
The actuarial gains identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve in 2010/11 can be analysed into 
the following categories, measured as a percentage of assets or liabilities at 31 March 2011: 
 

2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11

% % % % %

Differences between the expected 

and actual return on assets (0.7) (14.0) (39.5) 25.5 (2.7)

Experience gains and losses on 

liabilities (0.3) (1.6) 0.2 (0.2) 0.3  
 

Page 89



Page 70 

 

39.  Contingent Liabilities 
 
(a)  Municipal Mutual Insurance 
 
In 1992/93 the council’s insurers, Municipal Mutual insurance, ceased accepting new business. Under the 
Scheme of Arrangement that was established to ensure an orderly wind up of the company a levy of 
£67,919 could be made on the Council. 
 
(b) Insurance Fund 
 
It is estimated that claims totalling circa £60,000 will arise from incidents that had occurred up to 31 
March 2011 but have not yet been reported. 
 
(c)  VAT 
 
The computations of the Council’s 2009/10 and 2010/11 position in respect of exempt category Value 
Added Tax have yet to be agreed with Revenue and Customs. If the 5% allowance has been exceeded, 
up to £150,000 in VAT may become payable. 
 
(d)  Equal Opportunities Claims 
 
A liability may exist to pay compensation to some Council employees in respect of equal pay/back pay 
claims following the completion of job evaluation in October 2005. At present it is not possible to quantify 
either the number or the amount of any such claims. 
 
(e)  Land Sales Receipts 
 
An agreement exists with a government development agency (in the process of being disbanded) to pay 
to them (or their successors) all of the proceeds to be received in respect of the sale, when it occurs, of a 
development site for which the agency provided development funding. Some of the proceeds have 
already been paid over; the remaining amount may be up too around £3.6m. 
 
(f)  Housing Stock Transfer Warranty 
 
Liabilities in relation to a warranty given by the Council in respect of the transfer of its housing stock to a 
registered social landlord in February 2000 could arise. The amount of the potential liability cannot be 
quantified but could amount to several million pounds. 
 
(g)  West Midlands Regional Assembly 
 
This body, of which the Council was a member, is in voluntary liquidation. The Council may be liable to 
make a contribution in respect of the body’s outstanding pension liability, amounting to some £54,000. 
 
(h)  Local Land Charges Fees 
 
Following a change in the law relating to charging for personal searches, there may be a liability to repay 
up to £70,000 in fee income. 
 
(i)  Other 
 
There is a potential liability arising from possible legal proceedings against the Council. At present it is 
not possible to quantify this liability but it could exceed £50,000. 
 
 

40.  Contingent Assets 
 
The Council has approved the sale of a number of plots of land for industrial/commercial use. The 
likely total capital receipt (net of repayment of government grant received towards the laying out of 
the land concerned) which will accrue to the Council will be around £163,000. There is one 

Page 90



Page 71 

outstanding plot remaining to be sold, for which the proceeds are due to be received in 2011/12 and 
are contingent upon agreement of detailed arrangements with the prospective purchasers. 

 
 
41. Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments 
 
The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: 
 

• credit risk - the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council 

• liquidity risk - the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its 
commitments to make payments 

• market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of changes 
in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements. 

 
The Council’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets 
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund services. Risk 
management is carried out by a central treasury team, under policies approved by the council in the 
annual treasury management strategy. The council provides written principles for overall risk 
management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk and 
the investment of surplus cash. 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the 
Council’s customers. This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that 
deposits are not made with financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria, as 
laid down by Fitch and Moody’s Ratings Services. The Annual Investment Strategy also imposes a 
maximum sum to be invested with a financial institution located within each category. 
 
The credit criteria in respect of financial assets held by the Council are as summarised below: 
 

• Investment counterparties are assessed as to their suitability in relation to credit ratings supplied 
by the main ratings agencies, with the additional consideration of credit default swap data. A limit 
is placed on the amount which can in total be placed with individual counterparties and 
categories of counterparties. 

 

• Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past 
experience and other factors, with individual credit limits being set where considered necessary.  
Credit references are obtained where contracts are entered into. 

 
The Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and financial 
institutions of £0.214m cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest 
payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has 
shown that it is rare for such entities to be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability 
applies to all of the Council’s deposits, but there was no evidence at the 31 March 2011 that this was 
likely to crystallise.  
 
The following analysis summarises the Council’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk on other 
financial assets, based on experience of default and uncollectability over the last five financial years, 
adjusted to reflect current market conditions.  

Page 91



Page 72 

A
m

o
u
n
t 

a
t 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
1

H
is

to
ri
c
a
l 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

o
f 

d
e
fa

u
lt

H
is

to
ri
c
a
l 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

a
d
ju

s
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
a
rk

e
t 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

t 
3
1
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 

e
x
p
o
s
u
re

 t
o
 d

e
fa

u
lt
 

a
n
d
 u

n
c
o
lle

c
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

t 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 

e
x
p
o
s
u
re

 a
t 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
0

£000 % % £000 £000

A B C (A X C)

Deposits with banks & financial 

institutions
17,158 0% 1.25% 214 294

Heritable Bank 1,415 - impairment 642 640

Customers (trade debtors) 4,486 - 15% 673 555

1,529 1,489
 

 
No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period and, apart from the frozen investment with 
Heritable Bank, the Council does not expect any losses from non-performance by any of its 
counterparties in relation to deposits and bonds. 
 
The Council does not generally allow credit for customers, such that £3.885m of the £4.486m balance is 
past its due date for payment. The past due but not impaired amount can be analysed by age as follows: 
 

01 April 

2009

31 March 

2010

31 March 

2011

£000 £000 £000

346 250 31 to 89 days 549

163 352 90 to 149 days 210

2,903 2,634 Over 150 days 3,126

3,412 3,236 3,885
 

 
Liquidity Risk 
 

The Council has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash is 
available as needed. If unexpected movements happen, the Council has ready access to borrowings 
from the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board. There is no significant risk that it will be 
unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments. At present the Council has 
no intention of entering into any long term borrowing arrangements. The maturity analysis of financial 
liabilities is as follows: 
 

01 April 

2009

31 March 

2010

31 March 

2011

£000 £000 £000

31,200 23,500 Less than one year 17,158

- - Between one and two years

5,000 - Between two and five years

- 1,705 More than five years 1,415

36,200 25,205 18,573
 

 
All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year. 
 
 

Page 92



Page 73 

Market Risk 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its investments (no 
long term money market borrowing at present). Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on 
the Council. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the following effects: 
 

• investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services will rise 

• investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall. 
 
Changes in interest receivable on variable rate investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services and affect the General Fund Balance. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate 
investments that have a quoted market price will be reflected in Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure. 
 
At 31 March 2011, if interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held constant, the financial 
effect would be: 
 

£000

Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments (287)

Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (287)
 

 
The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed. 
 
Price Risk 
 
The Council does not have any investment in equity shares or in joint ventures or local industry. 
Consequently, it is not exposed to losses arising from movements in share prices. 
 
Foreign Exchange Risk 
 
The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus has no 
exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates. 
 
 

42. Building Control Account 
 

Page 93



Page 74 

Total Fee Earning
Non-

chargeable

All other 

BC Services

64% 25% 11%

£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s

Salaries 543             350             135             59              

Premises 23              15              6                2                

Transport 25              16              6                3                

Supplies 15              10              4                2                

Central Support 53              27              18              8                

Structural Eng 16              16              

Total Expenditure 675             434             168             73              

Building Regulation Charges 435             435             

Miscellaneous Income 1                1                

Total Income 436             436             -             -             

Surplus/ (deficit) (239) 2 (168) (73)

The statement below combines the building control accounts for Stoke and Newcastle Borough

Council (The North Staffordshire Building Control Partnership) and shows the total cost of

providing the service divided between chargeable and non-chargeable activities.

2010-11

Newcastle & Stoke Partnership

NORTH STAFFORDSHIRE BUILDING CONTROL 

PARTNERSHIP

2010-2011 FINANCIAL YEAR

The Building (Local Authority Charges) Regulations 2010 require the disclosure of information

regarding the setting of charges for the administration of the building control function, however,

certain activities performed by the Building Control Division cannot be charged for, such as

providing general advice and carrying out enforcement.

CIPFA guidance for local authority building control accounting states where local authorities

enter into a formal arrangement to provide a single building control service, they should operate a

single charging regime (i.e. one charging scheme and financial statement)

 
 
 

Page 94



Page 75 

 
43.  Material Differences between amounts presented under the 2009 Code of 

Accounting Practice and the IFRS based 2010 Code of Accounting Practice. 
 
The Statement of Accounts for 2010/11 is the first to be prepared on an IFRS basis. Adoption of the 
IFRSbased Code has resulted in the restatement of various balances and transactions, with the result 
that some amounts presented in the financial statements are different from the equivalent figures 
presented in the Statement of Accounts for 2009/10. 
 
The following tables explain the material differences between the amounts presented in the 2009/10 
financial statements and the equivalent amounts presented in the 2010/11 financial statements. 
 
Short-term accumulating compensated absences 
 
Short-term accumulating compensated absences refers to benefits that employees receive as part of their 
contract of employment, entitlement to which is built up as they provide services to the Council. The most 
significant benefit covered by this heading is holiday pay.  
 
Employees build up an entitlement to paid holidays as they work. Under the Code, the cost of providing 
holidays and similar benefits is required to be recognised when employees render services that increase 
their entitlement to future compensated absences. As a result, the council is required to accrue for any 
annual leave earned but not taken at 31 March each year. Under the previous accounting arrangements, 
no such accrual was required.  The government has issued regulations that mean local authorities are 
only required to fund holiday pay and similar benefits when they are used, rather than when employees 
earn the benefits.  Amounts are transferred to the Accumulated Absences Account until the benefits are 
used. 
 
Accruing for short-term accumulating compensated absences has resulted in the following changes being 
made to the 2009/10 financial statements: 
 

2009/10 

Statements

Adjustments 

Made

£000 £000

Opening 1 April 2009 Balance Sheet

Accruals - (262)

Accumulated Absences Account - 262

31 March 2010 Balance Sheet

Accruals - (209)

Accumulated Absences Account - 209

2009/10 Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account

Central Services to the Public 1,397 34

Cultural, Environmental, Regulatory and Planning Services 18,192 137

Highways & Transport Services 1,290 2

Other Housing Services 1,691 22

Corporate and Democratic Core 2,477 14  
 
Leases 

 
The criteria for classification of leases as either operating or finance leases have been clarified by the 
adoption of the IFRS based Code. This has meant that certain leases which were formerly classified as 
operating leases have now been reclassified as finance leases, with consequent changes to the 
accounting treatment. In addition the Code requires lease type arrangements which are embedded in 
contracts for services to be identified and classified as either operating or finance leases and to be 
recognised as such in the Council’s accounts. 
 

Page 95



Page 76 

The government has issued regulations and statutory guidance in relation to accounting for leases. Under 
these arrangements, the annual charge to the General Fund (where the council is the lessee) will be 
unchanged. Where the council is the lessor, the regulations allow it to continue to treat the income from 
existing leases in the same way as it accounted for the income prior to the introduction of the Code. 
 
Leases from third parties 
 
The council has a number of leases in relation to vehicles and equipment which were previously classified 
as operating leases, but under the Code, have been reclassified as finance leases. Also a lease type 
arrangement in respect of a number of vehicles is embedded within a contract for services which was 
previously not recognised as a lease.  As a consequence the financial statements have been amended as 
follows: 
 

• The assets obtained by way of finance leases have been recognised together with a 
corresponding finance lease liability. 

• The operating lease charge within Cultural, Environmental, Regulatory and Planning Services has 
been reduced by the amount that relates to the lease payments. 

• A depreciation charge has been included within Cultural, Environmental, Regulatory and Planning 
Services. 

• The depreciation charge has been transferred from the General Fund to the Capital Adjustment 
Account and the General Fund has been charged with a Voluntary Revenue Provision (with the 
credit being made to the Capital Adjustment Account). These transfers are reflected in the 
balance sheets as at 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2010, and the adjustments that relate to 2009/10 
are reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the year. 

• The interest element of the lease payment is charged to the Financing and Investment income 
and expenditure line in Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. 

 
This has resulted in the following changes being made to the 2009/10 financial statements: 
 

2009/10 

Statements

Adjustments 

Made

£000 £000

Opening 1 April 2009 Balance Sheet

Property, Plant and Equipment 32,657 447

Finance Lease Liability (Deferred Liability) - (560)

Capital Adjustment Account (43,897) 113

31 March 2010 Balance Sheet

Property, Plant and Equipment 36,855 998

Finance Lease Liability (Deferred Liability) - (1,023)

Capital Adjustment Account 47,140 25

2009/10 Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account

Cultural, Environmental, Regulatory and Planning Services 18,192 (145)

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 1,794 56  
 
The net change to Cultural, Environmental, Regulatory and Planning Services consists of the removal of 
the operating lease charge (-£0.533m) and the inclusion of the depreciation charge (+£0.388m). 
 
The net increase in Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (£0.089m) is removed by the transfer 
of the depreciation charge to the Capital Adjustment Account and the inclusion of the Voluntary Revenue 
Provision charge of £0.476m. These transfers are shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Leases to third parties 
 
There are a number of leases of property which were previously classified as operating leases, but under 
the Code, have been reclassified as finance leases. As a consequence the financial statements have 
been amended as follows: 
 

Page 96



Page 77 

• The assets leased out by way of finance leases have been derecognised. 

• A long term debtor has been created corresponding to the remaining liability of the lessors to 
make payments to the Council. 

• A amount has been credited to deferred capital receipts corresponding to the amount which the 
Council is due to receive from the lessors. 

• Depreciation in respect of one property has been reversed (the others were classified as 
investment properties, which are not depreciated). 

• The balance in the Revaluation Reserve in respect of these properties has been written-off to the 
Capital Adjustment Account. 

• The interest element of the income received from these leases is credited to the Financing and 
investment Income line in Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. The capital element is 
credited to the Long Term Debtor account.  

 
This has resulted in the following changes being made to the 2009/10 financial statements: 
 

2009/10 

Statements

Adjustments 

Made

£000 £000

Opening 1 April 2009 Balance Sheet

Property, Plant and Equipment 32,657 (80)

Investment Properties 15,529 (3,190)

Long Term Debtor 305 1,963

Revaluation Reserve (7,650) 6

Capital Adjustment Account (43,897) 3,265

Deferred Capital Receipts (27) (1,964)

31 March 2010 Balance Sheet

Property, Plant and Equipment 36,855 (77)

Investment Properties 16,129 (3,190)

Long Term Debtor 273 1,846

Revaluation Reserve (8,515) 6

Capital Adjustment Account (47,140) 3,261

Deferred Capital Receipts 25 (1,846)

2009/10 Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account

Cultural, Environmental, Regulatory and Planning Services 18,192 (4)

Fiancing & Investment Income & Expenditure (Investment 

Properties)
1,794 117

 
 
The net change to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement of £0.113m consists of the 
crediting of the capital element of the rental payments to the Long Term Debtor rather than here and the 
reversal of depreciation previously charged in respect of the non-investment property item. 
 
The net increase in Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (£0.113m) is removed by a transfer 
from the Capital Adjustment Account to mitigate the loss of revenue income involved in crediting the Long 
Term Debtor with the capital element of the rental payments received. These transfers are shown in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Government Grants 
 
Under the Code, grants and contributions for capital schemes are recognised as income when they 
become receivable.  Previously, grants were held in a grants deferred account and recognised as income 
over the life of the assets which they were used to fund. 
 
As a consequence of adopting the accounting policy required by the Code, the financial statements have 
been amended as follows: 
 

Page 97



Page 78 

• The balance on the Government Grants Deferred Account at 31 March 2009 has been 
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account in the opening 1 April 2009 Balance Sheet. 

• Portions of government grants deferred were previously recognised as income in 2009/10; these 
have been removed from the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the 
comparative figures. 

• Grants have been classified as conditional or non-conditional. Conditional grants have been 
further classified as either ones where the conditions have been met or otherwise.  The balances 
relating to unused unconditional grants or conditional grants where the conditions have been met 
are held in the Capital Grants Unapplied Account and classified under reserves in the Balance 
Sheet, as they are available for use by the Council.  Otherwise the balance relating to the grant is 
held in the Capital Grants Receipts in Advance Account under liabilities in the Balance Sheet, 
since the amounts are potentially still liable to be repaid to the grantor. 

 
This has resulted in the following changes being made to the 2009/10 financial statements: 
 

2009/10 

Statements

Adjustments 

Made

£000 £000

Opening 1 April 2009 Balance Sheet

Government Grants Deferred Account 1,891 (1,891)

Grants Unapplied Account (liabilities) 1,839 (1,838)

Capital Adjustment Account 43,897 1,891

Capital Grants Receipts in Advance Account (liabilities) - 382

Capital Grants Unapplied Account (reserves) - 1,456

31 March 2010 Balance Sheet

Government Grants Deferred Account 2,553 (2,552)

Grants Unapplied Account (liabilities) 2,429 (2,429)

Capital Adjustment Account 47,140 2,552

Capital Grants Receipts in Advance Account (liabilities) - 719

Capital Grants Unapplied Account (reserves) - 1,710

2009/10 Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account

Cultural, Environmental, Regulatory and Planning Services 18,192 664

Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income (18,674) (908)  
 
There is no change to the General Fund Balance, as capital grant income is transferred out of the 
General Fund under both the previous and the current accounting policies. 
 
Investment Properties Balance in Revaluation Reserve 
 
Under the Code, any balance held in the Revaluation reserve which relates to upward revaluations of 
Investment Properties is to be transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. This reflects the treatment 
of upward revaluations of Investment Properties under IFRS, which requires the amount of the 
revaluation to be credited to Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure within the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and then transferred to the Capital Adjustment 
Account via the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

2009/10 

Statements

Adjustments 

Made

£000 £000

Opening 1 April 2009 Balance Sheet

Revaluation Reserve (7,650) 1,203

Capital Adjustment Account (43,897) (1,203)

31 March 2010 Balance Sheet

Revaluation Reserve (8,515) 1,592

Capital Adjustment Account (47,140) (1,592)  
 

Page 98



Page 79 

 
 
44.  Trusts and Other Similar Funds 
 
The following statement summarises the balances and movements during the year of the various Funds 
for which the Council acts as Sole Trustee (indicated by *) or otherwise assumes a supervisory role. 
Balances relating to these Funds are not included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and their 
transactions are not included in the Consolidated Revenue Account. 
 

Trust & Other Similar Funds

Balance at          

1 April
Expenditure Income

Balance at 

31 March

£000 £000 £000 £000

Newcastle Almshouses Trust (Accom. For 

Poor Widows)
(4) 5 20 11

Sports Advisory Council 

(Advice/Assistance to Sport)
12 28 23 7

Museum Purchase Fund (Maintenance and 

Purchase of Museum Exhibits)
6 - - 6

United Charities - Eliza Hinds Charity 

(grave upkeep)
3 - - 3

United Charities - Relief in Need Charity 

(Christmas gifts for elderly)
27 2 3 28

United Charities - Relief in Sickness 

Charity (Christmas gifts for elderly)
63 2 5 66

Barracks Trust (management of Barracks 

and charitable disbursements)
3,050 2,488 51 613

£3,157 £2,525 £102 £734
 

 
Notes 
(a) The United Charities financial year ends at 30 September each year. The balances brought forward in 
relation to these charities are, in fact, those at 30 September 2009 and the carried forward balances are 
those for 30 September 2010. 
(b) A revaluation of the Barracks Trusts assets was undertaken during the financial year; as such the 
assets were re-valued at £0.55m, a decrease of £2.45m from their previous value of £3m. 
(c) The Barracks Trust balance at 1 April, shown as £3,050k, differs from the balance at 31 March 2010 
shown in the 2009/10 Statement of Accounts, which was £3,057k. This is because the Trustees amended 
their accounts by £7k when they were presented to them for approval, which occurred after the 
compilation of the 2009/10 Statement of Accounts. 

Page 99



Page 80 

Collection Fund 
 

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

Expenditure

7,015 Precepts and Demands  - Borough Council 7,154

38,710  - County Council 39,480

6,622  - Police Authority 6,816

2,520  - Fire Authority 2,596

54,867 56,046

Business Ratepayers

28,674  - Contribution to National Pool 26,840

148  - Cost of Collection 142

28,822 26,982

530 Provision for Bad Debts 730

(35)     - Re Council Tax (15)

- - (15)

84,184 Total Expenditure 83,743

Income

29,133 Business Ratepayers 27,553

47,012 Council Taxpayers 48,145

76,145 75,698

Transfers from General Fund

8,207  - Council Tax Benefit 8,459

-  - Discretionary NNDR Relief - 

8,207 8,459

- Transfer from/(to) Bad Debts Provision - 

84,352 Total Income 84,157

£168 Surplus/(Deficit) For The Year £414

Collection Fund Balance

(456) Balance at Beginning of Year (288)

168 Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year 414

(£288) Balance at end of Year £126

Precepts

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

7,015 Newcastle Borough Council 7,154

38,710 Staffordshire County Council 39,480

6,622 Staffordshire Police Authority 6,816

Contribution towards Previous Years Surplus/(Deficit) 

    - Re Community Charge

 

Page 100



Page 81 

 

NOTES 

 
1. Business Rates 
The Council collects business rates in its area on behalf of the Government based on non-domestic 
rateable values multiplied by a uniform business rate.  The rate is specified by the Government and 
in 2010/11 was 41.4p, with a reduction for “small businesses” to 40.7p on application (48.5p in 
2009/10 - “small business” reduction, 48.1p). The Council is responsible for collecting rates due from 
the ratepayers in its area and the total amount collected, less certain reliefs and deductions is paid 
into the NNDR Pool. The Council then receives a share of the pool on the basis of a fixed amount 
per head of population. 
 

 
2010/11 

£ 
2009/10 

£ 

Non Domestic Rateable Value at year-end 81,549,826 73,290,105 

 
Valuations have increased as a result of the five-yearly revaluation which took effect in 2010/11. At 
the same time the uniform business rate was reduced. 
 
The government has introduced a Business Rates Deferral Scheme, which permits ratepayers to 
defer payment of part of the amount due.  No adjustment has, however, been made to the debtors 
balance in respect of the deferred amount as the 2010 Code of Accounting Practice indicates that 
the full amount should be recorded. 
 
2.  Council Tax 
 

Council Tax Income is derived from charges raised according to the value of residential properties 
which have been classified into eight valuation bands for this purpose. Individual charges are 
calculated by estimating the amount of income required to be taken from the Collection Fund by 
Staffordshire County Council, Staffordshire Police Authority, Staffordshire Fire Authority and the 
Borough Council for the forthcoming year and dividing this by the council tax base.  The average 
Band D tax in 2010/11 of £1,450.99 compared with £1,422.37 in 2009/10. Multiplication of this 
amount by the proportions set out below gives the amount due for a property in each band: 
 

Band A 6/9 

Band B 7/9 

Band C 8/9 

Band D 9/9 

Band E 11/9 

Band F 13/9 

Band G 15/9 

Band H 18/9 

 
 
The Council Tax Base for 2010/11 was derived as follows: 

Page 101



Page 82 

Band and Value Range
Number of 

Dwellings

After Discounts 

& Exemptions

Ratio to            

Band D

Band D 

Equivalents

Band A (Up to £40,000) 23,714           19,764             6/9 13,216         

Band B (£40,001 - £52,000) 9,809             8,716               7/9 6,779           

Band C (£52,001 - £ 68,000) 10,634           9,608               8/9 8,440           

Band D (£68,001 - £88,000) 4,286             3,921               9/9 3,896           

Band E (£88,001 - £120,000) 2,581             2,352               11/9 2,874           

Band F (£120,001 - £160,000) 1,695             1,565               13/9 2,260           

Band G (£160,001 - £320,000) 886                798                  15/9 1,330           

Band H (Over £320,000) 45                 22                   18/9 41               

38,836         

Less adjustment for collection 

rates (1%)
(388)             

Borough Council Tax Base 38,448         
 

Council Tax Base analysed over Parished and Unparished Areas of the Borough 

Council Tax Base

Equivalent 

Band D 

Dwellings

Newcastle 38,448

Kidsgrove 7,179

Audley 2,651

Loggerheads 1,944

Balterley, Betley & Wrinehill 583

Chapel & Hill Chorlton 197

Keele 337

Madeley 1,510

Maer 249

Silverdale 1,389

Whitmore 797

Total Council Tax Base 55,284
 

3. Precepts 

The following authorities made demands (precepts) on the Collection Fund:- 
2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

7,015 Newcastle Borough Council 7,154

38,710 Staffordshire County Council 39,480

6,622 Staffordshire Police Authority 6,816

2,520 Staffordshire Fire Authority 2,596

£54,867 £56,046
 

 
4.  Write-Offs 
During the year the following amounts were written-off to the relevant Bad Debts Provisions in respect of 
irrecoverable debt: 
Council Tax: £40,292 (£99,282 2009/10) 
NNDR: £123,169 (£265,729 2009/10) 

 

 

Audit Certificate 

 

Page 102



Page 83 

Glossary of Terms 
 
To assist readers of the Statement of Accounts to understand its contents the following definitions 
are provided of terms used in the text. 
 
Accounting Policies 
Accounting policies are the principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the 
Council that specify how the effects of transactions and other events are to be reflected in its 
financial statements through recognising, selecting measurement bases for and presenting assets, 
liabilities, gains, losses, and changes to reserves. 
 
Accruals 
The concept that items of income and expenditure are recognised as they are earned or incurred, 
not as money is received or paid. 
 
Actuarial Gains and Losses 
For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses that arise 
because: 
 - events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last valuation (experience 
gains and losses); or 
- the actuarial assumptions have changed. 
 
Amortisation 
An annual charge to a revenue account to reduce the value of an asset to zero over a period of 
years.  
 
Assets Register 
A register of the Council’s fixed assets which records their essential details, including their 
description and location, valuation, basis of valuation, life and service chargeable for their use. 
 
Balance Sheet 
This shows a summary of the overall financial position of the Council at the end of the financial 
year. 
 
Capital Expenditure 
Expenditure on the acquisition of fixed assets or expenditure, which adds to and does not merely 
maintain existing assets. 
 
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance Account 
An account which holds the balances of capital grants received where conditions apply and have 
not been satisfied meaning that the grants are not yet available for use to finance expenditure. 
 
Capital Grants Unapplied Account 
A usable reserve holding the balances of capital grants received or due to the Council at the year 
end where conditions do not apply to those grants or conditions have been satisfied meaning that 
the grant is available for use to finance expenditure. 
 
Capital Receipts 
Income received from the sale of capital assets which may be used to finance new capital 
expenditure.  
 
CIPFA 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) is one of the leading 
accountancy bodies in the United Kingdom and specialises in public services. 
 
Collection Fund 
A fund accounting for Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates received by the Council and the 
payments which are made from the fund including precepts to other authorities, the Council’s own 
demand and payments to the NNDR pool. 
 

Page 103



Page 84 

Community Assets 
Assets which the Council intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no determinable useful life, and 
that may have restrictions on their disposal. Examples of community assets are parks and historic 
buildings. 
 
Consistency 
The concept that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting period and from one 
period to the next is the same. 
 
Contingent Asset 
A contingent asset is a possible asset arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the local authority’s 
control. 
 
Contingent Liability 
A contingent liability is either: - 
• a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the authority’s control; or 
• a present obligation arising from past events where it is not probable that a transfer of economic 

benefits will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient 
reliability. 

 
Current Service Cost 
The increase in the present value of a defined benefit pension scheme’s liabilities expected to arise 
from employee service in the current period. 
 
Creditors 
Amounts owed by the Council for goods and services, where payments have not been made at the 
end of the financial year. 
 
Curtailment 
For a defined benefit scheme, an event that reduces the expected years of future service of present 
employees or reduces for a number of employees the accrual of defined benefits for some or all of 
their future service. Curtailments include termination of employees’ services earlier than expected, 
for example as a result of discontinuing a segment of the business and termination of, or 
amendment to the terms of, a defined benefit scheme so that some or all future service by current 
employees will no longer qualify for benefits or will qualify only for reduced benefits. 
 
Debtors 
Amounts owed to the Council for goods and services, where the income has not been received at 
the end of the financial year. 
 
Deferred Liabilities 
These are liabilities which by arrangement are payable beyond the next year at some point in the 
future or are paid off by an annual sum over a period of time, specifically for this Council amounts 
outstanding in respect of finance leases. 
 
Defined Benefit Pension Scheme 
A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution scheme. Usually, 
the scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions payable, and the benefits 
are not directly related to the investments of the scheme. The scheme may be funded or unfunded 
(including notionally funded). 
 
Depreciation 
The measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benefits of the fixed asset that have been 
consumed during the period. Consumption includes wearing out, using up or other reduction in the 
useful life of a fixed asset whether arising from use, effluxion of time or obsolescence through either 
changes in technology or demand for the goods and services produced by the asset. 
 

Page 104



Page 85 

Discretionary Benefits 
Retirement benefits which the employer has no legal, contractual or constructive obligation to 
award and are awarded under the authority’s discretionary powers, such as The Local Government 
(Discretionary Payments) Regulations 1996, The Local Government (Discretionary Payments and 
Injury Benefits) (Scotland) Regulations 1998, or The Local Government (Discretionary Payments) 
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2001. 
 
Expected Rate of Return on Pension Assets 
For a funded defined benefit pension scheme, the average rate of return, including both income and 
changes in fair value but net of scheme expenses, expected over the remaining life of the related 
obligation on the actual assets held by the scheme. 
 
Experience Gains and Losses 
See Actuarial Gains and Losses 
 
Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs) 
Statements prepared by the Accounting Standards Committee. Many of the Financial Reporting 
Standards (FRSs) and the earlier Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (SSAPs) apply to 
local authorities and any departure from these must be disclosed in the published accounts. 
 
Financial Instrument 
A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another. Typical financial instruments are: Liabilities - trade 
payables, borrowings, financial guarantees; Assets - bank deposits, trade receivables, investments; 
Derivatives - forward investment deals. 
 
Financial Year 
Period of time to which a Statement of Accounts relates. The financial year of the Council runs from 
1 April to 31 March. 
 
Fixed Assets 
Tangible assets that yield benefits to the local authority and the services it provides for a period of 
more than one year. 
The classes of fixed assets required to be included in the accounting statements are: 
Operational assets 
  - Other land and buildings (excluding Council Dwellings) 
  - Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment    
  - Infrastructure assets 
  - Community assets 
Non operational assets 
  - Investment Properties 
  - Assets Held for Sale 
Assets under construction are not shown separately. They are included in the balance relating to 
the category of operational asset where they will be included when completed. 
 
General Fund Revenue Account 
This account records the expenditure and income incurred by the Council in operating its services 
during the year. It does not record any capital expenditure or income but does include the costs 
associated with capital expenditure in the form of capital financing costs (mostly related to interest, 
capital charges for the use of assets by services and depreciation charges). 
 
Government Grants 
Assistance by government and inter-government agencies and similar bodies, whether local, 
national or international, in the form of cash or transfer of assets to an authority in return for past or 
future compliance with certain conditions relating to the activities of the authority. 
 
Historical Cost 
Actual cost of acquiring or constructing an asset. 
 

Page 105



Page 86 

Impairment 
A reduction in the value of a fixed asset below its carrying amount on the balance sheet. 
 
Infrastructure Assets 
Fixed assets that are inalienable, expenditure on which is recoverable only by continued use of the 
asset created. Examples of infrastructure are highways and sewers. 
 
Interest Cost 
For a defined benefit pension scheme, the expected increase during the period in the present value 
of the scheme liabilities because the benefits are one period closer to settlement. 
 
Insurance Value 
The value placed upon an asset for insurance purposes. 
 
Intangible Assets 
Non-financial fixed assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and are 
controlled by the Council through custody or legal rights. Specifically purchased software licenses 
are included in this category of asset. 
 
Inventories 
The amount of unused or unconsumed stocks held in expectation of future use. When use will not 
arise until a later period, it is appropriate to carry forward the amount to be matched to the use or 
consumption when it arises. Inventories comprise the following categories: 
(a) goods or other assets purchased for resale; 
(b) consumable stores; 
(c) raw materials and components purchased for incorporation into products for sale; 
(d) products and services in intermediate stages of completion; 
(e) long-term contract balances; and 
(f) finished goods 
The Council currently only has inventories in category (b) above. 
 
Investments 
A long-term investment is an investment that is intended to be held for use on a continuing basis in 
the activities of the authority. Investments should be classified only where an intention to hold the 
investment for the long term can clearly be demonstrated or where there are restrictions as to the 
investor’s ability to dispose of the investment. Investments which do not meet the above criteria 
should be qualified as current assets. 
Investment Properties 
Interest in land and/or buildings: 
(a) in respect of which construction work and development have been completed; and 
(b) which is held for its investment potential, any rental income being negotiated at arm’s length; 

and 
(c) which do not support the service or strategic objectives of the Council. 
Leasing 
Method of financing the provision of capital assets which does not provide for the title to the asset 
to pass to the authority. In return for the use of the asset the Council pays rental charges over a 
specified period of time. There are two basic types of leasing arrangement: 
(a) Finance leases which transfer the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the lessee (the 
Council) and such assets are included within the fixed assets in the Balance Sheet. 
(b) Operating leases where the ownership of the asset remains with the lessor and annual rental is 
charged direct to the revenue account. 
 
Liquid Resources 
Current asset investments that are readily disposable by the authority without disrupting its 
business and are either readily convertible to known amounts of cash at or close to the carrying 
amount or are traded in an active market. Council tax and National Non Domestic Rates receipts 
under or overpaid to the major precepting authorities and the Department of Communities and 
Local Government, respectively, are also included in the Management of Liquid Resources 
section of the Cash Flow Statement. 

Page 106



Page 87 

Long Term Debtors 
Comprises amounts which are owed to the Council which are not investments and which are not 
expected to be realised within the next financial year. The main items included in this heading are 
outstanding loans from the Council to other bodies and outstanding amounts in respect of finance 
leases of Council properties to other bodies. 
 
Material Items 
An item is material if its omission, non-disclosure or misstatement could be expected to lead to a 
distortion of the view given by the financial statements. 
 
National Non-Domestic Rate (NNDR) 
Amounts payable to local authorities from non-domestic properties. The rate poundage is set 
nationally and amounts collected by local authorities are pooled, via the NNDR Pool, and then 
redistributed by the Government to local authorities based on the local resident population. 
 
Non-Distributed Costs 
Overheads from which no user now benefits and which are not apportioned to services. 
 
Past Service Cost 
For a defined benefit pension scheme, the increase in the present value of the scheme liabilities 
related to employee service in prior periods arising in the current period as a result of the 
introduction of, or improvement to, retirement benefits. 
 
Precept 
Demands made upon the Collection Fund by other authorities (Staffordshire County Council, Police 
and Fire Authorities and Parish Councils) for the services that they provide. 
 
Prior Period Adjustments 
Those material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in accounting policies or 
from the correction of fundamental errors. They do not include normal recurring conditions or 
adjustments of accounting estimates made in prior years. 
 
Provisions 
Amounts set aside to meet liabilities or losses which are likely to be incurred but where the amount 
remains uncertain. 
 
Realisable Value 
Open market value of the asset in its existing use (or open market value in the case of non- 
operational assets), less the expenses to be incurred in realising the asset. 
 
Related Parties 
Two or more parties are related when at any time during the financial period: 
- One party has direct or indirect control over the other party, or 
- The parties are subject to common control from the same source, or 
- One party has influence over the financial and operational policies of the other party to the extent   
that the other party might be inhibited from pursuing at all times its own separate interests, or 

- The parties, in entering a transaction, are subject to influence from the same source to such an  
extent that one of the parties to the transaction has subordinated its own separate interests. 

For individuals identified as related parties, the following are also presumed to be related parties: 
- members of the close family or the same household, and 
- partnerships, companies, trusts or other entities in which the individual, or a member of their 
close family or same household, has a controlling interest. 

 
Related Party Transaction 
A related party transaction is the transfer of assets or liabilities or the performance of services by, to 
or for a related party irrespective of whether a charge is made.  
 
Reserves 
Reserves fall into two different categories: 

Page 107



Page 88 

(a) Usable Reserves representing sums set aside to meet future expenditure for specific purposes 
and which the Council is able to utilise to provide services. 
(b) Unusable Reserves which the Council is not able to utilise to provide services. This category of 
reserves includes reserves which hold unrealisable gains and losses, such as the Revaluation 
Reserve and reserves which are adjustment accounts which deal with situations where income and 
expenditure are recognised statutorily against the General Fund balance on a different basis from 
that expected by accounting standards, for example the Capital Adjustment Account.  
 
Retirement Benefits 
All forms of consideration given by an employer in exchange for services rendered by employees 
that are payable after the completion of employment. Retirement benefits do not include termination 
benefits payable as a result of either (i) an employers decision to terminate an employee’s 
employment before the normal retirement date or (ii) an employee’s decision to accept voluntary 
redundancy in exchange for those benefits, because these are not given in exchange for services 
rendered by employees. 
 
Revenue Expenditure 
Expenditure on the day-to-day running of the Council, including employee costs, running expenses 
and capital financing costs. 
 
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 

 
Expenditure which does not result in the creation of a fixed asset and which is classified as capital 
for funding purposes but is chargeable to the Income and Expenditure Account (I&E Account) as 
revenue expenditure. Any grants or contributions towards such expenditure are also chargeable to 
the I&E Account. An appropriation is made to the I&E Account from the Capital Adjustment Account 
of the amount of expenditure financed from capital resources. Such expenditure was formerly 
referred to as deferred charges. 
 
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 
Grant paid to local authorities by Central Government to help finance its general expenditure.  
 
Scheme Liabilities 
The liabilities of a defined benefit pension scheme for outgoings due after the valuation date. 
Scheme liabilities measured using the projected unit method reflect the benefits that the employer 
is committed to provide for service up to the valuation date. 
 
Settlement 
An irrevocable action that relieves the employer (or the defined benefit scheme) of the primary 
responsibility for a pension obligation and eliminates significant risks relating to the obligation and 
the assets used to effect the settlement. Settlements include a lump-sum cash payment to scheme 
members in exchange for their rights to receive specified pension benefits, the purchase of an 
irrevocable annuity contract sufficient to cover vested benefits and the transfer of scheme assets 
and liabilities relating to a group of employees leaving the scheme. 
 
Useful Life 
Period over which the local authority will derive benefits from the use of a fixed asset. 
 
 
 

Page 108



Annual
governance
report
Newcastle under Lyme Borough Council  

Audit 2010/11 

Page 109



The Audit Commission is a public corporation set up in 

1983 to protect the public purse.

The Commission appoints auditors to councils, NHS 

bodies (excluding NHS Foundation trusts), police 

authorities and other local public services in England, 

and oversees their work. The auditors we appoint are 

either Audit Commission employees (our in-house 

Audit Practice) or one of the private audit firms. Our 

Audit Practice also audits NHS foundation trusts under 

separate arrangements.  

We also help public bodies manage the financial 

challenges they face by providing authoritative, 

unbiased, evidence-based analysis and advice. 

 

 Page 110



Contents 

Key messages ....................................................................................................3

Audit opinion .................................................................................................3

Financial statements.....................................................................................3

Value for money............................................................................................4

Independence...............................................................................................4

Next steps...........................................................................................................5

Financial statements .........................................................................................6

Value for money .................................................................................................9

Appendix 1  Draft independent auditor's report to Members of Newcastle 
under Lyme Borough Council.........................................................................10

Opinion on the Authority accounting statements ........................................10

Conclusion on Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in the use of resources ..................................................11

Appendix 2  Amendments to the draft financial statements........................13

Appendix 3 Unadjusted misstatements in the financial statements...........15

Appendix 4  Draft letter of representation .....................................................16

Appendix 5  Glossary ......................................................................................19

Appendix 6  Action Plan..................................................................................22
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 1
 

Page 111



 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen 

2010/11 Annual Governance Report

I am pleased to present the results of my audit work for 2010/11. 

I discussed and agreed a draft of my report with the Executive Director 

(Resources and Support Services) on 12 September 2011 and updated it as 

issues have been resolved. 

My report sets out the key issues that you should consider before I complete 

the audit.  

It asks you to: 

! consider the matters raised in the report before approving the financial 

statements (pages 6 to 10); 

! note the adjustments to the financial statements set out in this report 

(Appendix 2); 

! agree to adjust the errors in the financial statements I have identified 

that, after consideration, management are not proposing to adjust in 

2010/11 or, if you concur with management and decide not to adjust for 

this, please set out your reasons in the representation letter (Appendix 

4); and 

! approve the letter of representation on behalf of the Council before I 

issue my opinion and conclusion (Appendix 4). 

 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

Tony Corcoran 

 

District Auditor 

Date 26 September 2011 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 2
 

Page 112



Key messages 

This report summarises the findings from the 2010/11 

audit which is complete. It includes the messages 

arising from my audit of your financial statements and 

the results of the work I have undertaken to assess 

your arrangements to secure value for money in your 

use of resources. 

Table 1: Key messages - financial statements 
 

Financial statements Results Page

Unqualified audit opinion Yes 6 

No important weaknesses in internal 

control  

Yes 8 

 

Table 2: Key messages - value for money  
 

Value for money 

Proper arrangements to secure value 

for money 

Yes 9 

Audit opinion 

1 I have completed my audit of Newcastle under Lyme Borough Council's 

Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2011. 

2 I can confirm that I will be issuing an audit report including an 

unqualified opinion on the financial statements. 

Financial statements 

3 This has been a good year for the finance team. The Head of Finance 

has a good understanding of the requirements of International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IRFS). During this time there were also uncertainties 

in relation to your future funding arising from the Comprehensive Spending 

Review. In my view, your team has performed extremely well, dealing with 

these challenges while preparing the statement of accounts with a reduction 

in the number of errors from last year. The finance team have been very 

constructive in working to address any matters raised. I can report the 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 3
 

Page 113



amendments to the accounts have not led to a change in the amount to be 

funded by Council Tax Payers through the precept. 

4 I have not identified any material misstatements in your accounts and 

management has agreed to amend the majority of the other non-trifling 

misstatements identified as part of the audit process. These changes have 

been detailed in Appendix 2 for completeness.  

5 I have also identified two non material misstatements which, after 

consideration, management are not proposing to adjust in 2010/11 but will 

review in 2011/12. These are detailed in Appendix 3. I am required to bring 

this to your attention so that you may consider amending the financial 

statements. If you concur with management and decide not to adjust for 

these please set out your reasons in the representation letter. 

Value for money 

6 I have completed my audit of Newcastle under Lyme Borough Council's 

Value for Money arrangements for the year ended 31 March 2011. 

7 I will issue an unqualified conclusion stating the Authority had adequate 

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources. 

Independence

8 I can confirm that I have complied with the Audit Practice Board's ethical 

standards for auditors, including ES 1 (revised) - Integrity, Objectivity and 

Independence. I can also confirm there were no relationships resulting in a 

threat to independence, objectivity and integrity.  

9 The Audit Commission's Audit Practice has not undertaken any  

non-audit work for the Council during 2010/11.  

 

 

 

 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 4
 

Page 114



Next steps 

This report identifies the key messages that you should 

consider before I issue my financial statements 

opinion, value for money conclusion, and audit closure 

certificate. It includes only matters of governance 

interest that have come to my attention in performing 

my audit. My audit is not designed to identify all 

matters that might be relevant to you.  

10 I ask the Audit and Risk Committee to: 

! consider the matters raised in the report before approving the financial 

statements (pages 6 to 10); 

! note the adjustments to the financial statements set out in this report 

(Appendix 2); 

! agree to adjust the errors in the financial statements I have identified 

that, after consideration, management are not proposing to adjust in 

2010/11 or, if you concur with management and decide not to adjust for 

these, please set out your reasons in the representation letter 

(Appendix 4); and 

! approve the letter of representation on behalf of the Council before I 

issue my opinion and conclusion (Appendix 4). 

 

 

 

 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 5
 

Page 115



Financial statements 

The Council's financial statements and annual 

governance statement are an important means by 

which the Council accounts for its stewardship of 

public funds. As Council members you have final 

responsibility for these statements. It is important that 

you consider my findings before you adopt the 

financial statements and the annual governance 

statement.

Opinion on the financial statements 

11 I plan to issue an audit report including an unqualified opinion on the 

financial statements. Appendix 1 contains a copy of my draft audit report. 

Key areas of judgement and audit risk 

12 In planning my audit I identified specific risks and areas of judgement 

that I have considered as part of my audit.  

Table 3: Key areas of judgement and audit risk 
 

Issue or risk Finding

The Council was facing 

significant uncertainties 

that could have affected its 

medium term financial 

health. Income from fees 

and charges was reducing 

and there was uncertainty 

about future funding 

streams. 

The settlement received by the Council for 

2011/12 and 2012/13 although challenging, 

was as you expected. You have undertaken 

significant work to re-engineer your services 

and make significant annual savings that 

should leave you relatively robustly 

positioned for the future. Although car park 

income is below budget, a car park review is 

being undertaken. 

The Council was preparing 

its accounts in line with the 

requirements of IFRS for 

the first time. There was a 

risk that the transition to 

IFRS could prove difficult 

for the Council 

You achieved the re-statement of your 

previous year's accounts effectively. I have 

carried out a significant number of additional 

tests to confirm the accuracy of your 

restatements and ensure the materially 

correct statement of this year's accounts. I 

found few errors in your draft accounts. 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 6
 

Page 116



Issue or risk Finding

The Council has £2.5m 

invested with the Heritable, 

an Icelandic bank that has 

gone into administration.  

Latest reports indicate that a significant 

proportion of the investment will be returned 

over the next few years. Over £1m has so 

far been returned. The Council has 

sufficient reserves to cope with the 

anticipated loss and has made appropriate 

allowances within its Medium Term 

Financial Strategy. 

The Council implemented 

a new benefits system 

during the year. There was 

a risk that this could have 

an adverse affect on the 

benefits service or the 

reliability of the accounting 

figures produced by the 

system during the 

transition period. 

We will review the accuracy of benefit 

payments as part of our review, however 

work undertaken reviewing the transition 

between system indicated that the process 

went relatively smoothly. 

You are replacing the old 

Jubilee Swimming Baths 

with a new facility. This is a 

major project with 

attendant risks to budgets 

and timescales. 

The project is now substantially complete 

and monitoring indicates that it will be 

delivered within budget and to expected 

timescales. 

Quality of your financial statements  

13 I consider aspects of your accounting practices, accounting policies, 

accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures. I would like to 

recognise the hard work of the accountancy team in improving the accounts 

closedown process this year. You produced the accounts within the 

closedown timescales and statutory deadlines and further improved the 

working papers. As a result of the improvements, I have found fewer audit 

differences in the financial statements than last year. 

Errors in the financial statements  

14 If I have identified any material misstatements which have been 

corrected by management, auditing standards require that I bring these to 

your attention in order to assist you in fulfilling your governance 

responsibilities.  

15 There were no material disclosure adjustments to the accounts. There 

have been a small number of other adjustments to disclosure notes and the 

classification of some items which have been amended in the final version 

of the statements presented for approval. These amendments are 

summarised in Appendix 2. 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 7
 

Page 117



Unadjusted errors in the financial statements 

16 Under auditing standards I am required to bring to the attention of the 

Audit Committee any misstatements, including omissions or other errors in 

presentation or disclosure, other than those that are clearly trifling, identified 

during the course of my normal audit work for which no adjustment has 

been made in the financial statements.  

17 There are no unadjusted audit differences that are material to the 

financial statements but I have identified two items which, after 

consideration, management are not proposing to adjust in 2010/11 but will 

review in 2011/12 and I have detailed them in Appendix 3. I am required to 

bring this to your attention so that you may consider amending the financial 

statements. If you concur with management and decide not to adjust for this 

please set out your reasons in the representation letter. 

 

Recommendation

R1 The Audit and Risk Committee is invited to consider the impact of the 

unadjusted misstatements in Appendix 3 of the external auditor's 

2010/11 Annual Governance Report and either instruct management 

to amend the financial statements or, if you concur with management 

and decide not to adjust for these, set out the reasons for not 

amending the errors in the representation letter. 

Important weaknesses in internal control  

18 I have not identified any important weaknesses in internal control. 

Letter of representation  

19 Before I issue my opinion, auditing standards require me to ask you and 

management for written representations about your financial statements and 

governance arrangements. Appendix 4 contains the draft letter of 

representation. 

 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 8
 

Page 118



Value for money 

I am required to conclude whether the Council put in 

place proper corporate arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources. This is known as the value for money 

conclusion.  

20 I assess your arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in your use of resources against two criteria specified by the 

Audit Commission. My conclusion on each of the two areas is set out below.  

21 I intend to issue an unqualified conclusion stating that the Authority had 

adequate arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 

the use of resources. Appendix 1 contains the wording of my draft report. 

Table 4: Value for money conclusion criterion 
 

Value for money criteria Results

The organisation has proper arrangements in place for 

securing financial resilience. 

Yes 

The organisation has proper arrangements for 

challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness. 

Yes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 9
 

Page 119



Appendix 1  Draft independent auditor's report 
to Members of Newcastle under Lyme 
Borough Council 

Opinion on the Authority accounting statements 
 
I have audited the accounting statements of Newcastle under Lyme 
Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2011 under the Audit 
Commission Act 1998. The accounting statements comprise the Movement 
in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and Collection 
Fund and the related notes. These accounting statements have been 
prepared under the accounting policies set out in the Statement of 
Accounting Policies. 
 
This report is made solely to the members of Newcastle under Lyme 
Borough Council in accordance with Part II of the Audit Commission Act 
1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 48 of the Statement 
of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by the Audit 
Commission in March 2010. 

Respective responsibilities of the Executive Director (Resources and 

Support Services) and auditor 

 
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Executive Director 
(Resources and Support Services) Responsibilities, the Executive Director 
(Resources and Support Services) is responsible for the preparation of the 
Authority’s Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as 
set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom. My responsibility is to audit the 
accounting statements in accordance with applicable law and International 
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require me to 
comply with the Auditing Practice’s Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 

 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the accounting statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the 
accounting statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused 
by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:  

! whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Authority’s 

circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately 

disclosed;  

! the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the 

Authority; and  

! the overall presentation of the accounting statements.  

 
I read all the information in the explanatory foreword and the annual report 
to identify material inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements. 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 10
 

Page 120



If I become aware of any apparent material misstatements or 
inconsistencies I consider the implications for my report. 

Opinion on accounting statements 

 
In my opinion the accounting statements: 

! give a true and fair view of the state of Newcastle under Lyme Borough 

Council’s affairs as at 31 March 2011 and of its income and expenditure 

for the year then ended; and 

! have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC 

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom. 

Opinion on other matters 

 
In my opinion, the information given in the explanatory foreword and the 
content of the Annual Report for the financial year for which the accounting 
statements are prepared is consistent with the accounting statements. 

Matters on which I report by exception 

 
I have nothing to report in respect of the governance statement on which I 
report to you if, in my opinion the governance statement does not reflect 
compliance with ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: a 
Framework’ published by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007. 
 

Conclusion on Authority’s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of 
resources

Authority’s responsibilities 

 
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to 
ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the 
adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. 

Auditor’s responsibilities 

 
I am required under Section 5 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to satisfy 
myself that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of 
Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission requires me to report to you 
my conclusion relating to proper arrangements, having regard to relevant 
criteria specified by the Audit Commission. 
 
I report if significant matters have come to my attention which prevent me 
from concluding that the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. I am 
not required to consider, nor have I considered, whether all aspects of the 
Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
in its use of resources are operating effectively. 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 11
 

Page 121



Basis of conclusion 

 
I have undertaken my audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, 
having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria, published by the 
Audit Commission in October 2010, as to whether the Authority has proper 
arrangements for: 

! securing financial resilience; and 

! challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
The Audit Commission has determined these two criteria as those 
necessary for me to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying 
myself whether the Authority put in place proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year 
ended 31 March 2011. 
 
I planned my work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on 
my risk assessment, I undertook such work as I considered necessary to 
form a view on whether, in all significant respects, the Authority had put in 
place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
in its use of resources. 

Conclusion

 
On the basis of my work, having regard to the guidance on the specified 
criteria published by the Audit Commission in October 2010, I am satisfied 
that, in all significant respects, Newcastle under Lyme Borough Council put 
in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31 March 2011. 

Certificate

 
I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of Newcastle under 
Lyme Borough Council in accordance with the requirements of the Audit 
Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit 
Commission. 
 
 
 
 
 

Tony Corcoran 

Officer of the Audit Commission 

1st Floor,  
No.1 Friarsgate 
1011 Stratford Road,  
Shirley 
Solihull,  
West Midlands,  
B90 4BN 
 

26 September 2011 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 12
 

Page 122



Appendix 2  Amendments to the draft financial 
statements 

I identified the following misstatements during my audit and management 

have adjusted the financial statements. I bring them to your attention to help 

you in fulfilling your governance responsibilities. 

Table 5: 

 

Income and 

Expenditure

Account

Balance sheet 

Adjusted

misstatements

Nature of adjustment Dr

£000s

Cr

£000s

Dr

£000s

Cr

£000s

Long Term 

Investments 

£0.124m of Long Term investments 

incorrectly included in Short Term 

Investments. 

  124  

Short Term 

Investments 

As Above.    124 

 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 13
 

Page 123



 

Text Disclosure Amendments and amendments to notes 

Adjusted

misstatements

Nature of adjustment 

Balance Sheet The balance sheet and balance sheet notes to the accounts needed to 

include comparative figures for 1.4.09. 

Minor errors. Within the accounts there were a number of minor typographical, 

transposition and textual errors that have been corrected. 

Disclosures The change in pension fund benefits from RPI to CPI was disclosed as 

income. This is now disclosed within expenditure as it is a negative past 

service cost. 

Upon reviewing the Accounts there were a number of disclosures that 

needed improving and one table within Note 40 that was incomplete at the 

start of the audit. These disclosures have now been completed. 

Note 44 - Trusts and 

Other Similar Funds 

The Barracks Trust balances had been amended by the Trust and so 

changed in your accounts.  You have provided an explanation for the 

amendment. 

Note 15 - Financial 

Instruments 

Categories of Financial Instruments and the Fair Value of Assets and 

Liabilities table needed to include £0.242m under Long Term debtors and 

£0.774m of bank deposits. 

Note 39 - Contingent 

Liabilities 

A contingent liability for local land charge fees which may have to be 

repaid has now been disclosed. 

Note 34 - Capital 

Expenditure and 

Capital Financing 

The Capital Financing Requirement opening and closing position had been 

calculated incorrectly and has been amended. 

 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 14
 

Page 124



Appendix 3 Unadjusted misstatements in the 
financial statements  

I identified the following misstatements during my audit that management 

has not adjusted the financial statements. I bring this to your attention to 

help you in fulfilling your governance responsibilities and ask you consider 

correcting this misstatement. If you decide not to amend, please tell me why 

in the representation letter. If you believe the effect of the uncorrected error 

is immaterial, please reflect this in the representation letter. Please refer to 

the uncorrected error in the representation letter. 

Table 6: 
 
 

Income and 

Expenditure

Account

Balance sheet 

Unadjusted

misstatements

Nature of adjustment Dr

£000s

Cr

£000s

Dr

£000s

Cr

£000s

Note 20 - Creditors 

 

 

 

 

During sample testing, two accruals 

were identified that should not have 

been made. The first accrual was for an 

item ordered after the year end.  The 

other accrual was for an electricity bill 

that had already been processed. We 

have extrapolated the potential error as 

£0.147m. 

  13  

CIES - Gross Costs As above.  13   

Note 17 - Debtors 

(Central 

Government Bodies) 

As part of the audit of the National Non 

Domestic Rates Return, we identified 

an error of £0.063m. 

  63  

Collection Fund  As above.    63 

Source: Audit Commission 

 

 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 15
 

Page 125



Appendix 4  Draft letter of representation 

To: Tony Corcoran 
Appointed Auditor 
1st Floor,  
No.1 Friarsgate 
1011 Stratford Road,  
Shirley 
Solihull,  
West Midlands,  
B90 4BN 
 

Newcastle under Lyme Borough Council - Audit for the year ended 31 

March 2011 

 
I confirm to the best of my knowledge and belief, having made appropriate 
enquiries of other officers of Newcastle under Lyme Borough Council, the 
following representations given to you in connection with your audit of the 
Council's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011. All 
representations cover the Authority’s accounts included within the financial 
statements. 

Compliance with the statutory authorities 

I have fulfilled my responsibility under the relevant statutory authorities for 
preparing the financial statements in accordance with the Code of Practice 
for Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom and International 
Financial Reporting Standards which give a true and fair view of the 
financial position and financial performance of the Authority, for the 
completeness of the information provided to you, and for making accurate 
representations to you.  

Uncorrected misstatements 

The effects of uncorrected financial statements misstatements summarised 
in the attached schedule are not material to the financial statements, either 
individually or in aggregate.   

Supporting records 

All relevant information and access to persons within the entity have been 
made available to you for the purpose of your audit, and all the transactions 
undertaken by the Authority have been properly reflected and recorded in 
the financial statements.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 16
 

Page 126



Irregularities 

I acknowledge my responsibility for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud or error. 
I also confirm that I have disclosed: 

! my knowledge of fraud, or suspected fraud, involving either 

management, employees who have significant roles in internal control 

or others where fraud could have a material effect on the financial 

statements;  

! my knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting 

the entity’s financial statements communicated by employees, former 

employees, analysts, regulators or others; and 

! the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements 

may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

Law, regulations, contractual arrangements and codes of practice 

I have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance, or 
suspected non-compliance with laws, regulations and codes of practice, 
whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements. 
 
Transactions and events have been carried out in accordance with law, 
regulation or other authority.  The Authority has complied with all aspects of 
contractual arrangements that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements in the event of non-compliance.   
 
All known actual or possible litigation and claims, whose effects should be 
considered when preparing the financial statements, have been disclosed to 
the auditor and accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the 
applicable financial reporting framework. 

Accounting estimates including fair values 

I confirm the reasonableness of the significant assumptions used in making 
the accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value.  
 
I confirm: 

! the appropriateness of the measurement method, including related 

assumptions and models, and the consistency in application of the 

process; 

! the assumptions appropriately reflect management’s intent and ability to 

carry out specific courses of action on behalf of the entity, where 

relevant to the accounting estimates and disclosures; 

! the completeness and appropriateness under the financial reporting 

framework;  

! subsequent events do not require adjustment to accounting estimates 

and disclosure included within the financial statements; and 

! that the selection, and application, of accounting policies are 

appropriate. 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 17
 

Page 127



Related party transactions 

I confirm that I have disclosed the identity of Newcastle under Lyme 
Borough Council's related parties and all the related party relationships and 
transactions of which I am aware. I have appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed such relationships and transactions in accordance with the 
requirement of the framework. 

Subsequent events

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements, which would 
require additional adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements, have 
been adjusted or disclosed. 

Signed on behalf of Newcastle under Lyme Borough Council 

I confirm that the this letter has been discussed and agreed by the Audit and 
Risk Committee on 26 September 2011 
 
Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Kelvin Turner 
 
Executive Director (Resources and Support Services) 
 
26 September 2011 

 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 18
 

Page 128



Appendix 5  Glossary 

Annual governance statement

A statement of internal control prepared by an audited body and published 

with the financial statements. 

Audit closure certificate

A certificate that I have completed the audit following statutory 

requirements. This marks the point when I have completed my 

responsibilities for the audit of the period covered by the financial 

statements. 

Audit opinion

On completion of the audit of the financial statements, I must give my 

opinion on the financial statements, including:  

! whether they give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 

audited body and its spending and income for the year in question; and  

! whether they have been prepared properly, following the relevant 

accounting rules.   

Opinion

If I agree that the financial statements give a true and fair view, I issue an 

unqualified opinion. I issue a qualified opinion if: 

! I find the statements do not give a true and fair view; or 

! I cannot confirm that the statements give a true and fair view.

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 19
 

Page 129



Materiality (and significance)  

The APB defines this concept as ‘an expression of the relative significance 

or importance of a particular matter for the financial statements as a whole. 

A matter is material if its omission would reasonably influence users of the 

financial statements, such as the addressees of the auditor’s report; also a 

misstatement is material if it would have a similar influence. Materiality may 

also be considered for any individual primary statement within the financial 

statements or of individual items included in them. We cannot define 

materiality mathematically, as it has both numerical and non-numerical 

aspects’.  

The term ‘materiality’ applies only to the financial statements. Auditors 

appointed by the Commission have responsibilities and duties under statute, 

as well as their responsibility to give an opinion on the financial statements, 

which do not necessarily affect their opinion on the financial statements.  

‘Significance’ applies to these wider responsibilities and auditors adopt a 

level of significance that may differ from the materiality level applied to their 

audit in relation to the financial statements. Significance has both qualitative 

and quantitative aspects.  

Weaknesses in internal control 

A weakness in internal control exists when:  

! a control is designed, set up or used in such a way that it is unable to 

prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements in the financial statements 

quickly; or  

! a control necessary to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements in 

the financial statements quickly is missing.  

An important weakness in internal control is a weakness, or a combination 

of weaknesses that, in my professional judgement, are important enough 

that I should report them to you.  

Value for money conclusion  

The auditor’s conclusion on whether the audited body has put in place 

proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 

its use of resources based on criteria specified by the Audit Commission.  

The Code of Audit Practice defines proper arrangements as corporate 

performance management and financial management arrangements that 

form a key part of the system of internal control. These comprise the 

arrangements for:  

! planning finances effectively to deliver strategic priorities and secure 

sound financial health; 

! having a sound understanding of costs and performance and achieving 

efficiencies in activities; 

! reliable and timely financial reporting that meets the needs of internal 

users, stakeholders and local people; 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 20
 

Page 130



! commissioning and buying quality services and supplies that are 

tailored to local needs and deliver sustainable outcomes and value for 

money; 

! producing relevant and reliable data and information to support decision 

making and manage performance; 

! promoting and displaying the principles and values of good governance; 

! managing risks and maintaining a sound system of internal control; 

! making effective use of natural resources; 

! managing assets effectively to help deliver strategic priorities and 

service needs; and 

! planning, organising and developing the workforce effectively to support 

the achievement of strategic priorities. 

If I find that the audited body had adequate arrangements, I issue an 

unqualified conclusion. If I find that it did not, I issue a qualified conclusion. 

 

 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 21
 

Page 131



Appendix 6  Action Plan 

Recommendations

Recommendation 1

The Audit and Risk Committee is invited to consider the impact of the unadjusted misstatements in 

Appendix 3 of the external auditor's 2010/11 Annual Governance Report and either instruct 

management to amend the financial statements or, if you concur with management and decide not 

to adjust for these, set out the reasons for not amending the errors in the representation letter. 

Responsibility Audit and Risk Committee 

Priority High 

Date 26.9.11 

Comments  

 

 

 

Audit Commission Annual governance report 22
 

Page 132



If you require a copy of this document in an alternative 
format or in a language other than English, please call: 
0844 798 7070 

© Audit Commission 2011. 

Design and production by the Audit Commission Publishing Team. 

Image copyright © Audit Commission. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by 

the Audit Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors 

and of the audited body. Reports prepared by appointed auditors are 

addressed to non-executive directors, members or officers. They are 

prepared for the sole use of the audited body. Auditors accept no 

responsibility to: 

! any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

! any third party.  

 

 

 

Audit Commission 

1st Floor 

Millbank Tower 

Millbank 

London 

SW1P 4HQ 

Telephone: 0844 798 3131 

Fax: 0844 798 2945 

Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946 

 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk September 2011

 

 

Page 133



Page 134

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX D 

To: Tony Corcoran 
Appointed Auditor  
1st Floor,  
No.1 Friarsgate 1011 Stratford Road,  
Shirley Solihull,  
West Midlands,  
B90 4BN  

 

Newcastle under Lyme Borough Council - Audit for the year ended 31 March 2011  
 
I confirm to the best of my knowledge and belief, having made appropriate enquiries of other 
officers of Newcastle under Lyme Borough Council, the following representations given to you 
in connection with your audit of the Council's financial statements for the year ended 31 
March 2011. All representations cover the Authority’s accounts included within the financial 
statements.  

Compliance with the statutory authorities  
I have fulfilled my responsibility under the relevant statutory authorities for preparing the 
financial statements in accordance with the Code of Practice for Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom and International Financial Reporting Standards which give a true and 
fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the Authority, for the 
completeness of the information provided to you, and for making accurate representations to 
you.  

Uncorrected misstatements  
The effects of uncorrected financial statements misstatements summarised in the schedule to 
your Annual Governance Report are not material to the financial statements, either 
individually or in aggregate.  

Supporting records  
All relevant information and access to persons within the entity have been made available to 
you for the purpose of your audit, and all the transactions undertaken by the Authority have 
been properly reflected and recorded in the financial statements.  
 
Irregularities  
I acknowledge my responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal 
control to prevent and detect fraud or error.  
I also confirm that I have disclosed:  
■  my knowledge of fraud, or suspected fraud, involving either management, employees who 

have significant roles in internal control or others where fraud could have a material effect 
on the financial statements;  

■  my knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the entity’s financial 
statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or 
others; and  

■  the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially 
misstated as a result of fraud.  

Law, regulations, contractual arrangements and codes of practice  
I have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance, or suspected non-compliance 
with laws, regulations and codes of practice, whose effects should be considered when 
preparing financial statements.  
 
Transactions and events have been carried out in accordance with law, regulation or other 
authority. The Authority has complied with all aspects of contractual arrangements that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.  
 
All known actual or possible litigation and claims, whose effects should be considered when 
preparing the financial statements, have been disclosed to the auditor and accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.  

Page 135



APPENDIX D 

Accounting estimates including fair values  
I confirm the reasonableness of the significant assumptions used in making the accounting 
estimates, including those measured at fair value.  
 
I confirm:  
■  the appropriateness of the measurement method, including related assumptions and 

models, and the consistency in application of the process;  
■  the assumptions appropriately reflect management’s intent and ability to carry out specific 

courses of action on behalf of the entity, where relevant to the accounting estimates and 
disclosures;  

■  the completeness and appropriateness under the financial reporting framework;  
■  subsequent events do not require adjustment to accounting estimates and disclosure 

included within the financial statements; and  
■  that the selection, and application, of accounting policies are appropriate.  
 
Related party transactions  
I confirm that I have disclosed the identity of Newcastle under Lyme Borough Council's 
related parties and all the related party relationships and transactions of which I am aware. I 
have appropriately accounted for and disclosed such relationships and transactions in 
accordance with the requirement of the framework.  

Subsequent events  
All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements, which would require additional 
adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements, have been adjusted or disclosed.  
 
Items not to be Adjusted 
I have considered your view that the accounts should be amended to remove an accrual of 
£13,150 and have concluded that, in my view, no amendment should be made. I have come 
to this conclusion on the grounds that the amount concerned is immaterial.  
 
I have also considered your view that the accounts should be amended by the input of an 
additional accrual to take account of an amendment of £63,000 to the National Non Domestic 
Rates Return (NNDR3) following its audit. Again, I have concluded that, in my view, no 
amendment should be made. I have come to this conclusion on the grounds that the amount 
concerned is immaterial, that this is a timing issue, the return being compiled and audited 
after the accounts are compiled and in previous years no such amendment has been 
subsequently made and that the position will be corrected in 2012/13 as part of the process of 
balancing the Collection Fund Account in relation to NNDR transactions. 

Signed on behalf of Newcastle under Lyme Borough Council  
I confirm that the this letter has been discussed and agreed by the Audit and Risk Committee 
on 26 September 2011  
 
Signed  
 
 
 
 
 
Kelvin Turner  
 
Executive Director (Resources and Support Services)  
 
26 September 2011 

Page 136



 1

QUARTERLY REPORT:  ADOPTION OF INTERNAL AUDIT FUNDAMENTAL 
RECOMMENDATIONS AND SUMMARY OF ASSURANCE 1 APRIL TO 30 JUNE 2011 
 
Submitted by: Audit Manager  
 
Portfolio Resources and Efficiency 
 
Ward(s) affected All 
 
 

Purpose of the Report  
 
To report on any outstanding high risk recommendations to the Audit and Risk Committee on a 
quarterly basis and where necessary to request Members’ approval to the Executive Directors 
requested actions in respect of the recommendations and proposed target dates. 
 
To provide Members with an assurance opinion on internal controls over Council Services. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the action of your officers and levels of assurance be noted. 
 
Reasons 
 
High risk recommendations are those agreed with management that are key controls in providing 
assurance as to the efficiency and effectiveness of the system, service or process under review.  
By agreeing to prolong target dates Members are accepting the risk of not implementing the 
control.  Delayed implementation of such controls should be challenged to identify reasons behind 
this and solutions to the delay.  Delays may be a result of external or internal influences, lack of 
resources or inertia.  Such delays in the implementation of recommendations will affect the 
assurance opinion provided on each Service. 

 
1. Background 

 
1.1 High risk recommendations are those where action is considered imperative to ensure that 

the authority is not exposed to high risks and to do this it needs to be implemented within 
1 month of the recommendation being agreed with managers.   
 

1.2 Recommendations are reported to committee on an exception basis, i.e. reports where high 
risk recommendations have been followed up with Managers on more than two occasions 
are brought to the attention of Members.  In addition the Chair and Vice Chair receive 
exception reports quarterly where high risk recommendations have been followed up with 
Managers after the initial implementation date has expired. 
 

1.3 With the production of the Annual Governance Statement in conjunction with the Statement 
of Accounts the follow up and implementation of recommendations is increasingly important, 
since they provide both officers and Members with assurance as to the effectiveness of key 
internal control.  
 

1.4 Assurance is provided on an annual basis as part of the Annual Report on the Internal Audit 
Service.  It is now also provided to each Executive Director on a monthly basis, based on the 
number of recommendations that have been implemented, and where the target date has 
been changed more than twice on either medium or high risk recommendations. 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 137



 2

2. Issues 
 

2.1 In the first quarter there were fifteen high risk recommendations were due for review, eight of 
these were at their first follow up date and therefore no further action is required at this 
stage.  There were seven recommendations that had received a first target date change and 
these were referred separately to the Chair and Vice Chair of the Committee.  
 

2.2 A copy of the Assurance Summary for June 2011 can be found at Appendix A. 
 

2.3 Three Directorates are showing Limited Assurance at the end of the first quarter, whilst 
Regeneration and Development Services have an Assurance Opinion of Substantial.  Given 
these results at the end of the first quarter there are no issues or concerns in relation to any 
outstanding recommendations within any of the Directorates. 
 

3. Reasons for Preferred Solution 
 

3.1 Reasons for each Director proposal are specific to the actions required. 
 

4. Outcomes Linked to Sustainable Community Strategy and Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The systems, services and processes reviewed by Internal Audit link to and support the four 
priority themes of the Council, by reviewing these Audit is making the best use of the 
Council’s resources and improving efficiency and this is further reinforced by managers as 
they implement the recommendations made. 
 

5. Legal and Statutory Implications  
 

5.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2010 require the Council to ‘maintain an adequate and 
effective system of internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal 
control in accordance with the proper internal audit practices’.   
 

6. Equality Impact Assessment 
 

6.1 There are no differential equality impact issues identified from this proposal. 
 

7. Financial and Resource Implications  
 

7.1 The majority of recommendations are met within existing resources; where additional 
resources are required these will form part of a separate report. 
 

8. Major Risks  
 

8.1 The role of Internal Audit is to provide management with an objective assessment of whether 
systems and controls are working properly.  High Risk Recommendations identify areas 
where action is required in order to avoid exposure to risk.  If managers fail to act upon 
fundamental audit recommendations assurance cannot be given on the adequacy of the 
systems of internal control.   
 

9. Key Decision Information 
 
Not applicable 
 

Page 138



 3

10. Earlier Cabinet/Committee Resolutions 
 

10.1 Where fundamental recommendations show a target date change; this identifies the number 
of times the recommendation has been referred back to Executive Management Team and 
to Members for consideration of the risks prior to agreeing an extended implementation date 
or other action. 
 

11. List of Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Audit Recommendations Summary of Assurance for June 2011 
 

12. Background Papers 
 
Internal Audit PI and Assurances file 
 

Page 139



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

 1

Audit Recommendations 
Summary of Assurance 

 
June 2011 

 

 

Full Substantial Limited Little 

Chief Executives 
Directorate 

  √  

Resources and 
Support Services 

Directorate 

  √  

Operational Services 
Directorate 

  √  

Regeneration and 
Development 
Directorate 

 √   

 
Opinions are classified as: 
 

Full The Internal Audit did not reveal any control 
weaknesses based on the samples at the time of the 
audit. 

94% - 100% 

Substantial The Internal Audit identified areas that required 
necessary action to avoid exposure to significant risk. 

70% - 93%  
or target changed > 
2 on medium risk 
recommendations 

Limited The Internal Audit identified areas where it was 
imperative to act to avoid exposure to risk. 

50% - 69%  
or target changed > 
2 on high risk 
recommendations 

Little The Internal Audit identified very little evidence of key 
controls being in place or a repetition of evidence that 
known action has not taken place to avoid exposure to 
high risk i.e.: as identified in previous audits.  This 
exposes the Council to high risks that should have been 
managed. 

Below 50%  
 

 
Full assurance can be given where the Council achieves 95% of all recommendations 
implemented as the agreed performance measure for 2010/11. 
 
Where target dates for the implementation of recommendations are changed or renegotiated 
we cannot give our full assurance. If the ongoing risk was considered as: 
 
High Risk:  (action that is considered imperative to ensure that the authority is not 

exposed to high risks; (Implemented within 1 month)) 
Medium Risk:  (action that is considered necessary to avoid exposure to significant risks: 

(Implemented within 3 months)) 
 
By changing the date the risk is not being managed and therefore you may wish to seek 
additional assurance as to the security of the controls in place. 

 

Page 141



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT – QUARTER 1 2011/12 
 
Submitted by: Audit Manager 
 
Portfolio Resources and Efficiency 
 
Ward(s) affected All 
 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 
To report on the work undertaken by the Internal Audit section during the period 1 April to 30 June 
2011. This report identifies the key issues raised.  The full individual reports issued to Officers 
contain the key issues plus a variety of minor issues and recommendations. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That Members consider any issues that they may wish to raise with Cabinet and, or 
Executive Directors. 
 
Reasons 
 
The role of Internal Audit is key to ensure that the Council has assurance that controls are in place 
and operating effectively across all Council Services and Departments. 

 
1. Background 

 
1.1 The Internal Audit Plan for 2011/12 allows for 491 days of audit work. 

 
1.2 This is the first progress report of the current financial year presented to the Committee and 

the areas that it will cover are as follows:- 
 

• Actual against planned performance for the first quarter, demonstrating progress 
against the plan 

• Details of audit reviews completed and final reports issued 

• Consultancy and non audit work, including corporate work 
 

1.3 The delivery of an audit plan does not normally show 25% of the audits completed on a 
quarterly basis.  Past experience has shown this is more likely to be around 10% in the first 
quarter.  Achievement of the 10% is dependent on a full complement of staff from 1 April, 
fully qualified and trained to complete work with minimum supervision.  A full 25% of the plan 
is not normally achieved due to slippage of the previous years plan, and other factors such 
as special investigations.  The audit plan is a guide to what may be achieved given optimum 
resources and no external influences; as such it is normal to revise the plan throughout the 
year to reflect unforeseen issues.  Emphasis during such a revision, if required, will be on 
achieving the high risk audit reviews first, followed by medium and low.  Variations to the 
plan will affect the assurance that Internal Audit can give as to the effectiveness of the 
internal controls and systems; it is the role of the Audit Manager with responsibility for the 
Section to highlight to members if this is approaching a level that would jeopardise that 
assurance statement. 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 143



2. Issues 
 

2.1 Performance Indicators 
 
The indicators reported below relate to the end of the first quarter (June 2011). 
 

2.2 Number of Recommendations Implemented 
 
At the conclusion of every audit, an audit report is issued to management detailing findings 
of the audit review together with any recommendations required to be implemented to 
address any weakness identified. 
 
Up to the end of June 2011 713 recommendations had been made of which 613 have been 
implemented, 86%, the target is 96% by the year end. 
 

2.3 Percentage of clients who are satisfied or very satisfied with the service provided 
 
Management’s views are sought on the conclusion of each key audit by the issue of a 
Customer Satisfaction Survey.  This requires management to give a satisfaction rating of 
between 0 and 5.  A medium satisfaction score would be between 54 to 74%, high 
satisfaction 75 to 100%, the target for 2010/11 is 86%. 
 
Seven satisfaction surveys were returned during the first quarter, the average for these was 
85%.  
 

2.4 Progress made against the plan. 
 
This is measured using three indicators: 
 

• Audit staff utilisation rate: This indicator demonstrates whether staffing resources 
are being used to complete non audit duties.  Audit duties are chargeable to clients 
and can include audit reviews, special investigations, consultancy and contributing to 
corporate initiatives in terms of providing controls advice.  Non audit and therefore 
non productive time covers aspects such as administration, training and leave.  The 
target for productive time is 74% 
 
Productivity at the end of quarter 1 is 81%.  
 

• Percentage of audits completed compared to the total number of audits 
planned for completion (percentage): the annual target for this is 90%.  12% of the 
planned audits had been completed by the end of quarter 1.  
 

• Percentage of the audit plan completed within the year: the annual target for this 
is 90%.  11% of the operational audit plan had also been completed against an 
expectation of 10%.   
 

2.5 Audit reviews completed and final reports issued between 1 April and 30 June 2011 
 
On completion of the audit reviews an opinion can be given as to the efficiency and 
effectiveness of the controls in place, opinions are graded as follows: 

Page 144



 

Well Controlled Controls are in place and operating satisfactorily.  Reasonable 
assurance can be given that the system, process or activity 
should achieve its objectives safely whilst achieving value for 
money (vfm) 

Adequately 
controlled 

There are some control weaknesses but most key controls are 
in place and operating effectively.  Some assurance can be 
given that the system, process or activity should achieve its 
objectives safely whilst achieving value for money. 

Less than 
adequately 
controlled 

Controls are in place but operating poorly or controls are 
inadequate.  Only limited assurance can be given that the 
system, process or activity should achieve its objectives safely 
whilst achieving value for money. 

Poorly controlled Controls are failing or not present.  No assurance can be given 
that the system, process or activity should achieve its 
objectives safely whilst achieving value for money. 

 
2.6 The table below shows the overall audit opinion and the number and types of 

recommendations agreed to improve existing controls, or introduce new controls on the audit 
reviews completed since 1 April 2011.  Appendix A provides fuller details of these audit 
reviews under each service area.   
 

AUDIT REVIEW AUDIT OPINION Risk 
Category 

Chief Executives   

Community Safety Crime and Disorder Adequately controlled B 

Resources & Support Services   

External Data Transfers Less than adequately 
controlled 

B 

Housing Benefits – Quarterly Testing Well controlled A 

Operational Services   

Jubilee Pool Adequately controlled B 

Kidsgrove Sports Centre Adequately controlled B 

Knutton Recreation Centre Well controlled B 

Regeneration and Development   

Ecohomes Project Well controlled A 

Guildhall and Civic Refurbishment Well controlled A 

Corporate Reviews   

Corporate Governance No opinion given – work 
completed as part of the 
Annual Governance 
Statement 

A 

 
Risk categories relate to the risk to the Council achieving its objectives if the area under 
review is not performing and identify the frequency of the audit.  An ‘A’ risk area requires a 
review of its key controls on an annual basis or as the need for an audit arises for example, 
in the case of contracts coming to an end final account audits are required and completed.  
A ‘B’ risk area is reviewed twice during a three year programme and a ‘C’ risk every three 
years.  
 
‘Risk’ can be defined as the chance, or probability, of one or more of the Council’s objectives 
not being met.  It refers both to unwanted outcomes that may arise, and to the potential 
failure to reach desired outcomes.  Management compliance with agreed action plans will 
ensure that risks are addressed. 

Page 145



 

2.7 Consultancy and non audit projects 
 
During quarter 1 the Audit Manager has been involved in various projects which have 
included the following; 
 

• An assessment of the Council’s Corporate Governance arrangements was 
completed which culminated in the production of the Annual Governance Statement 
which was presented to the Audit & Risk Committee on 28 June and 27 July 2011 
respectively for approval alongside the Statement of Accounts.  This process 
involved a number of separate pieces of work being co-ordinated and then an 
assessment undertaken of the overall governance arrangements for the Council, 
which resulted in the final statement being produced. 

• In addition a total of 10 audit days have been spent undertaking special projects at 
the request of other Directorates. 

 
3. Options Considered  

 
3.1 Audit recommendations are discussed and agreed following the issue of the draft audit 

report.  These draft discussions give management the opportunity to discuss and agree the 
recommendations that have been proposed. 
 

3.2 The audit plan is a living document and as such circumstances may arise that affect it; these 
are considered in the light of risk and decisions taken to enable intelligent variations to be 
made to the plan. 
 

4. Proposal 
 

4.1 In agreeing to audit reports, management acknowledge the issues raised and risks identified 
from the review and therefore accept the recommendations that have been made. 
 

5. Reasons for Preferred Solution 
 

5.1 By implementing the recommendations, the exposure to risk is minimised and achievement 
of the Council’s objectives maximised.  The completion of the audit reviews provide evidence 
on which assurance of the Council’s systems and internal controls can be provided. 
 

6. Outcomes Linked to Sustainable Community Strategy and Corporate Priorities  
 

6.1 The Internal Audit function contributes to the prevention, detection and investigation of 
potential fraud and corruption incidents as well as giving assurance on the effectiveness of 
services in terms of value for money. 
 

6.2 By managers ensuring that they have strong controls in all their systems, processes and 
activities the potential for crime can be reduced whilst providing best value facilities. 
 

7. Legal and Statutory Implications  
 

7.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2010 require the Council to ‘maintain an adequate and 
effective system of internal control in accordance with the proper internal audit practices’. 
 

8. Equality Impact Assessment 
 
There are no differential equality impact issues identified from this proposal. 

Page 146



 
9. Financial and Resource Implications  

 
9.1 The implementation of recommendations will ensure that the areas reviewed will provide 

value for money in relation to their objectives and that operations are provided safely and 
risks managed.  This in turn will reduce the risk of financial losses. 
 

9.2 The service is currently on target to be provided within budget. 
 

10. Major Risks  
 

10.1 If key controls are not in place, managers are exposing their systems, processes and 
activities to the potential abuse from fraud and corruption. 
 

10.2  If key controls are not in place, assurance cannot be given that the Services being delivered 
provide Value for Money for the Council. 
 

10.3 If the risks identified are not addressed through the implementation of agreed 
recommendations, achievement of the Council’s objectives will be affected. 
 

11. Key Decision Information 
 
Not applicable. 
 

12. Earlier Cabinet/Committee Resolutions 
 

12.1 Agreement of the Internal Audit Plan for 2011/12 (Audit and Risk Committee 31 January 
2011). 
 

13. List of Appendices 
 
Appendix A - Internal Audit Plan 2011/12: Progress to the end of Quarter 1 – 2011/12. 
 

14. Background Papers 
 
Internal Audit Plan & PI’s File (GA004/11). 
APACE files 2011/12 
 

Page 147



Page 148

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

Internal Audit Plan 2011/12 
 

Progress to the End of Quarter 1 – 2011/12 
 
 
Chief Executive’s Directorate 
 
The following areas have been completed in quarter 1 
 

Audit Area Risk 
Category 

Level of 
Assurance 

Number of Recommendations and 
Classification 

Total 

High Medium Low 

Community 
Safety 

Crime and 
Disorder 

B Adequately 
controlled 

0 3 0 3 

 
The main issues arising from the above audits can be summarised as follows: 
 
Community Safety Crime and Disorder 
 
This review looks at the arrangements in place with regards to the Community Safety 
Partnership.  On the whole it was found that controls were operating well, with just a small 
number of recommendations being made in respect of the completion of office inventories 
and the updating of risk assessments on Target 100. 
 
 
Resources and Support Services Directorate 
 
The following areas have been completed in quarter 1 
 

Audit 
Area 

Risk 
Category 

Level of 
Assurance 

Number of Recommendations and 
Classification 

Total 

High Medium Low 

External 
Data 

Transfers  

A Less than 
adequately 
controlled 

11 6 1 18 

Housing 
Benefits 
Quarterly 
Testing 

A Well 
Controlled 

0 0 0 0 

 
The main issues arising from the above audits can be summarised as follows 
 
External Data Transfers 
 
The audit was undertaken by Fit Business Solutions who are the Councils approved 
computer audit specialists.  The review examined the way that data is transferred outside of 
the council to ensure that this is done securely and within the confines of relevant legislation 
such as the Data Protection Act.   Findings revealed that there were no formally documented 
policies and procedures in place with regards to the transfer of data.  It was found that in the 
main data was sent in an encrypted form albeit there were no set standards/protocols in 
place for officers to follow.  The recommendations and action plan from this review is being 

Page 149



APPENDIX A 

closely monitored by the Information Security Group and at the time of writing this report 
good progress had been made in respect of the outstanding actions. 
 
Housing Benefits Quarterly Testing 
 
This review examines a sample of Housing Benefit Claims on a quarterly basis to ensure 
that applications are being processed correctly.  This review supplements the main audit of 
the Housing Benefits function which is completed annually.  From the sample of claims 
examined no issues were found and as such no recommendations were found.  
 
 
Operational Services Directorate 
 
Areas Completed in Quarter 1 of the 2011/12 Audit Plan 
 
The following areas have been completed in quarter 1: 
 

Audit Area Risk 
Category 

Level of 
Assurance 

Number of Recommendations and 
Classification 

Total 

High Medium Low 

Jubilee Pool B Adequately 
controlled 

0 6 2 8 

Kidsgrove 
Sports centre 

B Adequately 
Controlled 

0 8 1 9 

Knutton 
Recreation 
Centre 

B Well 
Controlled 

0 1 1 2 

 
The main issues arising from the above audits can be summarised as follows: 
 
Jubilee Pool, Kidsgrove Sports Centre and Knutton Recreation Centre 
 
A review of all three sports centres was undertaken, the main objectives of these reviews 
being to ensure compliance with the Councils Standing Orders and Financial Regulations 
and that all income collected from the centres is banked correctly.  On the whole the centres 
were operating well with good overall controls.  Recommendations made were mainly in 
relation to completion and accuracy of stock records and inventories.  In addition there was 
the requirement for up to date risk assessments to be completed as well as ensuring that 
booking forms for each of the centres were completed accurately.  It can be reported that 
good progress has been made against the recommendations that were made during the 
audit. 
 
 
Regeneration and Development Services 
 
Areas completed in Quarter 1 of the 2011/12 Audit Plan 
 
In accordance with Financial Regulations all final payments made against a contract need to 
be verified by Internal Audit before payment can be made.  During quarter 1 the following 
final payments have been audited: 

Page 150



APPENDIX A 

 

Contract Name Contractor Value of Work Audit Findings 

Ecohomes Staffordshire 
Housing and 
Thomas Vale 

£1,140,000.00 No problems identified, 
contract delivered within 
budget 

Guildhall and Civic 
Refurbishment 

Paragon 
Interiors Ltd 

£1,035,217.95 No problems identified, 
contract delivered within 
budget 

 
Corporate Reviews 
 
These are audit reviews that cut across all Service Areas, as such Audit Briefs go out to all 
Executive Directors, Corporate and Service Managers and reporting is done on an individual 
service level in order to retain confidentiality of the issues identified. 
 
In addition work was completed in relation to Corporate Governance which culminated with 
the completion of the Annual Governance Statement for 2010/11  
 
 
 
 

Note on recommendations 
 
Recommendations fall into one of three categories; 
 
High (H):  action that is considered imperative to ensure that the authority is not exposed to high risks; 
 
Medium (M):  action that is considered necessary to avoid exposure to significant risks; 
 
Low (L):   action that is considered desirable and which should result in enhanced control or better value 

for money. 

 

 

Page 151



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



 

CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR THE PERIOD April to June 2011 
 
Submitted by:  Head of Business Improvement and Partnerships 
 
Portfolio: Customer Services and Transformation 
 
Ward(s) affected: All 
 
 

Purpose of the Report  
 
To provide an update to Members of the progress made by the Council in enhancing and 
embedding risk management for the period April to June 2011, including progress made in 
managing the identified corporate risks. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Committee is asked to:- 
 
(a) Note the situation regarding the LEP as provided by your Officer. 
 
(b) Scrutinise the progress that has been made in managing the risks identified within 
the Strategic, Operational, Project and Partnership Risk Registers where applicable. 
 
(c) Note the new risks that have been identified between April to June 2011. 
 
(d) Identify, as appropriate, risk profiles to be scrutinised in more detail as part of your 
responsibility at the next meeting. 
 
(e) Note the horizon scanning risks listed to bear in mind when making decisions on 
reports submitted to committees and the effect it may have on the future of the council. 
 
Reasons 
 
The risk management process previously adopted by the council has been reviewed to incorporate 
changes in the way the council works and to provide continuity and streamlined reporting of risks to 
the necessary stages so that it becomes further embedded at each level of the authority.  This will 
further develop the identification of key risks that potentially threaten the delivery of the corporate 
priorities.  The new strategy will provide a formal and proportionate framework to manage these 
identified risks and thus reduce the council’s exposure. 
 
To assist the council in its corporate ambition of being an excellent council by helping deliver 
effective corporate governance, this proactive approach also helps demonstrate good risk 
management in terms of evidencing that effective risk management is further embedded with the 
corporate business processes. 

 
1. Background 

 
1.1 The council monitors and manages all its risks through the various risk profiles contained 

within GRACE (Governance Risk and Control Environment) – the Council’s software for 
recording and managing risk. 
 

1.2 The council currently reviews its extreme risks at least monthly and its high risks at least 
quarterly. 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 153



 

1.3 The last review of these risks was reported to your Committee in April 2011. 
 

1.4 Risk owners are challenged by the Risk Champions in respect of controls, further actions, 
ratings and emerging risks and challenge reasons for inclusion or non-inclusion and 
amendment of these. 
 

1.5 Projects are managed to a high level in relation to risk and are reviewed in accordance with 
the risk management strategy – monthly. 
 

2. Issues 
 

2.1 Risk Management Scores 
 
As Members may remember at the last meeting the new risk management strategy was 
approved subject to minor changes.  Since that date the new risk scoring was introduced on 
1 July 2011.   
 
The scores that you currently see on Appendix A relate to the old 5x5 matrix, as these risks 
were updated to the end of June 2011.  The next report that you see will show these risks as 
they are scored under the new 3x3 matrix. 
 

2.2 Strategic, Operational, Project and Partnership Risk Registers (Appendices) 
 
The Council regularly reviews and refreshes its risk registers in accordance with the risk 
management strategy.  This is co-ordinated by the Strategic Risk Champion who works 
closely with the Directors, Operational Risk Champions and the Risk Owners. 
 
Appendix A highlights the Council’s most significant risks and the newly identified risks.   
 
Further progress has been made towards mitigating these risks during the first quarter in a 
variety of areas, which has resulted in some risks moving closer to being reclassified (or 
down-graded). For instance  
 

• A risk relating to the Ryecroft development has reduced in rating as the purchase of 
the site has taken place with an indentified partner and steps are being taken to 
identify a development partner 

• A risk relating to managing critical information has been reduced in rating due to the 
last few services being identified as needing electronic document and records 
maintenance installing 

• A risk relating to new business processes not taking information risk into account has 
been closed as all actions have been completed and due to Prince2 aspects being 
undertaken throughout projects and business processes (incorporating version 
control, FOI requests etc) 

 
2.3 Horizon Scanning 

 
As identified from the last meetings minutes, horizon scanning was to be included as part of 
the report to members.  Below is a list of “risks on the horizon” that will need to be 
considered by both officers and members, but will not necessarily need to be added onto 
profiles. 
 

• Jackson Reforms – risks associated with the outcome of the Jackson review in 
respect of insurance claims, one-way costs shifting etc – the potential for more 
claims to be made against the council and the chances of more being run to court 

Page 154



 

due to the third party not losing out on any costs, and the therefore the costs 
implications against the council rise.  This also takes into account the Legal Aid, 
Sentencing and Punishment of Offenders Bill, where the council will be liable for 
uplifts of more costs; the increase in Conditional Fee Arrangements and success 
fees; the portal scheme for liability claims to be introduced leading to shorter 
timescales to comply with protocol (currently 90 days to accept/deny liability) which 
most authorities struggle to do now 

• Property and business interruption insurance – are officers involving the risk & 
insurance officer at the right time to advise of any changes to services that may affect 
the insurance portfolio – finding that data is incorrect when a claim arises – only 
notifying of changes upon renewal process, then still not clear of what they really 
want 

• UK fraud – costing in excess of €2.6 billion (although mainly in the private sector) it is 
increasing in the public sector – absence management, staff, time etc. 

• Financial crisis (again) – it seems following recent meetings attended that the 
financial crisis is here to stay – for at least another 10 years – the USA seems to be 
going through the recession again; the UK aimed to assist companies 

• Professional & official indemnity claims are on the increase both at this council and 
neighbouring authorities – schemes undertaken where officers follow legal practices 
& procedures but are now being challenged by Third Parties, and in some cases 
winning. 

• Civil unrest – Syria, Israel, Spain, Chile are all still ongoing disputes, and the impact 
could be potential financial implications to the council – the UK government bailing 
out these countries, leading to implications on our own economy, employment and 
immigration. 

• The pension problem – in Europe the pension’s crisis has been in the news recently - 
the sovereign debt being blamed – the Pension Insurance Corporation London warns 
that defined pension funds could be hit hard of the European sovereign debt crisis  
creates a re-run of the credit crunch.  In the USA the US Congress is proposing a 
federal approach that could enable states to declare bankruptcy as a way to duck 
their promises to pensioners and bondholders – could this follow in the UK? 

• Changes to the default retirement age - the UK default retirement age is being 
abolished later this year and there will be potential challenges from an ageing 
workforce – physical demands for some jobs could produce an increased risk of 
accidents and health impairment (although  the UK Health & Safety Executive 
reported this year that overall there is no evidence that older workers are more at risk 
of workplace accidents or injury than their younger counterparts) 

• Terrorism – there is an increase in attacks from all sectors, not just the Middle East – 
there is a tendency to think “it won’t happen to us” – there has been an increase in 
activity/attacks in Northern Ireland; in Norway which had the smallest percentage of 
terrorism has just seen the worst attack in its history.  There is a chance that it comes 
from “within” society (internal) rather than external attacks. 

• Cyber risks – although this has been headline news previously, in recent months 
“hacktivists” have been working globally to enter companies databases and steal 
information, whether it be personal data, revenge attacks or just to attack the 
reputation of these host companies, albeit Google, Sony, PayPal or even the FBI.  
Although this is global, there is still the potential for this kind of revenge attack to take 
place at the council due to a disgruntled customer, employee or external company – 
“they probably aren’t interested in me” isn’t an excuse – making sure good security 
for your customers’ data is a legal requirement under the Data Protection Act.  The 
above companies will have the same, if not better protection, but they still got in! 
 
In a report by Detica, commissioned by the UK government, cyber crime is costing 
the UK alone £27bn a year (the lions share of £21bn is from the private sector). 

Page 155



 

 
These risks will potentially affect the council and its practices in the coming months/years, 
however some are beyond the control of the council – it is normally the knock-on effect 
through insurance premium increase and fall out of other businesses responses to these 
risks that can change how we manage our own. 
 

3. Outcomes Linked to Corporate and Sustainable Community Priorities 
 

3.1 Good risk management is key to the overall delivery of Council and local improvement 
priorities. 
 

4. Legal and Statutory Implications 
 

4.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 as amended 2006, state that: 
 
“The relevant body shall be responsible for ensuring that the financial management of the 
body is adequate and effective and that the body has a sound system of internal control, 
which facilities the effective exercise of that body’s functions and which includes 
arrangement for the management of risk” 
 

5. Equality Impact Assessment 
 

5.1 There are no differential equality impact issues in relation to this report. 
 

6. Financial and Resource Implications 
 

6.1 None where actions are to be taken in order to mitigate the risks as these will be met from 
within existing budgets.  Where this is not possible, further reports will be submitted to 
Members. 
 

7. List of Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Extreme Risks and Action Plan 2011/12.  
 

8. Background Papers 
 
None. 

Page 156



Appendix A

Extreme Risks

Risks that have increased in rating

Risks that have decreased from Extreme to High rating

Risks that have remained the same from last 1/4 report

New risks

Appendix A

Extreme Risks and Action Plan 

2011/12

Risk Identified
Profile Action Required to Address Risk Target Date Risk Category Current position / progress Status Status

Current 

Status

in order to reduce the risk
for action 

completion

Strategic, 

Operational, Project
as at 08/09/2011 as at Dec 10

as at March 

11

as at June 

11

1

Due to the nature of the project at

the Midway Car Park, there is a risk

of increased maintenance

expenditure after 20 years of the

current repairs as the life

expectancy of the parts not

currently being repaired will reduce

Midway Car Park 

- 25 year plan

There is a need to build a contingency

into the financial plans of the council

to enable these works to be

undertaken. Also a planned

inspection regime will be designed to

take into account any defects/faults

that could be repaired for the short

term

Jun-11 Project

Works continuing on the

Midway following a 6 month

break

Extreme Extreme Extreme

2

ITC system failure - Systems failure

results in breach of business

continuity requirements, business

impact assessments and potential

loss of data / information.

ICT services

Build disaster recovery facility at

Kidsgrove Town Hall - hardware and

resiliant link to Civic Offices to be put

in place and then replication of critical

software.

Sep-11 Operational

Test done in Aug 11 to look at

replication data - major

systems check done but still

waiting for data from BIA's.

The resiliant link from KTH to

Guildhall is working. Still to

fine tune the 1GB link from

Civic to KTH and KTH to

Guildhall

- - Extreme

3

A risk has been identified regarding 

the failure to go ahead with the 

retail-led development of the 

Ryecroft

Town Centre 

Strategic 

Acquisition

There is a need to complete the 

refresh of the town centre strategic 

options appraisal, and to look at the 

business case regarding the future of 

the Civic Offices

Nov-11 Operational Work ongoing Extreme Extreme Moderate

1

P
age 157



Appendix A

Extreme Risks and Action Plan 

2011/12

Risk Identified
Profile Action Required to Address Risk Target Date Risk Category Current position / progress Status Status

Current 

Status

in order to reduce the risk
for action 

completion

Strategic, 

Operational, Project
as at 08/09/2011 as at Dec 10

as at March 

11

as at June 

11

4

A risk has been identified in respect 

of critical information being wrongly 

destroyed, not kept or can't be 

found

Managing 

Information 

Risks

Procedure manuals are to be 

produced to run alongside the 

Managing Information policies

Dec-12 Operational
Awaiting for approval of 

Managing Information policies
Extreme Extreme High

5

Failure to secure a development 

partner to deliver the retail-led 

development of the Ryecroft

Town Centre 

Strategic 

Acquisition

Business case to be prepared along 

with active pursual of development 

partner.

Dec-11 Operational

Target date for obtaining 

development partner is now 

Nov/Dec 11 due to involvement 

of Staffs CC as partners and 

the tendering process for 

external advisors to be able to 

build business case

Extreme High High

6
Failure to realise a market return on 

the council's capital investment

Town Centre 

Strategic 

Acquisition

A programme to be produced to 

procure a development partner and to 

commission a specialist to design and 

procure any necessary works of 

improvement

Mar-12 Operational as above High High High

7
Short term impact on town centre 

retail businesses

Town Centre 

Strategic 

Acquisition

Implementation of town centre street 

market improvement programme, 

encourage development of town 

centre business-led partnership, and 

actively pursue designation of 

Newcastle as a business 

improvement district.

Jun-12 Operational

No change from last report - 

Target date of street market 

upgrade amended to integrate 

with the lead-in time of the 

Hassall Street closure works 

and public consultation 

completed. Informal 

partnership with Business 

community established.

High High High

2

P
age 158



Appendix A

Extreme Risks and Action Plan 

2011/12

Risk Identified
Profile Action Required to Address Risk Target Date Risk Category Current position / progress Status Status

Current 

Status

in order to reduce the risk
for action 

completion

Strategic, 

Operational, Project
as at 08/09/2011 as at Dec 10

as at March 

11

as at June 

11

8

A risk has been identified regarding

the potential increase in the

number of insurance claims in

relation to the Midway Car Park if

the works are not carried out

Midway Car Park 

- 25 year plan

No further actions have been

identified for this risk, as it will

incorporate a number of other further

actions throughout the risk profile for

the project relating to the

maintenance/repair of the car park

Project

Phase 1 of the works

complete. Phase 2 due to be

commenced in March 11.

High High High

9

A risk has been identified in respect

of the fabric of the St Giles & St

Georges School building

deteriorating. 

Refurbishment of 

St Giles & St 

Georges 

Trying to pool resources to enable the

best possible scheme, and to

establish a lease with the successful

organisation to enable benefits to be

brought to the community

Sept-11 Project

Prospective tennants

undertaking architectual and

conditions studies to establish

preferred design/uses of the

building as well as establishing

more precise scheme sales.

High High High

10

A risk that as been identified in

relation to the relocation of the

market to Lower High Street is in

respect of the possibility of flooding

in that area resulting in financial

implications and reputation damage

Relocation of 

Market

Review the drainage design plan once

development is due to start to ensure

that it is still fit for purpose

Jun-12 Project

Outcome of public consultation

process to capture any

necessary and possible further

design revisions.

High High High

3

P
age 159



Appendix A

Extreme Risks and Action Plan 

2011/12

Risk Identified
Profile Action Required to Address Risk Target Date Risk Category Current position / progress Status Status

Current 

Status

in order to reduce the risk
for action 

completion

Strategic, 

Operational, Project
as at 08/09/2011 as at Dec 10

as at March 

11

as at June 

11

11

There is a risk that the project

would fail to get planning

permission to build the Health &

Wellbeing Centre

Jubilee2

Planning permission was agreed in

relation to the build of Jubilee2,

however the further action will be to

discharge all the conditions that were

put in place with this agreement.

Once carried out - which will be

throughout the build of the centre - the

likelihood of permission changing

should reduce to a minimum level

Dec-11 Project

Construction is now underway

on the site - conditions are

being met where required.

Monthly project meetings with

the contractor to ensure

progress aligned with agreed

programme including

compliance with planning

conditions.

High High High

12

Insufficient finance to

realise/implement the Carbon

Management Programme

Energy 

Efficiency, 

Climate Change 

Strategy and 

Carbon 

Management 

Plan

None identified Project/Operational High High

13

Carbon Trust Programme Board fail

to deliver on the Carbon

Management Programme

Energy 

Efficiency, 

Climate Change 

Strategy and 

Carbon 

Management 

Plan

None identified Project/Operational

Risk is still live, however there

is new action to identify

resources to carry out the

delivery of the government

targets, which has to be

delivered annaully

High High

4

P
age 160


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of Previous Meetings
	auditandrisk2011_07_28M

	4 Statement of Accounts 2010/11 and External Auditor's Governance Report
	Appendix A - Report to Audit and Risk Committee 28 July 2011
	Appendix B - Statement of Accounts 2010-11
	Appendix C - Governance Report 2010-11
	Appendix D - Letter of Representation

	5 Quarterly Report:  Adoption of Internal Audit Fundamental Recommendations and Summary of Assurance 1 April to 30 June 2011
	Appendix A - Audit Recommendations Summary of Assurance for June 2011

	6 Internal Audit Progress Report - Quarter 1 2011/12
	Appendix A - Internal Audit Plan 2011-12

	7 Corporate Risk Management Report for the Period April to June 2011
	Appendix A - Extreme Risks and Action Plan 2011-12


